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LEMBRE

Five-Year Financial Summary
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
ZE-RF ZE—+tF ZTE-N\F ZZ—NF ZBZEF
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
FETT FETT FETT FETT FEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
E¥ RESULTS
A Revenue 94,824 89,484 56,872 54,257 54,386
EH Gross profit 53,776 51,889 30,271 33,329 35,179
R BT 15 %53 A1 34 ) Profit before income tax 7,026 17,045 2,090 18,642 91,402
Fri5 %t Income tax expense (3,190) (1,416) (1,930) (293) (3,197)
F R Profit for the year 3,836 15,629 160 18,349 88,205
R+=ZBA=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E—RF ZE—+F ZFT-)N\F —T—NF ZBEZEEF
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
FETT FETT FETT F=ETT FEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEE Total assets 222,762 227,745 201,913 183,959 252,778
weE Total liabilities (132,386)  (125,726)  (113,462) (82,584) (55,496)
EEFE Net assets 90,376 102,019 88,451 101,375 197,282
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B HE
Financial Highlights

—E-EHE —ZT-NF 25
2020 2019 Change
XETER Results (US$'000):
WA Revenue 54,386 54,257 0.2%
Eovll Gross profit 35,179 33,329 5.6%
bl Profit from operations 12,852 3,959 224.6%
B P 15 T4 BlD& 71 Profit before income tax 91,402 18,642 390.3%
ZIN/NEIE PN b Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 88,205 18,349 380.7%
BFIEEN: Profitability:
F & Gross profit margin 64.7% 61.4% 3.3%
4 Fl) & Net profit margin 162.2% 33.8% 128.4%
EREAREF(EW Basic earnings per share (US cents) 22.21 4.54 17.67
BBEMRR(FETRT) : Financial Position (US$'000):
BmEE Total assets 252,778 183,959 37.4%
RAGHBANELER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 197,282 101,375 94.6%
BEfE Total liabilities 55,496 82,584 -32.8%
I & MR 1T 45 BR Cash and bank balances 97,553 47,736 104.4%
REBESMRR: Liquidity:
B b & () Current ratio (times) 3.7 1.4 2.3
FEEEm R Net debt-to-equity ratio* TE A N/A 12.6% FEA N/A

* FRERRLE=(BR-RERBTER) BRER
* Net debt-to-equity ratio = (Borrowings — cash and bank balances)/Total equity
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Financial Highlights

LON

Revenue

| 0N
Revenue
(B&%T)
(US$ million)

2 EUBA
Segment Revenue

| i W X5ER
Pharmaceuticals Cosmetic products
(B@%1T) (H&@%TT)
(US$ million) (US$ million)

2 EBEF
Segment Profit

| L W X5ER
Pharmaceuticals Cosmetic products
(B@=1) (A&=x7T)
(US$ million) (US$ million)

28.0%

2019 2020 2019

I A+ F0.2%

o Revenue increased by 0.2%

W 2EER
Healthcare products
ES

W REER
Healthcare products
(B8%xT)
(US$ million)

2019 2020
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F RIEF R AR =
Profit for the year and Net profit margin

W FrusF PRk o
Profit for the year Net profit margin
(B@8%rT) (%)

(US$ million)

2019 2020
REERFEE
Total assets and Net assets
W FRBEE W REEE W REE °
Non-current assets Current assets Net assets
(BBFET) (BE%T) (BB%T)
(US$ million)

(US$ million) (US$ million)

2019 2020

AR ¥ g

BBWE
Financial Highlights

F A& A £ T+380.7%
RN FT+128.4%

Profit for the year increased by 380.7%
Net profit margin increased by 128.4%

HBEE LF37.4%

SFEE £7194.6%

Total assets increased by 37.4%
Net assets increased by 94.6%
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Chairman’s Statement

AANEREALBEZEBEBR AR (ARTF])
EEWBFAR(REIRNEBRNDESRS
(BE=2g)MARNERBRREZAKERE
TR CEF+ A=t -HULEURFENF

EHE o

—E-TFOR
“ROTERRMARNHBHALRETE
TERARIEER LR EEMRERR - PER
PTRBELELBEOUEREEN  EXTERE
BAR_Z_TFHEBERKLELER - BAR
BHNEE STRESERBEDIEARE -
ERBRENOAMAZELBBEBERSNHE
BERBTTESLAFRER BREARRL
REMMEER -

BRAADEBREEHEPEBERRETES
ZRTOHEE  ADZBRIINEHEZE - R
rmEmBHRKEAERE EPENE2EEEREX
HIAEE RN EMBELER - 35 &
BABRARFTSHERRRERBAFRK
R -AKBER/ARREERBEEREIRR
EBERERNABY  ARESEETE
WEm FIBE RENREREELE
RER SEEITEXNRABEZ TLERRE
NARREEDRE - B HERBERIFET
TEESSIHTRENER SHEXIE
ZHER -
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“Lansen” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 to all shareholders of the Company.

Review of 2020

The international and domestic economic situation was complicated
by the unexpected COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. China demonstrated
its economic resilience and its ability to implement effective public
health measures, recording positive economic growth among major
economies in 2020. The outbreak of the pandemic made citizens
attach importance to medical treatment and comprehensive health.
New internet business including telemedicine and graded consultation
developed rapidly during the pandemic. The medical comprehensive
health ecosystem is being reconfigured at an accelerated pace.

Domestic demographic changes are also a concern for the healthcare
industry in China. An aging population accelerated the increasing
demand for medicine and healthcare. However, domestic medical
expenditure is still lagging far behind other developed economies.
Furthermore, the increasing income per capita in China has also
elevated the demand for cosmetic and healthcare products. The
Group believes that the establishment of a comprehensive health
ecosphere is the general trend of future business development
and growth. The Group will grasp the industry trend, focus
on pharmaceuticals, while accelerating the development of its
healthcare and cosmetic businesses, so as to build the Group into
a comprehensive health enterprise with diversified development
capabilities. In addition, during the COVID-19 pandemic, the Chinese
medicine market experienced a surge in growth and popularity.




EHZEARTMIBNEERE  NEHE
BABEBEEMER  FEESL ReRE
EINBERER - XERUEREES| - —F =
ZEEBENMNBRBHEEAS YRERS
BER BAEMEERBAMRNERSHE
BHRFER BREXBHEETIHEEEE
MAERMSR  BRRLEBRRTEHEY
AHMER BEKETEBEADERAR
B -AEEe#ENANRERERER R
ERED - AERENFIERKBFRESE
BEASERENTEER -

REBR-_Z-_TFWRABERFH448
BETL BREFLA02%: _E-_TFAE
B EEEHANNNIABEETT  REFLFA
2246% : EFERENBEAEER#E R (AR
MEBRES) NEEMLEEEF EANRKRER
CERARBHEENE—SHESERETA
REF - R AREEERENEANK
ERZFEMAEBEEE AEERIET
HEMDHEIIMEHEERDHEAIRESF
EFTR - TBHAXBLOEREFELETHE
EEHTEERME  STFEHBERBER
EFRERD BIERARELEZSTHE
SEEFEHBEAREESMEEBE L KE
WIRER % - AT A A EERDERAF
(AL NDHENERTE  AEBRFRLE
Bz RMEFRBEEFLZHNBABHEEET °
FrAEYE_T-_EFEAEEEEFHN
HHI88.2E EE L WEAF L F380.7% -

ER®RSE

Chairman’s Statement

Faced with a changing and challenging operational environment, the
Group continued its development orientation toward “giving priority
to self-owned products, profit and cash flow”. Benefitting from this
policy, the overall sales of the pharmaceutical department in 2020
remained stable and modestly increased. The self-owned specialty
pharmaceutical products such as Pafulin and Sicorten Plus maintained
sales growth. The pharmaceutical division continued to expand its
channels to cover third and lower-tier cities and hospitals, and increase
its product portfolio, strengthen online promotion and improve
the construction of its sales platform. The healthcare and cosmetic
businesses are still in the developing stage. The Group will continue
to utilise internal resources to develop its healthcare and cosmetic
businesses. The Group also plans to gradually resume production of
its reserve of Chinese medicine products in the next few years.

For 2020, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
US$54.4 million, representing an increase of 0.2% from last year;
profit from operations of approximately US$12.9 million in 2020,
representing an increase of 224.6% from last year; the proportion
of the sales from its self-owned specialty pharmaceutical products
(including Pafulin and Sicorten Plus) which have higher gross profit
margins as compared with last year and the overall gross profit
margin increased due to strict cost control on procurement bidding.
Meanwhile, due to the continuous implementation of the cost control
policy and affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group reduced
offline sales and distribution activities, resulting in a decrease in
selling and distribution expenses as compared with last year. The
decrease in administrative expenses was due to the provision and
write-off of certain inventories last year. The provision and write-
off in this year decreased significantly as compared with last year.
In addition, due to the appreciation of RMB against the US dollar,
the Group recorded a much higher increase in exchange gains due
to holding relevant RMB funds. Due to the impact on profit or loss
related to Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Starry”), the
Group recorded a one-off net gain of approximately US$84.8 million
as compared with last year. Affected by the above factors, the Group
recorded a net profit of approximately US$88.2 million in 2020,
representing an increase of 380.7% as compared with last year.
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Chairman’s Statement
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With regard to pharmaceuticals, the Group has always taken into
account the impact of the reform of the medical and health system
on the development direction of the pharmaceutical industry.
According to the Key Tasks for Deepening the Reform of Medical
and Health Sectors in the Second Half of 2020 issued by the
General Office of the State Council, it pointed out that it was
necessary to comprehensively promote and deepen the linkage
reform of medical treatment, medical insurance, and pharmaceutical
areas, and strive to solve the difficult problems of the lack of
accessibility to and the high costs of medical treatments. In the
second half of 2020, the State Council deepened the reform of the
medical and health system, including major policies like promoting
consistency evaluation, implementing and continuing to expand the
implementation of large-scale procurement, launching the payment
pilot for disease diagnosis-related group (DRG), medical insurance
fee control, and medical representative registration system. The
Group firmly believed that the graded diagnosis system will become
clearer with the deepening of medical reform. During the year, the
Group followed the guidance of national policy and continued to
strive to expand its channels to cover third and lower-tier cities. The
Group continued to strengthen academic promotion and extended
its reach to major hospitals, widened and deepened its reach to
small hospitals through partners, while expanding the OTC sales and
promoting the pilot sales project covering all of its products in the
Zhejiang Province. The Group complied with national policy reforms
to help the implementation of policies and guidelines to solve the
difficult problems of the lack of accessibility to and the high costs
of medical treatments. The Group continued to optimise the mature
market team, the emerging market team and the Zhejiang team, and
continued to expand the coverage and promotional capabilities of
the commercial distribution and OTC chain teams. The Company also
strengthened the online promotion and sales model, optimised the
offline promotion model, and controlled sales promotion expenses
in accordance with the changes in the COVID-19 pandemic. Through
such measures, especially the expansion in small-and-medium-
sized hospitals and retail sales, the overall sales of pharmaceuticals
remained stable, and the self-operated products continued to

maintain growth during the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Chairman’s Statement

At the end of the year, the Group examined the business strategy of
its cosmetic business. Currently, the Group is focusing its resources
on the development of skin care, hoping to establish a brand of skin
care products. With the launch of the San Parietti anti-aging series
and San Parietti Merce MM functional skin care series of products last
year, the Group continued to promote the launch of the youth sport
series. Affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, the opening of the self-
operated exclusive skin care stores was deferred till the second half
of 2020. At present, the Group has established skin care experience
stores in Beijing, Shanghai and Chengdu, and would expect to attract
franchise stores through training and branding. The Group believed
that the development of its self-owned products would optimise the
Group's product portfolio. These distinctive and high-quality collagen
skin care products and self-operated store services are expected to
generate revenue for the Group.

The Group continues to utilise Natural Dailyhealth Holdings Limited
("Natural Dailyhealth”) as a platform for developing its healthcare
business. For plant extract products, two major improvement goals
were identified during the year: focusing on increasing the market
share of high-quality products; and enhancing cross-field support and
service capabilities for large customers. Although the development of
new customers during the year was delayed due to the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group benefitted from firmly implementing
the key account policy, sales of some major customers increased
during the year, which led to a growth in the sales of plant extract
of Natural Dailyhealth. In addition to the plant extract business,
Natural Dailyhealth also launched an energy drink business and the
retail business of online and offline healthcare products at the end of
2020, and developed a “Natural Dailyhealth” e-commerce platform.

The Group disposed of a total of 6,149,867 shares of Starry in 2020,
with total proceeds of approximately RMB467.2 million (equivalent to
approximately US$67.1 million). The Group may further dispose of the
shares of Starry under the share reduction plan, subject to prevailing
market price of the shares of Starry and general conditions of the
stock market, as well as the restrictions set out in the share reduction
plan. The Group will comply with the applicable requirements under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited accordingly and make further announcements
in this regard as and when appropriate.

BB B[R B R A A Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited g
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Chairman’s Statement
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During the year, as the shares held by the Group in Starry were
less than 5%, the director appointed by the Group to Starry retired
from its board of directors. According to applicable accounting
standards, the Group had no right to exercise significant influence
on Starry since then. Therefore, Starry was no longer an associate
and the interests in Starry were reclassified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). The Group recorded a one-
off gain of approximately US$45.6 million in 2020 as a result of the
accounting reclassification. The interests in Starry (i.e. financial assets
at FVTPL) as at 31 December 2020 in the consolidated statement
of financial position was calculated based on the closing price of
RMB65.83 per share available on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on
31 December 2020 in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards after the discussion with BDO Limited.

As stated in the interim report, with great fluctuation in the share
price of Starry and since the disposal of shares in Starry that was
subject to the rules of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the value of
the proceeds of the Group from the actual disposal may fluctuate
significantly as compared with the carrying value of the interests
in Starry as at 31 December 2020. If the stock price of Starry on a
subsequent date or on the actual disposal date is below the closing
price as at 31 December 2020, there would be an unrealised/realised
loss from financial assets at FVTPL recognised in profit or loss
subsequent to the reporting period.

Outlook for 2021

Looking forward to 2021, the domestic medical and comprehensive
health industries are expected to usher in major changes. The Group
expects to promote the construction of a comprehensive health
ecosystem through a positive and adaptive corporate culture. While
maintaining the status of Lansen’s products as the preferred brand
for self-operated products, it is actively exploiting its own resources,
developing and deploying product research and development and
is launching new products in the cosmetic and healthcare fields,
recruiting professionals and accelerating the successful rollout of the
comprehensive health industry.
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Chairman’s Statement

With respect to the pharmaceutical business, the Group will continue
to focus on rheumatology, dermatology and other related therapeutic
areas. At the same time, it will comply with the national graded
diagnosis policy and utilise the cooperation of medical resources such
as the medical consortium and medical community to give full play
to the Company’s brand advantages of chronic disease products, and
firmly expand its channels to cover third and lower-tier cities and
invest more resources in commercial distribution channels. Through
multiple channels to strengthen the wide coverage of products and
channels, while maintaining the sales growth of large hospitals, it
accelerates the promotion of sales in small and medium grass-roots
hospitals and retail outlets. Meanwhile, the Group will make use
of its brand advantages of chronic disease products and actively
explore online sales on the internet. The Group will continue its
strict production and quality control to ensure product quality. The
Group will also continue to strengthen the linkage of production,
supply and marketing through procurement bidding management so
as to improve productivity, and to further reduce costs and increase
efficiency. In the future, R&D resources will continue to be focused
on indications of Pafulin for Sjogren’s syndrome and international
clinical trial application. The Group plans to actively respond to
the national policy on the development of the traditional Chinese
medicine industry in the next few years to grasp more opportunities
from Chinese traditional medicine due to the pandemic, for which
the Group will gradually resume the production and sales of more
than 20 traditional Chinese medicine products with independent
production approvals, and achieve the strategic launch of “multi-
product joint promotion” by increasing the product portfolio.

The Group will continue to accelerate the development of the
cosmetic business strategically and cautiously. In 2021, the Group will
continue to improve the rollout of the cosmetic business, enhance
brand awareness and expand new business growth. Based on the
original traditional commercial channels and models, a high-tech
skin care business section was added. A sales and marketing team
with professional background has been established to professionally
promote its line of high-tech skin care brands, and to develop the
high-tech skin care product series. The Group believes that excellent
products plus a professional team and operating system will enhance
its brand awareness and continue to empower the Group’s cosmetic
business.

BA 482 4% R B BR A & Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 11
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In 2021, the Group will continue to utilise Natural Dailyhealth
as a platform to develop its healthcare business, and actively
promote plant extract products, e-commerce, and healthcare
products. Natural Dailyhealth expects to continuously increase its
market share in core raw material products for plant extract sub-
segment through technological transformation, production output
expansion and key customer expansion in both international and
domestic markets. By tightening control in raw material suppliers
and exploring downstream markets, it will provide momentum for
enlarging key market shares and improve overall competitiveness of
production capacity, raw materials and quality. For the e-commerce
sub-segment, through optimising products by resource integration,
enriching product endorsements, integrating the Company’s
advantages of plant extract raw material end into e-commerce
products to accelerate e-commerce product upgrades, and diversify
the product line with the concept of “in Chinese medicine, herbals
and food are considered sharing the same origin”. In the beverage
sub-segment, Natural Dailyhealth will deeply explore the sales model
in pilot cities to formulate a sales model for other cities, and at the
same time introduce more characteristic categories, gradually forming
brand and market competitiveness. In terms of healthcare products,
several healthcare products that Natural Dailyhealth has applied
for with the State Food and Drug Administration are still pending
registration approval.

Looking to the future, the Group will actively seize the opportunities
brought by the national strategy of healthy China, and continuously
promote the diversified strategy of comprehensive health to continue
to provide patients and customers with high-quality products
and services, and create a better employment environment and
development platform for employees. It integrates resources to obtain
high-quality investment for partners and shareholders, and gives
back to the society with a commitment to high-quality corporate
responsibility.

Wu Zhen Tao
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Business Review

In 2020, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic brought drastic
changes to the whole society and the pharmaceutical industry. At
the same time, the reform of the medical and health system has
deepened, and the State Council of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China issued the Opinions on Deepening the
Reform of the Medical Security System, which proposed to fully
establish a multi-level medical security system with basic medical
insurance as the main body, medical assistance as the backing,
supplementary medical insurance, commercial health insurance,
charitable donations and medical mutual assistance as the common
development by 2030. In the face of the new changes in the
policy environment and market environment and the impact of the
pandemic, the Group reinforced its confidence and focused on the
two major development directions of "giving priority to its own
products, profit and cash flow” and “diversified comprehensive
health business” to promote the stable, sustainable and sound
development of the Group.

For 2020, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
US$54.4 million (2019: US$54.3 million), representing an increase
of 0.2% from last year; profit from operations of approximately
US$12.9 million (2019: US$4.0 million), representing an increase
of 224.6% from last year. This was mainly because (1) the overall
sales of self-owned specialty pharmaceutical products with higher
gross profit margin increased as compared with last year, and the
strict cost control such as procurement bidding further reduced the
production cost, resulting in an increase in the overall gross profit
margin; (2) affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the policy of
continuing to targeted expense control, the Group reduced its offline
sales and distribution activities, resulting in a decrease in selling and
distribution expenses compared with last year; (3) this year’s provision
and write-off decreased significantly as compared with last year, and
the exchange gains recorded an increase due to the appreciation
of RMB against US dollar as compared with last year, resulting in a
decrease in administrative expenses. For 2020, the Group recorded a
net profit of approximately US$88.2 million (2019: US$18.3 million),
representing an increase of 380.7% from last year. This was mainly
due to the one-off net gain of approximately US$84.8 million arising
from the change in classification for Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“Starry”) and the related gain of Starry during the year.
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For 2020, revenue of the pharmaceutical segment amounted
to approximately US$51.5 million (2019: approximately US$50.6
million), representing an increase of 1.9% as compared with 2019;
gross profit amounted to approximately US$35.0 million (2019:
approximately US$33.0 million), representing an increase of 6.1%
as compared with 2019; and the segment profit amounted to
approximately US$21.3 million (2019: approximately US$16.7 million),
representing an increase of 28.0% as compared with 2019. The
increase in the revenue and profit of the pharmaceutical segment
was mainly due to the increase in gross profit and the decrease in
selling and distribution expenses compared with last year.

For 2020, revenue of the cosmetic product segment amounted to
approximately US$0.1 million (2019: approximately US$0.2 million),
representing a decrease of 28.6% as compared with 2019, mainly
due to the decrease in sales revenue from agency products; gross
profit amounted to approximately US$0.05 million (2019: gross loss
of approximately US$0.1 million), which was mainly the gross loss of
US$0.2 million arising out of the disposal of the inventory of agency
products in 2019; and the segment loss amounted to approximately
US$1.8 million (2019: approximately US$1.6 million) due to the
increase in selling expenses during the year for the expansion of sales
channels.

The Group developed the healthcare business with Natural
Dailyhealth Holdings Limited (“Natural Dailyhealth”) as a platform.
For 2020, the revenue of the healthcare business other than Natural
Dailyhealth amounted to approximately US$2.8 million (2019:
approximately US$3.5 million), representing a decrease of 22.2% as
compared with 2019; gross profit amounted to approximately US$0.1
million (2019: approximately US$0.5 million), representing a decrease
of 73.1% as compared with 2019; and the segment loss amounted
to approximately US$11,000 (2019: segment profit of approximately
US$0.2 million). The results of operations of the healthcare business
will be reflected in profit or loss of Natural Dailyhealth, an associate
of the Group. The gross profit from certain plant extract products
of Natural Dailyhealth improved and the losses narrowed during the
year, and the share of loss from Natural Dailyhealth in 2020 was
approximately US$0.2 million (2019: approximately US$0.9 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pharmaceutical segment

The reform of the medical and health system continued to deepen,
policies such as consistency evaluation was promoted, large-scale
procurement was implemented and continued to expand in scope,
together with medical insurance expense control, diagnosis related
groups (DRG), the pilot of diagnosis-intervention packet (DIP) and
medical representative registration system have profoundly affected
the development direction of the pharmaceutical industry. The Group
firmly believes that the graded diagnosis and treatment system will
become clearer with the deepening of medical reform.

The Group’s pharmaceutical sales remained stable during the year.
According to the characteristics of its product mix, the Group
has maintained steady growth in the sales of its core specialty
pharmaceutical products by penetrating into the market, exploring
graded hospitals and primary care terminals, strengthening academic
promotion and clinical application expansion, forming five sales
teams, namely, mature market team, emerging market team,
commercial distribution team, OTC team and Zhejiang Province
sales team and strictly controlling the selling expenses, and steadily
promoted its market layout from municipal to rural and community
hospitals and terminals.

In terms of research and development, the Group will continue
its established strategy to focus on developing and accelerating
the research and development of its own products and exclusive
products. The Group continues to increase its research and
development investment for core products including Pafulin in
terms of mechanism of action, new indications and product
internationalisation. It has successfully obtained the implied
permission for the clinical trials of primary Sjogren’s syndrome,
and has organised and carried out clinical trials in accordance with
national clinical trial requirements. At the same time, more attention
has been paid to the application of Chinese patent medicines.
China has implemented a major project to revitalise and develop
traditional Chinese medicine. The Group will grasp the national
policy guidance and gradually resume production and sell traditional
Chinese medicine products with independent production approvals.
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Cosmetic segment

In 2020, the Group was committed to strengthening its product
lines and investing resources in opening up sales channels. In terms
of strengthening the product portfolio, the Group have built up
our product series around collagen, and continued to promote the
research and development of San Parietti youth sport series on the
basis of San Parietti anti-aging series of products and San Parietti
Merce MM functional skin care series of products. The Group
believes that the development of its own products will optimise the
Group's product portfolio, and these distinctive and high-quality
collagen skin care products and self-operated store services will lay
the foundation for our business development. During the year, the
Group opened sales channels through the establishment of self-
operated exclusive skin care stores, which were delayed due to the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. In the second half of the year,
the Group established its own skin care experience stores in order to
attract franchise stores through the training and branding operation
model.

At the end of the year, the Group examined the business strategy
of its beauty business and planned to pool its resources on skin
care. At the same time, the Group planned to invest resources in
the development of high-tech skin care business, and to develop a
high-tech skin care product series focusing on repairing products
for oral use and external use, and to promote the brand through
the establishment of a sales and marketing team with professional
background.

Healthcare segment

In 2020, the Group continued to develop its healthcare business with
Natural Dailyhealth as a platform. In addition to actively developing
the plant extract business, new products were launched in the
healthcare products business during the year.

In terms of plant extract business, the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic delayed the development of new customers during the
year, especially the development of overseas customers. In this
context, Natural Dailyhealth firmly implemented its established
strategy, increased the market share of its core plant extract
products, and strengthened the control of raw material procurement
through parallel plans of incremental technical improvements,

production expansion and major customer expansion. During the
year, the sales of the plant extract business of Natural Dailyhealth
recorded growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of healthcare products, the e-commerce business was a
new business area this year. During the year, Natural Dailyhealth
established the brand “Natural Dailyhealth” to enter major online
e-commerce platforms and tried to rely on the first batch of
products to test the market and position the brand to those targeted
customers, hoping to achieve the two goals of breakthrough in
sales and brand promotion in 2021. In terms of beverage, Natural
Dailyhealth planned to collaborate with chain stores in pilot cities
to build a demonstration model and expand our product portfolio
to build our brand image and market competitiveness. In terms of
healthcare products, Natural Dailyhealth has applied to the National
Medical Products Administration for registration and approval of
certain healthcare products.

Investment

The Group disposed of a total of 6,149,867 shares in Starry in 2020
with total proceeds of approximately RMB467.2 million (equivalent to
approximately US$67.1 million). During the year, as the shares held
by the Group in Starry were less than 5%, the director appointed to
Starry by the Group retired from its board of directors. According to
applicable accounting standards, the Group had no right to exercise
significant influence on Starry since then. Therefore, Starry ceased
to be an associate and the interests in Starry were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). The
Group recorded a one-off gain on deemed disposal of an associate of
approximately US$45.6 million during the year ended 31 December
2020 as a result of the accounting reclassification.

The carrying value of the interests in Starry (i.e. financial assets
at FVTPL) as at 31 December 2020 in the consolidated statement
of financial position was calculated based on the closing price of
RMB65.83 per share available on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on
31 December 2020 in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards after the discussion with BDO Limited. As stated in the
interim report, with great fluctuation in the share price of Starry and
the reduction of shares in Starry that was subject to the rules of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, the value of the proceeds of the Group
from the actual disposal may fluctuate significantly as compared
with the carrying value of the interests in Starry as at 31 December
2020. If the stock price of Starry on a subsequent date or on the
actual disposal date is below the closing price as at 31 December
2020, there would be an unrealised/realised loss from financial assets
at FVTPL recognised in profit or loss subsequent to the reporting
period.
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The Group may further dispose of the shares of Starry under the
share reduction plan (“Share Reduction Plan”) as disclosed in the
announcement headed “Possible Very Substantial Disposal in relation
to Disposal of Starry Shares” of the Company dated 15 May 2020,
the announcement headed “Voluntary Announcement in relation
to Seventh Share Reduction Plan of Starry” of the Company
dated 3 November 2020 and the circular headed “Possible Very
Substantial Disposal: Disposal of Listed Securities of Zhejiang Starry
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Notice of Extraordinary General
Meeting” of the Company dated 24 June 2020, and subject
to prevailing market price of the shares of Starry and general
conditions of the stock market, the disposal mandate granted at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Group on 13 July 2020 as well
as the restrictions set out in the Share Reduction Plan. The Group will
comply with the applicable requirements under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”) accordingly and make further announcement(s)
in this regard as and when appropriate.

Financial Review

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately US$54.4
million (2019: approximately US$54.3 million) for the year ended
31 December 2020, representing an increase of 0.2% over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from
pharmaceuticals amounted to approximately US$51.5 million (2019:
approximately US$50.6 million), representing an increase of 1.9%
over last year. Revenue from cosmetics products amounted to
approximately US$0.1 million (2019: approximately US$0.2 million),
representing a decrease of 28.6% over last year. Revenue from
healthcare products amounted to approximately US$2.8 million
(2019: approximately US$3.5 million), representing a decrease of
22.2% over last year.

The Group's self-owned specialty pharmaceutical products (including
Pafulin and Sicorten Plus), recorded a revenue of approximately
US$47.1 million (2019: approximately US$42.7 million) representing
an increase of 10.3% over last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a gross
profit of approximately US$35.2 million (2019: approximately US$33.3
million), representing an increase of 5.6% over last year. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the overall gross profit margin was
64.7% (2019: 61.4%), representing an increase of 3.3% over last
year.

The increase in overall gross profit margin as compared to last year
was mainly because the sales proportion of pharmaceutical products,
which have higher gross profit margins, to the total revenue
increased. Also, the Group’s cost control policy, such as tendering
procurement, etc. further reduced the production costs.

Other income

Other income amounted to approximately US$2.1 million (2019:
approximately US$3.7 million) for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing a decrease of 44.3% over last year, which was mainly
because (i) the Group received a one-off compensation income of
approximately US$1.4 million in 2019 from a supplier for the early
termination of a distribution contract of an agency product; and (ii)
the government grants received in 2020 decreased by approximately
US$0.5 million compared to last year. Government grants received
by the Group primarily came from the local government and were
partly used as recognition of the Group'’s efforts in developing high-
technology pharmaceutical products.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the selling and distribution
expenses of the Group decreased by 13.2% to approximately
US$15.7 million from approximately US$18.0 million last year. The
proportion of the selling and distribution expenses of the Group
to the total revenue of the Group decreased by 4.5% to 28.8%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from 33.3% last year. The
decrease was mainly because of the continuous implementation of
the cost control policy and affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group reduced offline sales and distribution activities, resulting in
the decrease in selling and distribution expenses as compared with
last year.
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Management believed that the marketing model and academic
promotional advantages of pharmaceuticals and cosmetics products
are the key factors in maintaining the Group’s leading market
position. The Group endeavoured to enhance market recognition of
its pharmaceutical and cosmetics products and has actively launched
educational activities. By organising academic conferences across
China, doctors and users were able to have a better understanding
of the pharmacology, efficacy and benefits of these products.

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, administrative expenses
amounted to approximately US$7.9 million (2019: approximately
US$15.3 million), representing a decrease of 48.0% over last year.
The proportion of the administrative expenses of the Group to the
total revenue of the Group decreased by 13.5% to 14.6% for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from 28.1% last year.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2020, finance costs of the Group
decreased by approximately US$2.4 million. This was mainly due to
the decrease of average balance of bank borrowings.

Share of post-tax result of associates

Share of post-tax result of associates for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately US$0.1 million (2019:
approximately US$1.3 million).

Income tax expense

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo Liwah") has
obtained the certification as a high-technology enterprise and enjoys
a preferential income tax rate of 15%. According to the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the PRC and the implementation rules of the
income tax law, except for Ningbo Liwah, the enterprise income tax
rate for the Group’s other PRC subsidiaries was 25%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately US$88.2 million,
representing an increase by approximately US$69.9 million from
approximately US$18.3 million last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group primarily finances its working capital and other capital
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and
resorts to external financing including bank borrowings from time
to time when the operating cash flow is insufficient to meet capital
requirements.

As at 31 December 2020, net current assets and current ratio of
the Group were approximately US$138.5 million (31 December 2019:
US$31.0 million) and 3.7 (31 December 2019: 1.4) respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately US$83.4 million (31 December 2019:
approximately US$20.4 million). As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had pledged bank deposits of approximately US$14.1 million
(31 December 2019: approximately US$27.4 million) to secure bank
borrowings.

The Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately US$31.4 million (31 December 2019: approximately
US$60.5 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was in a net cash and bank
balance position (31 December 2019: net debt-to-equity ratio was
12.6%, calculated by net debt (borrowings minus cash and bank
balances) at the end of the year over total equity).

The exposure of the Group’s transactional currency to foreign
currency risk was minimal as most of the financial assets and liabilities
held by the subsidiaries of the Group are denominated in the
respective functional currency of the subsidiaries. The Group currently
does not have any foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management would closely monitor foreign exchange exposure and
consider hedging foreign currency exposure when necessary.
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Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank deposits and bills receivables
in an aggregate carrying amount of approximately US$25.3 million
(31 December 2019: certain bank deposits and bills receivables in
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately US$34.1 million and
Starry’s listed shares with market value amounting to approximately
US$25.6 million) were pledged to secure banking facilities of the
Group and bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements
amounted to approximately US$1.1 million (31 December 2019:
US$1.1 million).

Financial guarantee issued

The Group has issued a guarantee to a bank in respect of borrowings
made by Jilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology Company Limited
(“Jilin Haizi"), a fellow subsidiary of the Group. Under the guarantee,
the Group is liable for a maximum of RMB130,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$19,924,000) borrowings drawn by lJilin Haizi
from the bank. The maximum liability of the Group at 31 December
2020 under the guarantee issued represents the amount drawn
down by Jilin Haizi of RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$19,924,000) (31 December 2019: RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$18,635,000)). As at 31 December 2020, provision
for financial guarantee contract of US$0.9 million (31 December
2019: Nil) was recognised.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has disposed
of a total of 6,149,867 shares in Starry via on-market sales on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, at the average price of RMB75.98 per
share and resulting in a realised gain from financial assets at FVTPL
(net of transaction costs and other tax) of approximately US$25.3
million. After the partial disposal, the Group’s holding in Starry has
reduced from 4.0% to 1.3%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Human resources

The Group had over 661 employees as at 31 December 2020
with employee costs of approximately US$14.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. Staff remuneration of the Group,
including salary, allowances, medical insurance and provident fund,
is determined with reference to individual performance, professional
qualifications, experience in the industry and relevant market trends.

Salaries of employees of the Group have been maintained at a
competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close reference
to the relevant labour market and economic condition. The Group
provides career advancement training in the form of internal courses
and workshops for the staff and encourages them to participate in
training programmes related to the Group’s business.
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Introduction

In order to be in compliance with the requirements as set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide under
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the
Group herein report the environmental, social and governance report
("ESG Report”) for the year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020, to report practices, performance and development of the
Group in corporate social responsibility in 2020 to our shareholders,
staff, clients, partners and other stakeholders.

Strategy and Management of Environmental, Social
and Governance Matters

With the continuous development and expansion of the scale
of enterprise, the Group is gradually integrating the sustainable
development strategy into its overall development strategy system.

A A BB
FBEMERASEMNEL  REMXE

EFES:

APIRBEKFMERZEE  BHRHER HhXE- REmMm BBHETENHEBEES  H
RHRELRHFHRAEMEE THEA RAENR BRI - REEXBOHHE
BERFZHNZAME ° BREEK BERR TFMEIXN
BEHR®m -
Our mission: Our vision: Our strategy:

Provide customers with quality
products and services to improve
people’s health and quality of life, while
maximising the investment return to
shareholders and satisfy the personal
development needs of the staff.
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To become a
enterprise
industry.

To develop and promote the distinctive
products of pharmaceutical, healthcare
and cosmetic, and promote the
continuous and steady growth of
its business through merger and

reputable
in the healthcare

acquisition, integration, international
cooperation and continuous
innovation, and realise the win-win

value of shareholders, customers and
employees.
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Stakeholders

BT ITEEERE

Governmental and industrial regulators

REE

Investors

BEPEHEEE

Customers and consumers

e
Suppliers

Participation of stakeholders

According to the operation situation of the Company, our
stakeholders are mainly governmental and industrial regulators,
investors, customers and consumers, suppliers, employees, the
community, industry peers, media and the general public. In 2020,
we communicated with stakeholders mainly by the following
methods to better fulfill our social responsibilities:

FlZ=EESTBEBAR
Methods of communication with stakeholders
BN2EBER BT EEEITERE

Government visits, supporting government projects and industry
collaboration

EFxe FERERE SRR AFEKEH  ®u - B EHE

Board of directors, information disclosure, conference exchange,
ordinary visits, website, mail, telephone

BMMNE FEMLTE TPRE -

Academic seminars, new product launching conferences, customer
service, telephone consultations

HEREENE RBBREEY  FEFE

Supplier management system, procurement tender mechanism,
annual evaluation

'EE'-‘
uuu
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Employees
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Community
EE$
Industry peers
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Media and general public
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Methods of communication with stakeholders

Ig BIRKXRARE ZHEI 22TR XBEH #F
Bir THFFR
Trade union, employee congress, multi-type training, safety

management, cultural and sports activities, health examination, paid
annual leave

N EE - EFEEED

Community activities, volunteer work
TEAM TEREBESH

Trade organisations, forums and conferences
EEWE  HEBER  HRBEBEEE - B

Information disclosure, public opinion monitoring, media

communication mechanism, website

Environment

The Group pays attention to the issue of pollutant emissions in the
course of production on an ongoing basis. It strictly observes the
laws and regulations of the country and has formulated the following
measures in an effort to combat the emission of various pollutants:

1. Ningbo Liwah actively promotes energy restructuring. Since
2013, it has substituted oil with natural gas as the fuel for
its boilers used for production two years earlier than required
by the local policy. Ningbo Liwah also added residual heat
recovery units and paid attention to the use of steam at all
times. When excessive steam flow was identified, Ningbo Liwah
will contact all departments that use steam and arrange staff
to check if the steam valves of equipment are properly closed
to reduce unnecessary steam waste, natural gas usage and
carbon dioxide emissions.

and

2. Compulsory categorisation of domestic, industrial

hazardous wastes is introduced and staff is encouraged to
categorise wastes autonomously and scientifically. An external
treatment company is regularly engaged to transport and
dispose of such wastes.
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The Group stresses the importance of hazardous wastes
management and puts in place a series of management
procedures for production, temporary storage, transfer,
warehousing, handling and filing as well as a dedicated
warehouse for hazardous wastes. In order to prevent the
leakage of hazardous wastes from the warehouse into the river,
the warehouse has been renovated to avoid the wastes leaking
into the river.

As for sewage treatment, Ningbo Liwah has installed a
dedicated sewage treatment facility. By separating rainwater
and sewage, Ningbo Liwah has ensured that water directly
discharged to the river is rainfall. Sewage disposed of by
treatment plant would entirely meet the discharge standard of
municipal pipelines.

Regarding waste gas treatment, raw materials storage
and transmission segments, Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical
Company Limited Zhenhai Branch (“Liwah Zhenhai Branch”)
reduces the production of organic waste gas in the storage
and transmission segments through centralised storage and
pipe transmission. Furthermore, in the exhaust gas and
sewage treatment segments, various devices have been
installed to mitigate the impact of waste gas produced on
the environment. In addition, by engaging independent third
parties, a work plan is developed every year, conducting regular
examinations and timely repair, thereby effectively reducing the
emission of organic waste gas and monitoring the effectiveness
of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) emission reduction
measures.

In connection with management, Liwah Zhenhai Branch has
complied with the requirements of local environmental bureaus
to continue to enhance enterprise VOCs emission reduction
measures. Meanwhile, 1SO14001 internal and external audits
are conducted annually to improve the effectiveness of organic
waste gas recovery equipment and exhaust gas absorption
devices from different perspectives based on the annual
performance targets.
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Regarding solid wastes, Liwah Zhenhai Branch has
strengthened the cooperation between recycling enterprises to
alleviate the pressure of general solid wastes disposal on the
environment and recycle more resources by adopting diversified
disposal methods such as organic fertilisers and biomass fuel
granules production.

The Group specially sets up an environmental protection
and energy management office to constantly monitor the
Company’s daily energy consumption and environmental
protection. The Group monitors its emission indicators
stringently according to the requirements of emission volume
and standards under relevant laws and regulations, which
primarily include:

. Environmental Protection Law of the PRC
. Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
o Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by

Solid Wastes of the PRC

. Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

. The Law on the Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution

of the PRC

o Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards (Ningbo local
standards)

. Air Pollutant Emission Standards for Boilers (Ningbo local
standards)

° Contingency Plans for Environmental Emergencies (filed

to Ningbo Environmental Protection Bureau)
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Raw materials used by the Group for production primarily include
various extracts and Chinese herbal medicines, and the production of
which may have very minor impact on the environment and natural
resources. The Group actively fulfills its social responsibilities and
always follows the philosophy of maintaining the balance between
development and environment protection by employing various
resources reasonably to protect the environment. The Group abides
by the Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the PRC stringently
and has established relevant systems to further the goals of energy
saving, consumption reduction, pollution mitigation and effectiveness
enhancement with the aim of minimising the impact of its production
and operation on the ecological system. The Group also deepens
its collaboration with recycling enterprises to increase the recycling
value of solid dreg wastes.

The Group advocates green production with the goals of energy
saving, consumption reduction and pollution mitigation in mind. The
Group reduces the use of resources by optimising its production
process and improving its technologies, together with the use of
LED lighting, installation of steam timers, recovery of purified and
concentrated water, adoption of variable frequency control for large
equipment and implementation of residual heat recovery for boiler
water. In addition, the Group also encourages its staff to participate
in the design of energy saving solutions and continues to raise their
awareness of environmental protection. Waste water, waste gas
from boilers and noise produced by the Group are all tested against
relevant standards and requirements. The Group has carried out
automation upgrading on the air conditioning and boiler systems of
its plants. The substitution of human adjustment by auto-induction
has released the labour force as well as reduced the energy waste
caused by human adjustment.

The Group also supports a green office objective by merging low-
carbon operation into its production process and aims at low
carbonisation, paperless and energy saving by reducing the use of
natural resources and energy such as fossil fuels, water, electricity
and timbers.
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Major emissions during the reporting period are as follows:
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autoimmune rheumatic diseases and become the number one brand
for basic medication in this field. It will also have an active presence
in cosmetic, healthcare products, precision medicine and other fields
and strive to become a diversified outstanding company in the
comprehensive health industry. Professionalism, internationalisation,
continuous innovation, and vitality are our corporate culture, and it
is our relentless pursuit to help people live a happy and healthy life.
The Company promotes team cooperation, and has defined clear
individual responsibilities and established values of responsibility,
pragmatism, open-mindedness and sharing. It aims to provide its
customers with high-quality products, to create high-quality life for
its employees, to obtain high-quality investments for its shareholders
and to diligently perform its corporate responsibilities for the society.
It inherits and introduces innovations on traditional medicine theory
in order to develop and lead the future healthcare business.
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Employee Guidelines

On the principle of respect and fairness, the Company is committed
to creating a harmonious and healthy working environment, and
fair and developmental workplace atmosphere, and also follows
the above principles in providing employment opportunities,
remuneration, training, performance assessment and promotion, and
has never discriminated on the grounds of gender, age, ethnicity,
religion, culture and educational background. It is committed to
providing all employees with an equal development platform and
protecting their lawful interests, and strives to create a healthy
and harmonious working environment. The Group’s employment
policies strictly followed the prevailing laws and regulations regarding
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

The labour contract of the Group is based on the Labour Law
promulgated by the state and the relevant labour laws and
regulations of the local governments, and it shall have immediate
legal effect once signed. The Group’s standards for staff recruitment
and deployment are in strict compliance with the relevant labour
laws and regulations of the PRC. The Company is mainly subject to
the following laws and regulations:

. Labour Law of the PRC

Labour Contract Law of the PRC

Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors

Provisions on the Prohibition against the Use of Child Labour
(State Council Order No. 364)

o Special Provisions on Labour Protection of Female Workers in
Zhejiang Province

o Standards for Distribution of High-temperature Subsidies in
Zhejiang Province

In 2020, the Company did not violate any of the above laws and
regulations.
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Employment Policy

The Group aims to attract excellent talent to the Group through
recruitment and selection and provides multiple career development
opportunities for internal employees, jointly contributing to the
development of the Group. The Group pays attention to and
understands professional development and expertise of each talent,
assigns talent to appropriate posts to the extent possible and cares
for its employees to achieve the goal of joint development of the
employees and the Group.

The Company provides scientific performance and development
management to each employee, effectively links strategic objectives
of the Group to the objectives of the individual and the team for
quantitative management, and ensures individual development and
growth of the employee as well as achievement of performance
target.

The Group annually adjusts the remuneration of the employees
according to comprehensive performance, current remuneration,
remuneration level in the market, business environment, and
inflation rate and other information to ensure the Company’s overall
compensation has certain market competitiveness. The Company also
makes contributions to pension, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance
and housing fund for its employees in accordance with national
regulations. Regardless of nationality, religious belief and gender, the
Group signs written labour contracts with all employees. In order to
protect collective rights and interests of the employees, Collective
Wage Agreement and Collective Labour Agreement are signed by
labour union and the Group through coordination.

The Group has been committed to selecting, motivating and retaining
excellent employees in a forward-looking way. Organisational
development and talent management of the Group focus on
continuously providing employees with a sound training development
system and reasonable performance evaluation, formulating a
scientific career development channel, and concerning about staff
recognition and motivation, so as to provide long-term impetus for
learning and development, and ultimately achieve the long-term goal
of building the capacity of the whole organisation.

Every progress made by the Group is closely related to the efforts
of its employees. The Group also allows its employees to share the
fruits of success in its development in order to ensure that employees
can receive values fairly based on their contributions.
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Working Hours

In order to protect labour and rest rights and interests of the
employees and help its employees strike a balance between work and
life, the working hours of the Group’s employees is in compliance
with the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC and the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC. Under the working system of the Company,
administrative and managerial staff work 40 hours per week and
production staff work in shifts and take turns to have holidays.
Sales staff work irregular hours. If any employee is required to work
overtime, he/she will be compensated correspondingly by the Group
in accordance with the relevant PRC labour laws and regulations. The
employees’ days off and statuary holidays are in compliance with
the requirements of the national labour laws.

Staff Structure

We encourage and respect diversity. The Group has employees of
different genders, ages, skills, educational background, industry
experience and other qualities to achieve an optimum structure and
balance.

Rights and Benefits of Employees

While creating economic benefits, the Group also actively protects
and safeguards the interests of its employees and improves the
welfare of its employees. It attaches great importance to improving
the sense of belonging of its employees and increasing its cohesion.

All employees of the Group are entitled to paid leaves. In addition
to the statutory holidays, its employees also receive bonuses,
allowances, subsidies and benefits provided by the Group in
accordance with the relevant systems of the PRC and the Group.
In addition to basic medical insurance contributions, the Group also
makes commercial accident insurance and supplementary pension
contributions as well as provides unionised mutual aid hospitalisation
insurance for critical illness for its employees and medical insurance
cover for its female staff so as to complement the basic medical and
pension insurance contributions. Furthermore, the Group reimburses
those employees who meet specified conditions for a certain
proportion of their medical expenses to reduce their burden. During
the reporting period, the Group visited its sick and retired employees
and provided them with care and assistance in the form of money
and supplies.
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The Group has established a labour union and a workers’
representative assembly in accordance with the law, aiming to
protect the lawful interests of all of its employees and provide free-
flowing communication channels for its employees. In addition, the
Group keeps every employee informed of its latest development and
actively listens to their opinions and suggestions through its office
automation platform (the “OA Platform”), corporate emails, internal
periodicals, bulletin boards and questionnaires, and takes relevant
remedial measures to tackle problems that are of concerns to its
employees in order to protect their interests.

In order to enrich the leisure activities of its employees, the Group
has established a badminton association, a football association
and a basketball association, providing its employees with sports
venues and entertainment facilities including basketball courts
and badminton halls for weekly activities, and holds amateur
team competitions with Group companies, business partners and
communities from time to time. Moreover, it publishes the “New
Liwah"” internal monthly magazine, and operates a Wechat public
account named “Gather at Lansen” to enrich the cultural life of its
employees. During the reporting period, the Group had organised
activities including basketball games, badminton games, hiking,
African drum activity, which have built a platform for its employees
to exhibit themselves and conduct communication while relieving
their pressure and enriching their leisure time.

Staff Health and Safety

Employees are the most important assets and resources of the
Group. As such, the Group always puts the health and safety of its
employees in the first place. It protects the production safety of its
staff, and is committed to providing its employees with healthcare
as well as a safe, healthy and protected working environment.

The Group's production workshops are all installed with equipment
for dust, noise and poison protection. Signs of dangerous goods
are set up, and the use of those goods is regulated. For special
equipment which may cause occupational injuries, periodic
maintenance and annual check-up would be performed and those
equipment can only be used by authorised personnel. For toxic
and harmful workplaces that may cause danger, warning signs are
set up and contingency plans are formulated. Its production staff
members are provided with appliances for labour protection including
protection equipment to minimise the damages to the health of its
employees. Besides, the Group holds annual drills for fire evacuation,
self-help, first aid and escape on a regular basis to enhance the
awareness of safety and self-protection of its employees and prevent
accidents at work.
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The Group has formulated the Employee Health Management
Procedures and the Hygiene and Personal Health Condition
Management Procedures, and organises all employees to receive
regular comprehensive health examinations every vyear. For its
employees at positions with occupational hazards, the Group strictly
implements the requirements of the Law of the PRC on Prevention
of Occupational Diseases and relevant labour protection regulations,
and strives to lower the incidence of occupational diseases through
regular health examinations and resting.

The Group made every effort to improve its employees’ working
environment and facilities and had been dedicated to providing a
warm and comfortable working environment for all of its employees.
The Group advocates smoke-free office and strictly prohibits smoking
in the factory area. In addition, the Group has canteens at different
workplaces, providing various healthy food with rich nutrients every
day.

Staff Training and Development

The Group values talent and provides a platform for its development
by conforming to the philosophy of common development of the
Group and employees. In 2020, it continued to build a learning-
oriented organisation and promote an all-round talent training system
covering new employee induction, special production management
training, special sales and marketing training, general skills training,
a leadership development plan, team building training, etc, which
had produced positive results.

In 2020, in addition to the series of training organised by the Human
Resources Department, the pharmaceutical, cosmetics and healthcare
units also organised internal training, mainly focusing on new
employee induction training, management development training,
professional skills and continuing education. A total of more than
660 people participated in the training, and around 9.5 hours of
training per person, which comprehensively improved the business
standards and comprehensive quality of employees.
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Case: Training of New Staff of Hospital Sales Team and Commercial
Distribution and OTC Team in 2020

In August and September 2020, the Group organised training for
new staff of the hospital sales team and the commercial distribution
and OTC teams respectively. More than 50 new staff of the hospital
sales team and all staff of the commercial distribution and OTC teams
nationwide participated in the training for new staff.

The training of for new staff lasted for 3 days and consisted of two
parts: new staff induction training and new staff sales skills training,
aiming at providing new staff with a comprehensive understanding
of the Company’s profile, development history, corporate culture
and development prospects, familiarising them with the Company’s
rules and regulations, improving their overall perspective on the
latest pharmaceutical industry situation, enhancing their business
promotion skills, deepening their mastery of product knowledge and
related medical knowledge, and improving their cohesion and sense
of belonging to the Company.

In addition, for the new staff training for the commercial distribution
and OTC teams, the Company also invited the Secretary General of
the 2nd DTP Committee to deliver a skill training on “Prescription
Drug Marketing by Multiple Channels”, which mainly focused on
the in-depth analysis and explanation of the industry development
trend of prescription drugs, the retailing operation of prescription
drugs, the internet marketing model for prescription drugs and the
negotiation skills for target customers in sales activities, etc., and by
taking the pilot operation in Zhejiang Province and case studies of
practical projects as examples. Participants can understand how to
enhance product volume growth through different channels.

Mr. Chen Li, Chief Executive Officer of the Group, gave a lecture on
“Live up to the original aspiration, committed to our mission” which
included the current external environment of the pharmaceutical
market, the unremitting efforts of various departments to achieve
the strategic planning objectives of the Group during the COVID-19
pandemic, combined with the actual achievements of the Group.
He gave lessons on loyalty, direction, gratitude and compliance, and
sent a message to the new staff to be dedicated, willing to take up
responsibility and be grateful, and strive to become an outstanding
member of the Lansen team.
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Supply Chain Management

By always adhering to the principle of “Quality is the life of a
brand and Responsibility is the guarantee of quality”, the Group has
been actively developing cooperative relationships with suppliers,
distributors and customers. Under the premise of rationally reducing
the operating costs, improving the quality of products and services,
and reducing cooperation risks, the Group gives full play to the
important role of the supply chain management department in
purchasing order, warehousing and logistics management, sales and
delivery etc., so as to establish the Company’s brand image and help
its development.

The Group's current business scope includes pharmaceuticals,
medical devices and cosmetic products etc., and has obtained all
relevant and valid business licences approved by relevant government
regulatory authorities. In order to ensure the efficient and effective
operation of all links in the supply chain, the Group has established
a matching supply system and processes based on the Company’s
product sales expectations, and has formed a relatively complete
supply chain management system combined with the Quality Control
Department'’s supervision of suppliers, distributors and customers.
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In terms of supplier management, the Group has formulated
Suppliers and Products Selection and Management System, Newly-
operated Suppliers Selection and Management System, New Product
Selection and Management System, Procurement Management
System etc. in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
such as the Drug Administration Law of the PRC, Good Manufacture
Practice of Medical Products, Pharmacopoeia of the PRC, Good
Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products, Regulation on the
Supervision and Administration of Medical Devices and Good Supply
Practice for Medical Devices. For the firstly-purchased products,
a comprehensive qualification review of the relevant supplier is
required by the Supply Chain Management Department and the
Quality Control Department. After approval, the relevant supplier can
be categorised as a newly-cooperated enterprise, and subsequent
purchases will then be arranged by the Supply Chain Management
Department. At the same time, GMP/GSP computer management
system automatically monitors the validity period of the licences
of the suppliers. It will issue early warning when the expiration
date is near and will automatically freeze the cooperation after the
expiration date. The licence information needs to updated before
it can be unfrozen and subsequent procurement plan can be
implemented. In addition, the Quality Control Department and the
Supply Chain Management Department conduct quality reviews of
suppliers at least once a year, establish supplier quality review files,
and determine the retention or cancellation of supplier qualifications
in accordance with the Standard Operating Procedures for Supplier
Selection and Evaluation, so as to finally compile the Qualified
Suppliers List and constantly improve it according to the actual
situation. For the supply of any material, the Group guarantees
no less than two qualified suppliers to ensure the timely supply of
materials in the event of an emergency. In terms of the supply of
key materials, centralised bidding and procurement is adopted, and
suppliers are hierarchically managed to ensure reasonable resource
allocation and maximise the benefits of supply chain management.
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The Group also conducts annual quality appraisal on all of
its products. It has signed Quality Assurance Agreement with
pharmaceutical suppliers and other related product suppliers as well
as service companies, respectively. It also assesses the quality control
systems of suppliers, distributors and customers every year, and pays
close attention to quality information on the website of national
regulatory department. If the supplier does not pass the assessment
or serious quality issues are identified, the Group will suspend the
supplier’s product provisions and its downstream customers’ product
delivery immediately and freeze their qualification of procurement
and supply in its system to ensure the quality and safety of our
products.

The Group has enhanced the internal audit of its supply chain
management in 2020 and has rectified the identified deficiencies
and omissions in the daily management according to audit reports
to ensure the efficient operation of the supply chain management
system, and at the same time conducted centralised bidding and
procurement of products and services that meet the Group’s bidding
and procurement requirements.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group procured raw
materials, auxiliary materials, packaging materials and finished
products from 97 suppliers with geographical distribution as follows:
1 in Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macau, 58 in East China, 7 in South
China, 11 in North China, 12 in Central China, 3 in Southwest China,
4 in Northwest China and 1 in Northeast China. Among them, 86
were raw materials suppliers, 3 were pharmaceutical suppliers, 1 was
medical device supplier and 5 were cosmetic suppliers. The above
suppliers all passed our supplier and product qualification assessment
and supplier quality management system appraisal.
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Product Quality

Policies, Laws and Regulations Concerning the Industry

The main products operated by the Group including pharmaceutical
products, medical devices and cosmetic products, etc. are all in strict
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations of the PRC
regarding product safety, which mainly include:

o Drug Administration Law of the PRC

o Rules for Implementation of Drug Administration Law of the
PRC

o Law of the PRC on Product Quality

. Good Manufacture Practice of Medical Products (China Food
and Drug Administration)

o Measures for the Reporting and Monitoring of Adverse Drug
Reactions (Ministry of Health Order No. 81)

o Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products
o Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices

o Good Supply Practice for Medical Devices
o Regulations on Cosmetics Hygiene Supervision

The Group markets and promotes its products in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations in order to further protect the rights
and interests of consumers and our brand image. The Group strictly
abides by relevant laws and regulations such as the Advertisement
Law of the PRC, Measures for the Administration of Medical
Advertisements, the Drug Administration Law of the PRC, Measures
on the Examination and Approval of Medical Advertisements, so
as to ensure the advertisement and marketing activities meet the
requirements of such laws and regulations and to prevent the
occurrence of illegal advertisement which may bring adverse impact
to the Group and its brand image.
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Quality Management System

The Group is committed to ensuring the quality and safety of its
products. It provides safe and effective products for the society
based on the principle of producing medicine conscientiously and
steadfastly. Especially most of the products of the Group are
medicines. To ensure the quality and safety of products is the top
priority of the Group. It will strictly comply with relevant laws and
regulations, standardise its management, and avoid any violations of
laws and regulations. The Group is properly organised with various
departments, each of which has its own responsibility for quality
and has quality control personnel with appropriate qualification who
will be responsible for the training and appraisal of relevant staff.
We have formulated a product management quality control system
and operation code for our products in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations of the PRC and will make relevant amendments
according to applicable laws and regulations and the actual practice
of the Group.

The Group is equipped with storage and logistics equipment
and facilities and computer management system which meet the
requirements of GSP, and would regularly check such cold chain
equipment.

As a large pharmaceutical company integrating product research and
development, production and sales, the Group has always taken
“quality oriented, standardisation first, continuous improvement,
customer satisfaction” as its quality approach. The Group strictly
complies with the relevant requirements of GMP management
standard of drugs and strictly controls the quality throughout the
production process. In 2020, the qualified rate of external sampling
of the Group’s products was 100%.

The Group has established a quality risk management system to
ensure a comprehensive quality risk assessment for various aspects,
including product research and development, supplier selection,
procurement process control, acceptance and storage management,
production process, inspection process and sales process, to ensure
the stability of the product life cycle (from research and development
to pulling off shelf of product). Quality control personnel has absolute
discretion to refuse any unqualified products identified during the
manufacturing process so as to ensure all products met relevant
quality requirements before leaving the factory.
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The Group has obtained the following certifications:

BRERE
Issuing Agency

BEXEmEmEEERR
China Food and Drug Administration

I 38 AR FEIT(SGS)
Société Générale de Surveillance (SGS)

BB R mEY R 3 5 (MFDS)
Ministry of Food and Drug Safety

Quality Control in Operation

The Group has implemented a GMP management model for raw
material procurement, supplier management and product sales,
and has adopted a strict inspection and acceptance system for the
processes of procurement, delivery and storage of raw materials.
Regular supplier audit is performed to ensure reliable source of
raw materials. The production process strictly abides by GMP
standard management, and internal control standard management is
implemented for products, ensuring products leaving the factory fully
meet the quality requirements. The Group has formulated relevant
product recall procedures to make sure that products which have
safety defects and may endanger or adversely impact the users’
health can be recalled in a timely manner so as to ensure the safety
and effectiveness of the products for the consumers. No recall due
to product quality issue has occurred since January 2020.

Through the valuable system certification, the Company

continuously improves its quality system, keeps up with the trend of
internationalisation, and ensures that it is in line with international
standards.
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Enquiry, complaint and recall management in relation to
product quality

Our quality management department is responsible for enquiries
and complaints handling regarding product quality. Consumers or
downstream customers may give feedback and make complaints
through the Company's sales personnel or customer service
department. The quality management department will inspect and
verify the causes based on the feedback before making a reply.
As for production issues, the quality management department will
forward the issues to suppliers or manufacturing enterprises for
their inspection and reply. Preventive and follow-up measures will be
formulated for repetitive issues. Customer complaint handling rate
in 2020 was 100%.

Intellectual Property Rights Protection

For the products of the Group, pharmaceuticals and medical devices
come with electronic monitoring codes and anti-tampering codes
respectively, which can be used to track the products and prevent
counterfeit products from using the Company’s brand. Meanwhile,
the Group has always attached great importance to the maintenance
and protection of intellectual property rights. The Group has been
registering its trademarks and brands and actively declaring patent
protection for years. Generally, the Group applied for new patents
every year and possesses 76 registered trademarks and 19 valid
patented inventions to date. The Company has enhanced its market
competitiveness through enhancing the awareness of intellectual
property rights and innovation and creativity, with an aim to escort
the sustainable development of the enterprise.

Consumer Privacy Protection

The Group respects consumer privacy and would answer consumers’
enquiries truthfully while committed to keeping the contact
information, addresses and personal information of consumers
confidential.
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Anti-corruption

The Group has established rules that no bribes, commissions,
rebates, illegal political donations or other improper payments shall
be provided or given to any person. Business entertainment shall be
legal, reasonable and in compliance with the codes for customers and
the relevant departments. In order to avoid conflicts of interest, any
financial activities or other activities not conducted in the course of
performing duties for the Group must be legal and shall not conflict
with the performance of duties for the Group’s employees. None of
the Group’s financial resources, assets or influence shall be abused,
and its good reputation shall not be tarnished. The Company will
promptly report any person suspected of a crime to the relevant
departments.

In addition to ensuring the staff’s integrity and discipline in system
development, the established internal supervision system also
produces restraint to employees’ unlawful acts. An internal audit
committee has been established under the board of directors, which
is fully and independently responsible for supervising the internal
audit of the Group. An internal audit department has also been
established to monitor the reconciliation of book accounts and actual
situations, safety of assets, economic benefits as well as other related
economic activities and provide risk alert from the perspective of
risk control, so as to effectively control and lower operational risks.
During the year, for the sake of system implementation, the internal
audit department of the Group from time to time conducts random
inspections on whether employees have exercised self-restraint in
light of the Group’s anti-corruption rules and regulations for serving
as a warning to the staff. In addition, the Group strictly prevents
unlawful operations including bribery, fraud and corruption and
facilitates the operation of the Group in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations.

During the reporting period, these rules and systems played a positive
role of control and prevention in risk control and anti-corruption
management of the Group, and no major defects were identified.
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Social Welfare

Becoming a corporate citizen with a sense of social responsibility is
the cultural philosophy that the Group has been following. Helping
the poor and supporting the public welfare undertakings are also
one of the significant social responsibilities. The Group corporate
actively contributes to the society during its continuous development.
To promote social welfare is not just an obligation of the Group,
but also necessary for its growth and development. The Group has
achieved a high degree of integration of its operation with its social
responsibilities, and actively participates in promoting social welfare
with the aim of “taking responsibility”.

Since its inception, the Group has established funds under its
name and special scholarship funds, and has actively participated
in “city sunshine” ([RI3[5) activities, which were utilised to help
with the learning, life and medical treatment of the children of
migrant workers each year. It vigorously participates in environment
protection and green public welfare activities including environmental
improvement, sewage treatment, flood prevention, water drainage,
water supply and water saving. While repaying the society, the
Group also actively guides its employees to participate in various
charity organisations and create a spirit of taking pride in becoming
volunteers.
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Executive Managing Director

Mr. CHEN Li, age 59, is the Executive Managing Director and Chief
Executive officer of the Group. Mr. Chen has over 25 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Chen has been General Manager of Alfa Wassermann China
since July 2014. Mr. Chen worked for a number of internationally
renowned pharmaceutical companies in the past. He was previously
General Manager of China with Abbot from June 2009 to November
2012 and Assistant Vice President of Wyeth Pharmaceuticals Shanghai
from 2004 to June 2009. During the period from 1992 to 2004, Mr.
Chen also worked in GlaxoSmithKline, Hoechst China, Bayer China,
BASF Knoll China and Roussel China. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Medicine (Doctor of Internal Medicine) from Tongji Medical
University in 1983.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Zhen Tao, age 67, is a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company. He is also executive Chairman and is the
Chairman of the Executive and Remuneration Committees of Cathay
International Holdings Limited (“Cathay”), a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange and founder of the Cathay Group, which
has over 20 years’ history of business and investment focused on
the PRC. He was born and educated in Beijing. He graduated from
the Beijing University of Technology in 1982. He also has a degree
in Business Administration. Mr. Wu acted as a senior executive in
government scientific institutes in the PRC from 1982 to 1985 and
as managing director of two newly established state owned financial
institutions in the PRC from 1986 to 1989. Since 1988 Mr. Wu has,
through companies, invested in and developed the Landmark Hotel
(now called Crowne Plaza Hotel & Suites Landmark Shenzhen) in
Shenzhen and established the Cathay International Water Limited
group of companies, which made substantial investments in public
utilities and infrastructure in the PRC. Strategic shareholders were JP
Morgan, Singapore Technologies, UBS, Banco Santander and Nomura
JAFCO, and this business was once the largest foreign investor in
water and waste water treatment projects in the PRC with net assets
of over US$1 billion.
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Mr. Stephen Burnau HUNT, age 81, is a non-executive Director
and former chairman of our Company. Mr. Hunt joined the Cathay
International Group in 1992. He is the deputy chairman and a non-
executive director of Cathay International Holdings Limited. Mr. Hunt
was formerly the managing director of Aliant Capital, an investment
company in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt, a US citizen, spent 24 years with
Bank of America in international management and lending positions.
Mr. Hunt was senior vice president and area general manager for
Bank of America located in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt was president
of the American Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong in 1989. In
1990, Mr. Hunt was appointed to the Hong Kong Government's
International Business Committee, and from 1989 to 1991 was a
member of the Hong Kong Government’s Advisory Committee on
Free Trade. Mr. Hunt is currently a trustee of the American Chamber
of Commerce’s Charitable Foundation. Mr. Hunt also served as a
member of the Main Board and GEM Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange from November 2004 to June 2011. From 2012 to 2015,
Mr. Hunt was a director and Chief Executive Officer of Solar Plus (HK)
Limited, a private investment company incorporated in Hong Kong.
Mr. Hunt obtained a bachelor of arts degree from Duke University
in 1961 and a master’s degree in international affairs from Columbia
University in 1963.

Ms. LIU Xuezi, age 44, is a non-executive Director of our Company.
Ms. Liu joined Cathay International Holdings Limited in 2002
and worked in the corporate development department and asset
management department, as vice president and co-head of asset
management department. She is currently vice president and head of
company secretarial centre of the Group. Ms. Liu has over 14 years
of experience in mergers and acquisitions and asset management.
Before joining Cathay, Ms. Liu was head of the Asia-Pacific region
of a US network infrastructure company, responsible for the start-up
and expansion of the company’s business in Asia. Ms. Liu graduated
from the School of Economics of University of San Francisco, majoring
in business administration, in 1999.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael, age 69, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group on
9 April 2010. He has over 33 years' experience in external audit,
IT audit, training, accounting and finance, company secretarial
and corporate administration, MIS management, internal audit,
information security, risk management and compliance. Mr. Chan is
a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants;
and a fellow and specialist in information technology of CPA
Australia. He is also a certified information systems auditor with the
Information Systems Audit and Control Association and a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan is the chief executive
of C&C Advisory Services Limited, senior advisor of New Frontier
Computer Systems Limited and was an adjunct professor in the
School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University from 1 September 2010 to 31 August 2014. Mr. Chan
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of China
Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 0164) on 18 August
2017 and Chairman of the Audit Committee on 26 September 2017.
He was also appointed as an independent non-executive director
and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Sterling Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1825) on 21 September 2018. Mr. Chan has
worked at CMG Life Assurance Limited (formerly Jardine CMG Life
Assurance Limited) from 1991 to 1996 and his last position was
general manager, compliance. He was the head of internal audit
of Dao Heng Bank/Guoco Group Limited from 1996 to 2000, the
head of compliance in Greater China, managing director of DBS
Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from 2001 to 2003, the group financial
controller of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to 2005, the
director of Quality Assurance of HKICPA in 2006 and the head of
group compliance of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Limited from December 2006 to April 2009. Mr. Chan graduated
with a higher diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic
in 1976.
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Mr. Fritz Heinrich HORLACHER, age 71, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Horlacher joined our Group
on 10 February 2011. He has over 30 years’ experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Horlacher started his pharmaceutical
career with Roche Australia in 1974. Mr. Horlacher worked at Zuellig
Pharma Asia Pacific (“Zuellig Pharma”) from 1981 to 2008 and was
the chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma from 1995 to 2008.
He was responsible for its operations servicing more than 125
international research-based pharmaceutical manufacturers in the
Asia Pacific region. Mr. Horlacher retired as chief executive officer
of Zuellig Pharma in 2008. From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Horlacher was
an alternate director of Invida Group Pte Ltd. Mr. Horlacher was
a non-executive director of Australian Pharmaceutical Industries
Limited (a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange) from
2002 to 2004. Mr. Horlacher was the Asia representative on the
board of directors of the International Federation of Pharmaceutical
Wholesalers from 2002 to 2008. He was regional director of Asia for
the Pharmaceutical Wholesale Division of Alliance Boots and was also
a director and chairman of the Board of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Corporation from 2011 to 2013. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive
member of the Advisory Board of BSN Medical, a global medical
device company based in Hamburg, Germany, from January 2013
to August 2015. Mr. Horlacher graduated in 1969 from Montana
Institute in Switzerland and from Union College in South Africa in
1972.

Mr. YEUNG Tak Bun, Allen, age 54, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Yeung joined our Group
on 6 October 2018. He served as the former Government Chief
Information Officer, responsible for formulation of policies and
strategies for Hong Kong's information industry in the development
of digital economy, e-government, cyber-security, and formulation
of the blueprint for developing Hong Kong into the world’s leading
smart city. He was the Chief Corporate Development Officer at the
Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation, responsible
for the development strategy of the science park, nurturing and
supporting bio-tech, green-tech, IT and electronics enterprises. Mr.
Yeung started his career in Silicon Valley and had worked for several
high-tech companies. Thereafter, he held several senior management
positions in multinational corporations, Hong Kong listed companies
and private equity funds, with operations throughout Asia. Mr. Yeung
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from
the University of Texas (Austin), a Master of Science in Electrical
Engineering from Purdue University, and an Executive MBA from the
Kellogg School of Management of the University of Northwestern
in conjunction with the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology.
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Senior Management

Mr. NAN lJianshe, age 55, is the head of business development of
the Group. Mr. Nan joined our company’s controlling shareholder
Cathay International Group in July 2007 as investment director of
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited, responsible for the
business development and investment of the Cathay International
Group. Mr. Nan has over 20 years of experience in investment M&A.
Before joining the Cathay International Group, Mr. Nan worked as
head of the securities department and/or investment department
in trust and investment companies, pharmaceutical/bioengineering
companies and petroleum/chemical/mining companies from 1996 to
2005, and acted as the director of the investment department at
Shanghai Fosun Pharma (Group) Co., Ltd. from March 2006 to June
2007. Mr. Nan has qualifications for Chinese securities brokerage and
securities consulting. Mr. Nan obtained a bachelor of engineering
degree from Beijing Institute of Technology in 1986 and a master’s
degree in economics from Fudan University in 1996.

Mr. LI Hua, age 36, is the head of the finance management centre
of the Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in August 2007 and has held
various positions including the supervisor of the finance department,
the manager of the finance department of Ningbo Liwah, deputy
operating director, the deputy head of finance management centre
and head of finance management centre of the Group. Mr. Li is a
Chinese Certified Public Accountant, China Senior Accountant and
holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Ningbo University.

Mr. HONG Zhou, age 52, is the general manager of Ningbo Liwah.
Mr. Hong joined our Group in November 2015 and has over 25
years' experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Hong previously
worked for Jiangxi Food and Drug Administration, Novartis, Bayer
and Abbott. Mr. Hong obtained his bachelor’s degree in analytical
chemistry from Jiangxi University (now Nanchang University) in 1989.
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Directors are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes 34
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” and “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 6 to 12, pages 13 to 23, pages 24 to 45 and pages 64 to 86
respectively.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 92 to 93.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor

any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, amounted to US$24,172,000. Details of the
movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for approximately 35.9% (2019:
30.1%) of the Group’s total sales and sales from the largest customer
included therein amounted to 15.6% (2019: 10.5%).

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 53.0% (2019: 52.4%) of the
Group's total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 19.8% (2019: 16.9%).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers
or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Managing Director:
Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt
Ms. Liu Xuezi

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of

association, Mr. Chen Li, Ms. Liu Xuezi and Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM") has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

BFEERT EARDBE BT
E=ns 59 EHEME ZERYE BREZz2ESD
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of Director Capacity Nature of interest shares held Company
REELEAE RETANAR H = 245,993,000 @ 61.94%
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao EEXmA Other interest (i E)
Founder of discretionary (Long position)
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust
Stephen Burnau Hunt 4t 4 E=HEAA (PN = 100,000 0.03%
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt Beneficial owner Personal interest (17 #)

M EE

(a) 7209,820,000 R A RRI B BT E BB 2 E - J1iE
j8Cathay International Holdings Limited 2 & # 5 2
A7) 36,173,000 % % # Cosmos Skyland Limited#F
A R4 Cathay International Holdings Limited
R A99.37% BN °

(Long position)
Note:

(a) The interests in 209,820,000 issued ordinary shares of the Company were held
through companies wholly owned by Cathay International Holdings Limited and
36,173,000 issued ordinary shares owned by Cosmos Skyland Limited, in which
Mr. Wu indirectly held 99.37% shareholding interests.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief Executive nor
their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2020 which was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

Directors’ Share Options in Cathay International
Holdings Limited

Cathay International Holdings Limited (“CIH"), the Company’s
ultimate holding company, operates share option plan for the
purpose of aligning the interests of executives and employees with
those of shareholders of CIH and to enable the development of CIH
and its subsidiaries’ business by attracting, retaining and motivating
personnel with appropriate skills. The share option plan expired
during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, appointed as a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company on 30 March 2017, holds approximately
99.37% of Common Shares interests in CIH as at 31 December 2020.
Save as disclosed in the transactions in relation to CIH under the
section headed “Connected Transactions” of this Annual Report, no
transaction, arrangement and contract of significance, to which the
Company, its holding company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2020, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company.

BFEERT MMEAARNSET
BREEZRB & S ZERHE BAEZEDL
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held Company
BRI EEEEREE (PR BRAA 1 EBEniExm 209,820,000 52.83%
([ =R (P E)]) Beneficial interest (7 &)
Cathay International Pharma Manufacture (Long position)
and Distribution (China) Limited
("Cl Pharma China")
EREEREEMRMREZER AT 1 REEE R 209,820,000 52.83%
((BE=ZEEREE] Interest of a controlled (17 &)
Cathay International Changchun corporation (Long position)
Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical
Limited (“CIC")
B2 B PR A ) pe i R B2 % (R ) B IR A A 1 REEEED 209,820,000 52.83%
([BI 2= BB £ g e 82 2 (R ) ) Interest of a controlled (7 =)
Cathay International Biotechnology and corporation (Long position)
Pharmaceutical (China) Limited
("Cl Biotech & Pharma China”)
BB EEFRAG ((HIRERES]) 1 EREEEER 209,820,000 52.83%
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Interest of a controlled (47 &)
Limited (“CIP") corporation (Long position)
Bl ZR B R A # T B PR A F) ([ 2= B B 1 REEEER 209,820,000 52.83%
AW AT ) Interest of a controlled (7 &)
Cathay International Biotech Company corporation (Long position)
Limited (“CIB")
Cathay International Holdings Limited 1 T EBER 209,820,000 52.83%
("CIH") Interest of a controlled (I E)
corporation (Long position)
Cathay International Enterprises Limited 2 EEEEEm 209,820,000 52.83%
("CIE") Interest of a controlled (r &)
corporation (Long position)
Cosmos Skyland Limited (“CSL") 3 BEmEDn 36,173,000 9.11%
Beneficial interest (7 =)
(Long position)
RIE=E 4  EEEFAPFEARET 245,993,000 61.94%
Wu Zhen Tao X@m A (r &)

Founder of discretionary
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust

BB B[R B R A A Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

(Long position)
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Notes:

(1) These shares are held by ClI Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to
18% by CIC and 82% by CI Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned
as to 100% by CI Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in
turn wholly owned by CIP. CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly
owned by CIH. Therefore, CIC, Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH
are deemed to be interested in these shares.

(2) CIH is held as to approximately 99.37% of Common Shares by CIE. Therefore,
CIE is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Cl Pharma China.

(3) CSL is 100% held by Mr. Wu Zhen Tao.

(4) The entire issued share capital of CIE is held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen
Tao for the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his family (“Wu Family
Trust”). Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by CIE.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors and
Chief Executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at
31 December 2020 that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Connected Transactions

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and the connected person(s) (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company constitute connected
transactions of the Company. The Company regulates and manages
such transactions in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On 24 June 2016, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi and Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“Lansen (BVI)") entered into the
cross guarantee agreement, pursuant to which the parties may,
provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide certain guarantees to
banks in relation to the bank facilities of each other during the period
from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019.

On 31 March 2017, Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty Tech Limited
("Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty”) entered into a distribution agreement
with Changchun Botai Medicine & Biological Technology Company
Limited (“Botai”) pursuant to which, Botai agrees to sell and appoint
Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty as the distributor of the collagen
injectable fillers in the PRC. The term of the distribution agreement
runs from 31 March 2017 to 31 March 2018 (subject to any early
termination or extension which may be agreed by the parties).

On 2 May 2018, Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty entered into a new
distribution agreement with Botai pursuant to which, Botai agrees
to sell and appoint Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty as the distributor
of collagen injectable filler in the PRC. The term of the distribution
agreement runs from 2 May 2018 to 2 May 2020 (subject to
extension which may be agreed by the parties).

On 3 May 2019, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi and Lansen (BVI) entered
into a new cross guarantee agreement, pursuant to which the parties
may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide certain guarantees
to banks in relation to the bank facilities of each other during the
period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022.
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Cross Guarantee Agreement

Date
24 June 2016
(A new cross guarantee agreement signed on 3 May 2019)

Parties
(@) lJilin Haizi, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH;

(b)  Ningbo Liwah, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and

() Lansen (BVI),
Company.

a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the cross guarantee agreement, Jilin Haizi has agreed,
during the Effective Period (as defined below), to provide guarantees
for the obligations under the bank facilities obtained or to be
obtained by Ningbo Liwah (the “Jilin Haizi Guarantees”). Pursuant to
the cross guarantee agreement, on a reciprocal basis, Lansen (BVI)
has agreed, during the effective period, to procure its subsidiary, as
appropriate, to provide guarantees for the obligation under the bank
facilities to be obtained by Jilin Haizi (the “Lansen (BVI) Guarantees”)
(the Jilin Haizi Guarantees and the Lansen (BVI) Guarantees,
collectively, the “Guarantees”).

Guarantee Commission

The annual guarantee commission rate of 0.5% is determined and
agreed with reference to the prevailing market rate of the commission
charged by guarantee service providers, which is around 2% per
annum, after taking into account of the factors such as reasons for,
and benefits of the cross guarantee agreement.

Effective Period
The effective period of the cross guarantee agreement commenced
on 1 July 2016 and expired on 30 June 2019.

The effective period of the new cross guarantee agreement
commenced on 1 July 2019 and will expire on 30 June 2022.
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Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the approved annual caps
and the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under the cross guarantee agreement are set
out below:

BE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFENFELR
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2020

HIREBEER
Jilin Haizi Guarantee
A R#130,000,0007T
(48 & 74 4919,924,000% 7T.)
RMB130,000,000

(equivalent to approximately US$19.9 million)

BEGBVIESENEE

The maximum commission fee payable by Lansen (BVI)

A R #650,0007T
(8 & 7 £794,000% 7T)
RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately US$94,000)
BA A& (BVI) & 1R
Lansen (BVI) Guarantee
A R #130,000,0007T
(8 & # 4919,924,000% 7T)
RMB130,000,000

(equivalent to approximately US$19.9 million)

EMBERSENEE

The maximum commission fee payable by Jilin Haizi

A R #650,0007T
(8 & 7 £794,000% 7T)
RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately US$94,000)

HE_ZT-_ZTF+_A=T—HLEFENERXRZ &
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2020
HMEEER
Jilin Haizi Guarantee
A R #130,000,0007T
(F8°& 7 #919,924,000% 7T)
RMB130,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$19.9 million)
BAHEBVNERA S
The commission fee payable by Lansen (BVI)
#) AN R #650,0007T
(8 & P #)94,000% 7T)
approximately RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately US$94,000)
BA A& (BVI) #& 1R
Lansen (BVI) Guarantee
A R #130,000,0007T
(F8°& 7 #919,924,000% 7T)
RMB130,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$19.9 million)
HEMEERNAES
The commission fee payable by Jilin Haizi
#) AN R #650,0007T
(8 & P #)94,000% 7T)
approximately RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately US$94,000)

FHEERHEARANEARERS

A &7
—E—+HF=RF=+—H
(FRBAERR - \FEFRA-_BE:)

BEED

(a)

(b)

AAREEZENBRAR Z HAEE
£ R

CHAERRZERBRR)HEEZENEA
AEZE o

The execution of a distribution agreement

Date
31 March 2017
(A new distribution agreement signed on 2 May 2018)

Parties
(@ Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty, an
subsidiary of the Company; and

indirect wholly-owned

(b)  Botai, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the exclusive distribution agreement, Ningbo Lansen
Medibeauty will act as the distributor of Botai in respect of the
collagen injectable fillers during the Term (as defined below) and it
may, during the Term, acquire from Botai, the Collagen Injectable
Fillers on an order-by-order basis.

Pricing Basis

The unit purchase price of the collagen injectable fillers to be
purchased by Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty under the new distribution
agreement is agreed at a fixed price throughout the Term and is
arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties. Such
unit purchase price is determined with reference to:

(i)  the prices of two comparable collagen
products in the PRC market;

injectable fillers

(i) the product feature and competitive advantage of the Collagen
Injectable Fillers; and

(iii)  the sale price of collagen injectable filler offered to any other
third party by Botai and such sale price shall not be lower than
that offered to Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty.

Further, to ensure that the unit purchase price of the Collagen
Injectable Fillers is no less favourable than those comparable products
available from independent third parties, the marketing department
of Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty has followed its standard market
research procedures by conducting the relevant research on factors,
such as the market demand within the non-surgical cosmetic market
and the trend of the sales volume of comparable products. It has
also taken reference of the prices and specifications of comparable
collagen injectable fillers products from other independent third
parties in the market.

The final unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers is
mutually agreed by the parties after arm’s length negotiation, but in
any event, the unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers is
no less favourable than those of the comparable collagen injectable
fillers products in the market, and the purchase of the Collagen
Injectable Fillers by Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty under the exclusive
distribution agreement is on terms which are no less favourable
to Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty than those under a typical exclusive
distribution agreement of similar products.

Term

The term of the distribution agreement commenced on 31 March
2017 and expired on 31 March 2018 (subject to any extension which
may be agreed by the parties), unless terminated by either party
giving the other written notice of termination.

The term of the new distribution agreement commenced on 2 May
2018 and expired on 2 May 2020 (subject to any extension which
may be agreed by the Parties).
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Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the approved annual caps and
the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions under the distribution agreement are set out below:

BE-_Z-_ZTF—A—H=
ZEZTFRAZAHLESENFEE LR
Annual caps for the period from
1 January 2020 to 2 May 2020
A R#7,000,0007T
(8% 7 #91,015,000% )
RMB7,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$1.0 million)

BE-_Z-_ZTF—A—H=
CECTFRACHALEBENERRSEE
Actual transaction amounts for the period from
1 January 2020 to 2 May 2020
48t

Nil

B FHHEINFE14AS6E  EEe D ED

REIGBMRAEEB HERERZHETE
TRBEZERF “EMEAEESERZ
ERFIEEER -BUFHRTESEEM
SEMEISRZBAHRSE  UHERAZER
GNHAREAR—RMEEESBRELREB R
PERRAEAEZERD 2 HEGERET L
MEBIETRBATABIYFTARRATRE Y
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed-upon procedures
in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group.
The auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures to
the Board. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor
and have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on
normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board
confirming that the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;

(i) have been priced in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(iii)  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
related party transactions disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements either did not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, or only constituted fully exempted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions by virtue of the
de minimis exemption under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has compiled with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are determined
with reference to individual performance, professional qualifications,
experience in the industry and relevant market trends.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would require the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares
its profit with its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be
determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the following issues:

—  the Articles of Association of the Company;

—  the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman Islands;

— the Company’s results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows;

—  operating, capital expenditure and investment requirements of
the Company; and

—  other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.
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Indemnity of Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
liabilities of the Directors and executive officers in respect of legal
actions against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

A permitted indemnity provision (within the meaning in Section
469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) that provides for indemnity against liability
incurred by Directors and executive officers of the Group is currently
in force when the Report of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and was in force throughout the year ended
31 December 2020 for the benefit of the Directors.

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Wu Zhen Tao
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company and the Board of Directors are devoted to achieving
and maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance as
the Board believes that effective corporate governance practices
are fundamental to enhancing shareholder value and safeguarding
interests of the shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly,
the Company has adopted sound corporate governance principles
that emphasise a quality Board, effective internal controls, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied
with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, except with a deviation from Code Provision
A.5 of the Code. Under Code Provision A.5 of the Code, the
Company should establish a Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties. Currently, the Company had not established a Nomination
Committee and had retained the functions with the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee has been delegated the
functions of a Nomination Committee since its listing on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in 2010. As such, the Board is of the
view that the members of the Remuneration Committee possess the
necessary experience and knowledge to discharge the functions of
a Nomination Committee. The Board shall review the composition
and operation of the Board Committees from time to time and shall
consider establishing a Nomination Committee if such need arises.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions adopted by the Company.
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The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees
the operations and monitors the financial performance of the Group.
Management manages the businesses of the Group, including the
decision making of daily operation within the delegated power and
authority given by the Board. Management is accountable to the
Board for the Company’s overall operation.

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.

The Company Secretary or his assistant is responsible for taking
minutes of the Board and Board Committees meetings. Draft minutes
and written resolutions will be circulated to all Board members
or Board Committees members for review and comment within a
reasonable period of time. Final version of the minutes and written
resolutions will be provided for record within a reasonable period of
time and the signed copies are kept in the Company’s minutes book
maintained by the Company Secretary for Directors’ inspection.

As at 31 December 2020 and at the date of this report, the Board
was comprised of one executive managing Director, three non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
A description of the Directors is set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” section from pages 46 to 50
and on the Company’s website.

65

BAA B B2 4T iR 5 R A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

*



‘0

TEEREAHRE

Corporate Governance Report

RZE_FEFF+_A=F+—HERARSEH Asat 31 December 2020 and at the date of this report, the Board
B - E5g8BTIKE: was comprised of the following members:
HRAEZME RfE—REREMR
AESERENAH REEMBEH
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
=} Directors to the Board as Director
BERHITES: Executive Managing Director:

BRIk (TTEARE)

Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer)

—N\F=ZHF—H
1 March 2018

—E-)\F#~XAt+HAH
15 June 2018

FHITES: Non-executive Directors:

REFLA(EE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) —“E—+F=A=+H —E-FEFEXA-+-H
30 March 2017 22 June 2020
Stephen Burnau Hunt’t4  Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt “E-ZEFNMANE ZEZEFAA+ZH
9 April 2010 22 June 2020
BELT T Ms. Liu Xuezi “E-XF=Z/F=+tH —ET—N\FXA+AH
30 March 2016 15 June 2018

BIYFHTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
R0 48 L A& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael —E-ZFENANE ZZEZ-AFA~A+ZH
9 April 2010 12 June 2019
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher5c 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher “E-——%-A+H ZE-EFXA=+=H
10 February 2011 22 June 2020
% 12 A& Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen “E-N\Ft+AXE —ZT—AF~A+=H
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TEEELMARNER KRR EHKEH
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TRZTEH UIEHERRK -EEFHE
TRAER Amte EANERBEXR
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6 October 2018 12 June 2019

The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to
time, taking into account the requirements under the Listing Rules
and the scope and nature of operations of the Company, to ensure
that the size of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views
and facilitate effective decision making. The Directors come from
diverse background with varied expertise in finance, information
technology and pharmaceutical business fields. The Company has
maintained on the Company’s website and on the website of the
Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors identifying their roles
and functions.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills
and business experience to the Group. They also bring independent
judgement on issues of strategy, performance and risk through their
contribution to the Board meetings and to the Board Committees’
meetings.
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In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
independent non-executive Directors, exceeding one-third of the
Board. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, one
of them has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules. With reference to such confirmations,
the Company, to its best knowledge, considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors fulfill the guidelines on
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all to
be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The positions of chairman and the chief executive officer
are held by separate individuals. The chairman is responsible for
managing the Board, steering the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development plans, ensuring the receipt of
sufficient, complete and reliable information by each Director and the
receipt of reasonable explanations for the issues raised at the Board
meetings. The chief executive officer is responsible for managing
the business of the Company and implementing policies, business
objectives and plans formulated by the Board, and is accountable
to the Board for the Company’s overall operation. The senior
management team is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Group under the leadership of the chief executive officer of the
Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The executive managing Director Mr. Chen Li has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing 1 March 2021. Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and Mr. Fritz Heinrich
Horlacher have entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of two years commencing 30 March 2020
and 10 February 2020 respectively. Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt, Ms.
Liu Xuezi, Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael and Mr. Yeung Tak Bun,
Allen have entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing 9 April 2019, 30 March
2019, 9 April 2019 and 6 October 2018 respectively. All Directors
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition
to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at the
first general meeting after appointment.

At each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’'s articles of
association, Mr. Chen Li, Ms. Liu Xuezi and Mr. Yeung Tak Bun,
Allen will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election in the forthcoming AGM.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had not
established a Nomination Committee but had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
members from time to time identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships or
senior management. In considering the nomination of new Directors
or senior management, the Remuneration Committee will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates as well as the independence
requirement in the case of an independent non-executive Director.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted procedures for
nomination of a new Director or senior management, pursuant
to which (1) an interview will be conducted with the prospective
candidates; and (2) the Remuneration Committee will consider and,
if thought fit, make suitable recommendations to the Board.
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Continuing professional development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company from time to time updates and
provides training to the Directors, and organises seminars on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors will be provided
with a comprehensive briefing of the Group’s businesses by senior
executives. Continuing education and information are provided to the
Directors regularly to ensure that the Directors are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment
in which the Group conducts its businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
organised a training session covering the topic of directors’ duty and
amendments to main board listing rules. All Directors attended the
training. In addition, individual directors also participated in other
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director or further enhancement of their professional development
by way of attending training courses or via online aids or reading
relevant materials.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the year, the Board formalised the
inclusion of the following corporate governance duties into the terms
of reference of the Board:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

—  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company's
employees and the Directors; and

—  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report.
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Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy in accordance with the requirement set out in the Code.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a
view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

Board Meetings

The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a
year. Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of
the Group provides information to Directors on a regular basis
regarding the activities and development in the businesses of the
Group. The Directors have full access to information on the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.
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HEZZ-_FF+-_A=+—HIEFE E%F The Board held six meetings during the year ended 31 December
ERITTARNEH MBEEHEFEHERW 2020 with the attendance of each Director as follows:
T

HESBERE

BITEERK i E =

No. of meetings

attended/No. of
5= Directors meetings held Attendance rate
EBHTES: Executive Managing Director:
BR 1 % & (77 B 48 #) Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer) 6/6 100%
FHITES: Non-executive Directors:
RIEBERE(EE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) 6/6 100%
Stephen Burnau Hunt%c 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 6/6 100%
ANEZLm+ Ms. Liu Xuezi 6/6 100%
BUKHTES: Independent non-executive

Directors:

FRACIE L& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 6/6 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher%c4  Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 6/6 100%
15 12 % A& Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 6/6 100%

REEFENEHREEME  EFHEDIRA
TORESETREHABARESHMN IR
SRERSESSRREMABXN - EME
EME ERERIENBRLT EFEH
ERGETRENAEAN BRARTANERZAR
PRARFNZEBRIN  REMEH 5
TR EFSRIUHZENEMEME
PIERTHRAEARENES K ANEMR
RERMERE  BABESITERAAAL
EABA -

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as much
notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Except
for those circumstances permitted by the articles of association of
the Company, a Director who has a material interest in any contract,
transaction, arrangement or any other kind of proposal put forward
to the Board for consideration, will abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution and such Director is not counted as quorum.
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The Board has devised its specific written terms of reference setting
out its duties, responsibilities, powers and functions which include
the following:

—  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

—  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

—  to take responsibility for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the prevailing accounting standards and laws, approving
the financial statements and appointing and liaising with the
Group’s external auditors;

— to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual
Report;

—  to liaise with all regulatory authorities and organisations on all
matters relating to the Group, and monitor changes in their
policies relating to and affecting the Group; and

— to ensure accountability towards and sufficient communication
with the Group’s shareholders.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other directors and
senior management was held to discuss the performance of the
executive director.

The Board also discussed the policy for the corporate governance
of the Company and duties performed by the Board and the Board
Committees (see below).
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Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee. Please see below for the
composition and responsibilities of the committees. Each committee
shall provide their recommendations to the Board based on their
respective terms of reference. The decisions of the Board on such
recommendations shall be final, unless otherwise stated in the terms
of reference of these committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael, an
independent non-executive Director, currently serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is expected to meet
regularly at least three times per year.

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Audit Committee include the following:

—  to oversee the relationship with the external auditor, including:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor and address any
questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditor;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; and

o to develop and implement policy on the engagement of
the external auditor to supply non-audit services;

— to review and monitor the integrity of the Group's financial
statements, annual reports and half-year reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained therein;
and

— to review the effectiveness of the financial reporting, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
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HEZZE-_FTF+-_A=+—HIFE  #FE% The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
ZEeRTT=ZRe% MEKEBNLEERE 31 December 2020 with the attendance of each member as follows:
SR

HEEBEXE

HITEFIRE o FE =

No. of meetings

attended/No. of
EREEEHREN®A Name of Audit Committee members meetings held Attendance rate
fRECE R E(EE) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman) 3/3 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher%c4  Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3/3 100%
15 12, % A& Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 3/3 100%
HE2_Z-_FF+-_A=+—HIFE /% During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
ZEgR had:

4
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—  reviewed with management and external auditor on the interim
results and annual results and related announcements including
the related disclosures, integrity of financial reporting and the
accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to submission
to the Board for approval;

— discussed with management on significant judgements
affecting the Group’s consolidated financial statements;

— reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and recommended the Board on the
appointment of the external auditor;

—  reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports including the
status of implementing recommendations from the previous
reports; and

—  reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and one non-executive Director.
Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen, an independent non-executive Director,
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee is expected to meet regularly at least
once per year.

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:

— to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy and placing such recommendations before the Board
concerning the total remuneration and/or benefits granted to
the Directors and senior management from time to time;

—  to assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management;

— to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

— to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained
in the constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing
Rules or any applicable law;

— to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

—  to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors and
senior management;

—  to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and senior
management; and
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ELBFERNEFTENRE  HEEZ
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to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
and professional experience) of the Board at least annually;
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to implement the Company’ s corporate strategy.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2020 with the attendance of each member as

(N follows:

HEgEBERE
BITEERK i E =

No. of meetings

Name of Remuneration attended/No. of
FHZEEERBEN R Committee members meetings held Attendance rate
BRI E(EE) Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen (Chairman) 2/2 100%
Stephen Burnau HuntZt 4  Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 2/2 100%
PR RC 4B ST A Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 2/2 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacherst 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 2/2 100%
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During the year ended 31

December 2020, the Remuneration

Committee:

assessed the performance of the executive Director and the
senior management;

pursuant to provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code, reviewed the
remuneration structure/package of the Directors and the senior
management, and made recommendation to the Board on their
remuneration;

determined policy for the nomination of Directors;

discussed the implementation of the Board diversity policy; and

made recommendation to the Board on the proposed re-
election of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the Remuneration
Committee to consider and make recommendations to Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors
to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Remuneration Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(1) reputation for integrity;

(2)  accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

(3) commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
(4)  factors in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy; and

(5)  such other
business.

perspectives appropriate to the Company’s

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
and decisive. The Remuneration Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

(1) The proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form by the Remuneration
Committee :

(2)  The Remuneration Committee shall convene a meeting to
consider the nomination of candidates :

(3)  For the appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board,
the Remuneration Committee shall undertake adequate
due diligence in respect of such individual and make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval :

(4)  For the re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Remuneration Committee shall make recommendations
to the Board for its consideration and recommendation, for
the proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a general
meeting ; and

(5)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
a general meeting.
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HEZZ-_ZF+_HA=+—HIEFEEFS The following table shows the breakdown of Directors’ remuneration

B B4 T for the year ended 31 December 2020:
Hitt 5 M
Other emoluments
e 2E RKEF
e NENEAN WiERe STEER @t
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary benefit plans
Fees in kind bonus  contributions Total
TR TR TR TR TER
Uss$'000 Uss$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
HE-E-%% Year ended 31 December 2020
TZAZt-HLEFE
BRNTES: Executive managing director:
RN Chen Li - 490 123 1 624
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
REE Wu Zhen Tao - - - — —
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - - — 39
EZ Liu Xuezi - 16 154 - 170
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive directors:
BiE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 - - — 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 32 - - — 32
HEE Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 35 - - — 35
141 506 271 1 935
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2020:

—E-%F
2020
A

No of individuals

£ %1,000,0007% 7T
1,000,001;% 7T 1,500,000 7T

BITEESE

ARBNWTZERR —REBRTES
MEFATEER —RIFESTHK - FFHT
EEREBEER/UITRESER -

EEECORUNTZEQUS EEEMBER
B JAE=EeETORE BENRESD -
HOTZEENIERBABAECERERNYH
LFMBEBEE  BHHITFERTPREA
AR - BN ERG BRA S REIH E R
B o

HWITZREEREBREEARTER kT
BASERHNEEBRAMEGERE - A&
ERIEREEEETESTEMAILNIIM
KR BE o

Nil = HK$1,000,000 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Company consists of one executive
managing Director, two non-executive Directors and one non-
Director. Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, a non-executive Director, currently serves
as the chairman of the Executive Committee.

The Board has established the Executive Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. The major duties and
responsibilities of the Executive Committee include reviewing the
financials and financial related matters, assisting in developing
annual and medium- to long-term corporate strategies, reviewing
and approving new business development plans, and reviewing and
approving research and development projects.

Executive Committee members normally meet every month to keep
abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group and
to monitor and ensure that management carries out the directions
and strategies set by the Board.
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HEZZ-_FF+-A=+—HIEFE $77 The Executive Committee held eight meetings during the year ended
ZEEBRITTNAREE MEMEMEERS 31 December 2020 with the attendance of each member as follows:
SRR
HEEEIE
BITEBRE™ HE =
No. of meetings
Name of Executive attended/No. of
HITZEEERENE Committee members meetings held Attendance rate
REBERETE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) 8/8 100%
BRAOEE Mr. Chen Li 8/8 100%
BELEL L Ms. Liu Xuezi 6/8 75%
8o 5+ Ms. Tao Fang Fang 7/8 88%
BEREX Accountability and Audit
W% & Financial Reporting

EFNBREARBEATBELRGAEER
RAKEHHEHRENEL - MABKEFBERE
RAEEMBRREFTHENEL -

ARV GEREEAMEEMBERAFMEH
RASRBEBE_T_TF+-_A=+—HL
FRZHEAVBRERNEFEL -

EEMZEMEBGATBRERNE I
RAREFSTENE [ B ZHMBE] -

EEEBARNESE2BNBRHEFEN
HARINBREARENRRLARR - RBEF
BRSNIEBENFME -

B BB B &

RAFE BELGERIGAMEEMER
NEAEZERASEZHRE EHETER
RBFREH/ERKL -
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also
acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements for the Group are published in a timely manner.

BDO Limited acknowledges its responsibilities for the audit of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 87 to 91 in this report.

Management has provided to all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance and position in detail.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the Group’s auditor
until the conclusion of next AGM.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees paid/payable
to BDO Limited in respect of audit and non-audit services were as
follows:

B/ ERER

R 7% 1% & Services rendered Fee paid/payable
TER

Us$'000

% R 75 Audit services 275
FEZ AR 5 Non-audit services 92

HEBRBITERETHEMN ARG ER
BERXGRARETHNEREEFTRENEME
ES

RAWE
REAMELREALEHETENOIE LS
BEEFER BREFSANEMBIERE R
KRBREFEBRLERF -

PREFATEBSRAANENERALRE - M
REAMEREAREEETAETHRNESTSR
HEHERN TLZHEFEHABFIRER
B -

RBE-_T-_TF+_A=+—RHLFE 2
AIMEDET TSN FESEI - &
BLEMRBEI29EMRE -

R B B 2 % L B AT
EFZeAREREERARENRAREEREM
NHEZERRLBEERATZEROMK
BRVWH EERGREE EFEHNE
e R K e = B A B B 1 R AT AR B AR R B
MmkAEENEE -

ARmZEHBMTEEHERNLEZALITIES
HERASERAELREFRE2NOANIEER
HE - SREAEEHEBAENNE A2
A 1A i B B AR B AR R S B DA I R IR R

FAED -

The non-audit services mainly consisted of interim review and
other professional services in relation to the continuing connected
transactions and a possible very substantial disposal.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Mr. Pang Kai Fai, plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within
the Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters and should also facilitate induction and
professional development of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company Secretary
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control and Risk Assessment

The Board is responsible for monitoring the risk management and the
internal control system of the Group and on an ongoing basis has
the responsibility for reviewing their effectiveness including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal control system to
safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets.

Several department heads of the Company met with the internal
audit department regularly to ensure a sound internal control system
is in place and maintained. To enhance the knowledge of relevant
staff of the Group, training will be provided to them in the matter
of relevant rules and applicable laws as and when appropriate.
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The risk management and internal control system of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against all risk issues. We have employed a
bottom-up approach for the identification, assessment and mitigation
of risk at all business unit levels and across all functional areas.

During the process of risk assessment, the Board together with
management is responsible for identifying the risks of the Group and
deciding on the risk levels. An external consultant was engaged to
provide advice and support to the risk assessment process. The Board
is also responsible for assessing and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that are acceptable to the Group when achieving
its strategic objectives. After discussing and taking into consideration
the risk responses, the relevant departments and business units
have been assigned to implement the risk management solutions
in accordance with their respective roles and responsibilities. The
identified risks together with the risk responses have been recorded
in the risk register and the updating and maintenance of which is
subject to the supervision of the Board.

The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company include the establishment of a risk register
to keep track of and document identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

The internal audit department has performed annual internal control
reviews on certain important areas of monitoring including the
functions of finance, operations, compliance and risk management
respectively covering the period of 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020 in compliance with the requirements under Code Provision
C.2 of the CG Code, according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.

Also, management has analysed the control environment and risk
assessment, assessed the various controls implemented and agreed
with the Board on the scope of review over the system of internal
controls. The approach of the review includes discussing with relevant
management and staff members, reviewing relevant documentation
of the internal control system, evaluating findings on any deficiencies
in the design of internal controls and developing recommendations
for improvement, where appropriate.
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Management has reported the results of the reviews to the Audit
Committee for its evaluation on the effectiveness of the system.
Meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss the findings
and the results of the reviews which were endorsed for reporting
to the Board. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems and the Board is
satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled with its
own observations and with the assistance of the Audit Committee,
the present internal control and risk management processes are
satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business. The Board will continue to ensure that appropriate review
of the systems and procedures is being carried out by management
from time to time to maintain a high standard of internal controls
and will make appropriate changes to the internal control system, if
necessary.

Inside Information
With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

— is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO
and the overriding principle that information which is expected
to be inside information should be announced once it is the
subject of a decision;

— has set up an inside information control team to supervise
inside information matters and report to the Board in a timely
manner;

—  has implemented its own policy and reporting system based
on Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission; and

—  has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group's affairs.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities
insurance for all the Directors and senior management of the
Company for the year 2020/2021. The insurance covers them
against costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred arising out
of corporate activities.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from
the shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects the
shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates their
suggestions to the Company.

Our investor relations activities include:

—  regular meetings (one-to-one/group meetings, roadshows or
site visits) with analysts and investors;

— conferences with analysts and the press to announce the
Company’s results;

—  the holding of an AGM which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board;

— the publication of announcements, interim reports, annual
reports and/or circulars on a timely basis via the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites; and

— the availability of the latest information of the Group on the
Company’s website.

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Shareholder’s Rights

The AGM provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and
raise questions to our Directors, management and the external
auditor.

The Company will arrange for the Chairman of the Board and the
respective chairman of each of the Board Committees to attend the
AGM to exchange views with shareholders and answer their questions.

Any shareholder is encouraged and entitled to attend the AGM,
provided that their shares have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company. The notice of AGM will be given to
all shareholders at least 20 clear business days or 21 clear days
(whichever is longer) before the meeting.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2020
annual general meeting (2020 AGM"), held on 22 June 2020
at United Conference Centre (UCC), 10/F, United Centre, 95
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong. All Directors and the external
auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, attended the 2020 AGM.
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Corporate Governance Report

At the 2020 AGM, separate resolutions including the re-election
of Directors, the re-appointment of auditor, the authorisation to
grant the general mandate to issue and repurchase of shares were
proposed. The Company adopted poll voting for all resolutions.

All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2020 AGM were passed.
The Company’s former Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, was appointed as scrutineers to monitor
and count the poll votes cast at that meeting. The results of the
voting by poll were declared at the meeting and published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The way by which shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM")

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Company’s articles
of association shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding at
the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of such of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly
to convene an EGM.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203—4, 12/F,
Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong,
and may consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include
the resolution in the agenda for the EGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of two months
from the said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
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The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
To put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at an AGM or
EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

. At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include 10
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an EGM.

o At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or any resolution of the
Company in an AGM.

Investor Relations Contacts

The Company values feedbacks from shareholders, investors and the
public. Enquiries and proposals are welcome and can be put to the
Company via the following means:

Hong Kong
Please contact our Company Secretary at:

By phone (852) 2828 9206

By post Suite 1203-4, 12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

By e-mail ir@lansen.com.cn

The PRC

Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:

By phone (86) 574 8804 6316

By post 228 Xinfeng Road, Gaogiao Industrial Park,
Haishu District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, PRC
(Postal code: 315174)

By e-mail ir@lansen.com.cn

The latest investor relations information is available on the Company’s
website at www.lansen.com.cn.
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To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 201, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and goodwill

(Refer to Notes 5, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements)

The Group had intangible assets with indefinite useful lives of
US$21,630,000 and goodwill of US$6,824,000 as at 31 December
2020. Management has performed an impairment review under
International Accounting Standards 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
Recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are determined based
on value in use calculations, which include significant assumptions
and judgements made by management concerning the estimated
future cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and goodwill as a key audit matter because of
its significance to the consolidated financial statements and because
this area involves a significant degree of judgements and estimation
made by management, in particular the estimation of future cash
flows and discount rate. Key assumptions used in the impairment
model have been disclosed in Notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our response:
Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and goodwill included:

—  Discussing cash flow projections with senior management;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the sources of data and
key assumptions used by the management based on our
knowledge of the business and industry and by considering
the historical accuracy of budgeting;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the impairment calculation; and

—  Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of
a reasonably possible change in discount rate and cash flows.
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
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as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Or Ying Ying, Anita
Practising Certificate Number: P07424

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE2ZZZZF+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
—B-2F —ET-NEF
2020 2019
B 5% SEES T FET
Notes Us$‘000 Us$'000
'@N Revenue 6 54,386 54,257
85 & B A Cost of sales (19,207) (20,928)
E F Gross profit 35,179 33,329
H Ath & A Other income 6 2,063 3,702
HERDHAX Selling and distribution expenses (15,668) (18,042)
THRAX Administrative expenses (7,935) (15,260)
STREENEBEEEG Loss allowance (recognised)/reversed
(R /o on financial assets (787) 230
LEER Profit from operations 12,852 3,959
Hip JEg & IR A K> Other non-operating income and
expenses 8 80,513 19,559
Hit & @A Ew Fair value gain on other financial
NFEERE liabilities — 133
PTA & @b T E 8 Write off of derivative financial
instrument — (1,910)
1 75 B AR Finance costs 9 (2,051) (4,409)
JEAR B & AR 2 BRBif®  Share of post-tax result of associates
E$ 88 1,310
B Fr 18 B A0 %= R Profit before income tax 10 91,402 18,642
BT 5 %1 f 52 Income tax expense 12 (3,197) (293)
FEREF Profit for the year 88,205 18,349
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-TZ-THF+-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

*

—B-%F —FNF
2020 2019
Bt FEx FEx
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
H {2 H W & Other comprehensive income
HEAFEEFH 7L E/E  Items that may be reclassified
@ A - subsequently to profit or loss:
— REFINEBEE — Exchange differences arising on
B IE 3 = 58 translation of foreign operations 5,765 (2,524)
— HE—HEHE QT — Exchange differences reclassified
BB E to profit or loss upon partial
o BEEEED disposal of an associate
I 4 2 4 - =62
— RIELE—HBE — Exchange differences reclassified
NEIM RS to profit or loss upon deemed
FoBEEBREEN disposal of an associate
=5 1,937 =
FEHEMEER = Other comprehensive income for the
(0B B 1H) year, net of tax 7,702 (1,185)
FEXHWSELHE Total comprehensive income for
the year 95,907 17,164
RATEEAEMLER  Profit attributable to owners of the
Company 88,205 18,349
AATHEEAELEZE  Total comprehensive income
Wz 85 attributable to owners of the
Company 95,907 17,164
ES 1
US cents US cents
BREF Earnings per share
—EXR#EE — Basic and diluted 14 22.21 4.54
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZZZTF+=ZHA=+—H As at 31 December 2020
—EC-EE —NEF
2020 2019
Bt 5% SEES FET
Notes UsS$‘000 us$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
M- BEREE Property, plant and equipment 15 24,391 25,140
EREEE Right-of-use assets 16 2,450 2,698
wKEWME Investment property 17 633 —
EmEEE Intangible assets 19 21,630 21,670
kS Goodwill 20 6,824 6,825
A RN T Interests in associates 21 6,862 16,143
62,790 72,476
REEE Current assets
rE Inventories 22 6,722 6,652
B 5 N H e UK ZOE Trade and other receivables 23 44,368 49,898
m— B2 AR EZ  Loan to an associate 24 8,425 7,197
FE W B & Tax recoverable 105 —
WAFEAIEZ ([ 2 Financial assets at fair value through

FEFABEZ DS profit or loss (“FVTPL")

BE 18 32,815 =
B IRITF K Pledged bank deposits 25 14,144 27,373
RERREFEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 83,409 20,363

189,988 111,483
HEE Total assets 252,778 183,959
BakAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EXRGFEE Capital and reserves
AATEEAEMLER  Equity attributable to owners of the

Company

AR 7R Share capital 26 3,972 3,972
A& 17 5 B Share premium 27 16,750 16,750
N Foreign exchange reserve 3,907 (3,795)
VA T 15 1 Statutory reserve 10,228 9,901
R & Retained profits 162,425 74,547
R Total equity 197,282 101,375
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZ-_ZF+_H=+—H As at 31 December 2020
—B-%F —FNF
2020 2019
B 5 FEx FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
HESE Lease liabilities 36 782 481
ELERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 3,227 1,636
4,009 2,117
REEE Current liabilities
B Borrowings 28 31,424 60,520
HESE Lease liabilities 36 394 413
MEHIBAE Current tax liabilities 870 1,406
B 5 & H b FE RIE Trade and other payables 30 17,272 16,666
SREE Contract liabilities 31 296 291
Hiv o m B & Other financial liabilities 32 1,231 1,171
51,487 80,467
HwWaE Total liabilities 55,496 82,584
HEZRER Total equity and liabilities 252,778 183,959
REBEEEE Net current assets 138,501 31,016
HWEERRBAERS Total assets less current liabilities 201,291 103,492

BEREIENEAMBREE N =_Z——4% The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 201 were
A= tEEEEeH EREETE - YA approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

MTFAEREZE:

30 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

EZ
Director

B 5
CHEN Li

EE
Director
ANER
LIU Xuezi
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZT_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

BA ROEE EFRG HERE iEHRE RKREEN 0 48R
Foreign
Share Share  Treasury exchange Statutory  Retained Total
capital  premium shares reserve reserve profits equity
Txn  FErn  FEx FEr FEr FER O TER
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
(Fik2e)  (W27) (W) (WRE27)  (M&27)
(Note 26) ~ (Note 27)  (Note 27)  (Note 27)  (Note 27)
BE-Z-AF1t-A=T-HLFE Year ended 31 December 2019
RZZ-N%-A—-H At 1 January 2019 4,150 18,945 3) (2,610) 9,564 58,390 88,436
M 2 (P F13) Dividends (Note 13) — — — — — (1,855) (1,855)
B 13 2 88 (Bt 5£27) Share repurchase (Note 27) — — (2,370) — — — (2,370)
AHEEEBARG (HF27) Cancellation of shares repurchased (Note 27) (178) (2,195) 2,373 — — — —
HEFANETRS Transactions with owners (178) (2,195) 3 = = (1,855)  (4,225)
FEEA Profit for the year — — — — — 18,349 18,349
EEEMR2ENG Other comprehensive income for the year
—BEBNEBELZESZR — Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations = = = (2,524) = = (2,524)
— REE-RBERTNEH — Exchange differences reclassified to
EaRENHRZEREN profit or loss upon partial disposal
EREE of an associate — — — 1,339 — — 1,339
FEXEYREE Total comprehensive income for the year = = - (1185) - 18,349 17,164
BREZETEHRE Appropriations to statutory reserve = = = = 337 (337) =
RZE-NE+-A=1—H At 31 December 2019 3972 16,750 — (3,795) 9,901 74,547 101,375
BE-B-ZE+-A=1+-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2020
WZE-F%-A—-H At 1 January 2020 3,972 16,750 - (3,795) 9,901 74,547 101,375
EREN Profit for the year - - - - — 88205 88,205
FEEM2ENG Other comprehensive income for the year
—REBNEBEEZELER — Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations - - - 5,765 - - 5,765
— BIELE-—HBLNRANERE  — Exchange differences reclassified to profit
BN BEBRNEREE o loss upon deemed disposal of
an associate - - - 1,937 - - 1,937
FEENEAT Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 7,702 - 88,205 95,907
BRETETHE Appropriations to statutory reserve - - - - 673 (673) -
BEERHEAR Deregistration of a subsidiary - - - - (346) 346 -
RZZZTF+ZA=+-H At 31 December 2020 3,972 16,750 - 3,907 10,228 162,425 197,282
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Hz—T—

ZE+-_A=+—-HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

*

—E-EF —h&F
2020 2019
FER FET
US$'000 Us$'000
REREXBZRERE Cash flows from operating activities
B BT 15 B4 A & F Profit before income tax 91,402 18,642
o Adjustments for:
B 75 B A Finance costs 2,051 4,409
B WA Interest income (558) (454)
JEMEEE L ARl 2 BT %24  Share of post-tax result of associates (88) (1,310)
EAEREBERE Provision for impairment of intangible
assets 2,946 5,495
ME - MENEZERERME  Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment 58 918
FERREERBERE Provision for impairment of right-of-use
asset 210 —
P — R B A AR R A Provision for impairment of interest in an
B B associate 386 396
REFTERBERE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 222 1,665
EENEAEE L] Provision for impairment of goodwill 1 —
HMBEREAOEBERE Loss allowance on financial guarantee
contract 927 —
STREEMNEBEE Loss allowance recognised/(reversed)
R, (FE) on financial assets 787 (230)
%% WERZEITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,500 2,829
KEMERE Depreciation of investment property 10 —
EREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 560 546
EmEEEH Amortisation of intangible assets — 561
HEME  BELZEN Loss on disposals of property, plant and
(=g equipment 131 118
57 & M 8H Write off of inventories 24 1,610
® Bl & = Write off of financial assets 34 572
PTHES R T BEMY Write off of derivative financial instrument — 1,910
HiemaEmAFENRZ  Fair value gain on other financial liabilities — (133)
AR IEFHEERN W = Gain on early termination of lease (13) —
HE—MEE QR (MM#Esm  Gain on partial disposal of an associate
# Ug 28 — (25,450)
BELE BB E QR 8 Gain on deemed disposal of an associate
Y 25 (45,618) —
BEATEFAEZN S H Realised gain from financial assets at
BEMNER K FVTPL (29,252) —
ERAFEFAEZNS R Unrealised gain from financial assets at
BEMNARER IS FVTPL (10,396) —
BEEAFEFAERZN Exchange differences arising on translation
SREEMNEH =58 of financial assets at FVTPL (3,423) —
E@ﬁ%?ﬁ@ﬁfﬁﬂ')\?‘ééﬁ’] Transaction costs and other tax in
HEESBSE=EED connection with partial disposal of
RGN H A R financial assets at FVTPL 3,917 —

P4 B ST IR AR A Al Lansen

Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEZZT-TF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

—E-EH —NF
2020 2019
SPESTE FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
BEAESEEA KL 5 Operating profit before working capital
changes 16,818 12,094
FERL Decrease in inventories 123 1,929
“”%&E@JEHK TE R, b Decrease in trade and other receivables 8,480 2,198
g5 Kk B e TAIE kD Decrease in trade and other payables (1,301) (4,631)
BEHBERYD Decrease in contract liabilities (14) (263)
HEELEZHE T Cash generated from operations 24,106 11,327
A AE Interest paid (1,991) (4,252)
B & TR Income tax paid (2,416) (154)
ARETEELE TR FEE Net cash generated from operating activities 19,699 6,921
%ﬁ&ﬁiﬁﬁlziﬂﬁ)ﬁ Cash flows from investing activities
B IR 1T A/ (#A1)  Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank deposits 14,253 (5,701)
BEWE lf‘?ibz%& % Purchase of property, plant and equipment (718) (1,367)
BEETEE Purchase of intangible assets (2,085) (2,150)
REHE B L AR oL Proceeds from partial disposal of an
Z B ERIE associate — 43,508
B E — Hﬁ’ﬁ%ﬁ’&jgﬁ’ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ Transaction costs and other tax in
B0 R 5 B AR I B A R connection with partial disposal of an
associate — (1,693)
REHEZRAFEAEIZHN  Proceeds from partial disposal of financial
SRBEMDER ZFBKIE  assets at FVTPL 67,086 —
BHHERAFEFABZMNEE Transaction costs and other tax in
BEMSHOEREHEHOTIKA  connection with partial disposal of
Ko H At Fi financial assets at FVTPL (3,917) —
WEZ A FEFAERZN Dividends received from financial assets at
TREERE FVTPL 459 —
1 B B & N A AR B Dividends received from an associate — 1,344
HEME BELXREBHRE Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
KIE and equipment 59 4
m— R E QR 2 BN Advance to an associate (1,460) (358)
o 8% — [ B 2 R A IR Payment for acquisition of an associate — (1,422)
2 Y F B Interest received 558 454
BREZBEFETLFE Net cash generated from investing activities 74,235 32,619
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE—ZT-ZTF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
—E-EF —E-NEF
2020 2019
Bt 5 FERx FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000

REMETH2HESAKRE  Cash flows from financing

activities
BTS2 BB Proceeds from borrowings 28 38,184 76,924
EEERZHE Repayment of borrowings 28 (69,472) (102,836)
B E Dividends paid — (1,855)
% 15 B §& 58 38 Payment for repurchase of shares — (2,370)
(= ﬁfﬂiﬁ,@i BN 4 %815  Repayment of principal portion of

lease liabilities 36 471) (475)
B E T BT £ F8  Net cash used in financing activities (31,759) (30,612)
ReRkBE2EEBM Net increase in cash and cash

I8 N equivalents 62,175 8,928

FONHReBRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 20,363 11,564
EXxZH o o8B Effects of exchange rate changes 871 (129)
FRAESRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end

of the year 83,409 20,363

BA A B 224 iR B R A Al Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited gg
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z-_ZTF+-_H=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. 2AFEH

pRA BB AR AR ([ARE ) R-=
ZNFALA+TREREHEEMK LA
EREFRAR ERHE-ZT—ZF
hAATtARERAHARIFMBR AR
(MB 22 FT)) =R ET7 o AN &) /9 7 1 9%
£z AWindward 3, Regatta Office Park,
P. O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
the Cayman Islands © AR A EB L %
BN BB EEHERISIFEFTER K

E121£1203-4F -

ARAMEBREBEHRREZER - K

REME AR GERARE
BOMETEXBEDREER

CRTEIASE

BB %

o AEEETREREARLAME (TP
BDETER  FHEHRME3S - F

N AEBXGHESKED -

N2 \) & Cathay International Holdings

Limited ([CIH]) 89 B A &)

CRRARER

REAMKY - EERDERERN&K
BRERARDHNASBFEREEEER

HE(FE)BRARKCH °
2. REVBRREHREE

REMBBRDREERSFTENEZS
e((BReHENZBES)BANFAAE
BIFR 75 s A - B e R 2R (T3
BRest Rl )RR E (AT SR BE R
B &R ) RFE(RBERADOKE

MIEMRSE - B

REMBHRRBEE

RPN TEmARRD R ERD

BRARE -

BARBREREES KA LR -
ERERERKEATEFBHETS
MAERABAKS - BBETA
HARBRENET(ETNEERA
AR EEH) 27 - THAEEY

HEBEREMOT -
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Corporate Information

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
an exempted limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 10 September 2009 and its shares have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7 May 2010. The
Company'’s registered office is located at Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, P. O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the
Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place of business is
located at Suites 12034, 12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacturing and trading of pharmaceutical products. The
principal activities of the Group are carried out in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and are set out in Note 34.
There were no significant changes in the Group’s operations
during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH"), a company incorporated in Bermuda. The
directors consider the immediate and ultimate holding
company to be Cathay International Pharma Manufacture and
Distribution (China) Limited and CIH respectively.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair values at the
end of each of the reporting period. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in United States Dollars (“US$"),
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ZZEF+ZA=+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3. Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs

3.1

AR

Adoption of new or revised IFRSs — effective on
1 January 2020

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new and amended IFRSs issued by the
IASB, which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2020:

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material

and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

The adoption of these amendments have no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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HEZZ-ZTHF+-HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new or revised IFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 39,
IFRS 4, IFRS 7, IFRS 9
and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Amendments to
IFRS 16

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to IAS 37

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 22

Reference to the Conceptual Framework*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions'

Amendments to IFRS 1 — First-time Adoption
of IFRS; Amendments to IFRS 9 — Financial
Instruments; Amendments to IFRS 16 and
Amendments to 1AS 41 — Agriculture®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of fulfilling a Contract®
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3. Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2

New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

4 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.
6 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on
or after a date to be determined.

Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of “settlement” to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments and revision in the future
will have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 16

IFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient
to lessees in accounting for rent concessions arising as
a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, by including an
additional practical expedient in IFRS 16 that permits
entities to elect not to account for rent concessions
as modifications. The practical expedient applies only
to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following
criteria are satisfied:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

(b)  the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

(c)  there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be
accounted for in accordance with this practical expedient,
which means the lessee does not need to assess whether
the rent concession meets the definition of lease
modification. Lessees shall apply other requirements of
IFRS 16 in accounting for the rent concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications
would have resulted in the Group remeasuring the
lease liability to reflect the revised consideration using
a revised discount rate, with the effect of the change
in the lease liability recorded against the right-of-use
asset. By applying the practical expedient, the Group is
not required to determine a revised discount rate and
the effect of the change in the lease liability is reflected
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact of the application of these amendments on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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HE-TZ-THF+-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

*

BRI NEEFT BRI RS

2R (%)

32 CEMEMKRERNHITIEE
&1 B B B 35 3 2 B (D
B BR R 75 3 & BRI E 1635 9 15 2T
(&)
BR DA £ Pt & 5N - & T FE A B
PRAHARENGEAEER
HEMBIRRELEBEARE -

TEETHEBE
REZEVBERERAFBOETERF R
RBABER T > BRARBHAN - ZFR
RERFBE2INEEERER -

mAEREE
MBARIRASERSHEBHE QR
MIEHIEERIGARAAR  ANRAEH
REEBMBRARNIZEFIERBRILES
AfR - BBME FRMPKERHEN
BRARMKRARBAXTIBEAREEGE
HEEAEFAGGRAE R EMBEEK
BmR BEEASETHEGEHEMBEL
AIMEBASL -

MERE - BEHHBANNYBRE
(EHBE  EERHRARARENR
SHECR— B -

BHASEREZHRINMESEER
REIEMEERAE  #xm WA X
HWRESREIANGEARTEZHY
e REREBETCDHE  BRIEZIRS
RENBEEELRRBREZRE  ME
ZIBERT BRI AERSER -

EAEEREMBARIIZEHIER  HE
BB as A O R E A 8 ¢ ()BT RER
BNRAFEREAREEDZNAFER
BRA)ZHBARNEE(BREBE) M
BEETCMAFEERESNAEEREME -
MAEREMmE2EE AERENREARAR
e R  ARITAMER BEWEEE
EXBECOKHE -

Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to IFRS 16 (Continued)

Except for those mentioned above, these amendments
are unlikely to have material impact on the Group’s
consolidated results and consolidated financial position
upon application.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case
the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities
were disposed of.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment losses, if any.
The result of the subsidiary is accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the end
of the reporting period. All dividends whether received out of
the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in
the Company’s profit or loss.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit ("CGU") is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable amount, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in use
(if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described below in the section heading
"Associates”.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, interests in associates are initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of losses of associates exceeds the
Group's interest in that associates (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes
associates. On acquisition of the interests in associates, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group'’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9")
are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s interest in
an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 /mpairment of Assets (“IAS 36”)
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
impairment loss been recognised for the interests in associates
in prior years.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be associates, or when the
investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains interests in the former associates and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with IFRS 9. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of partial interests in the
associates is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associates. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associates on the same basis as
would be required if that associates had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associates would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interests in associates
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associates that are not
related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below) are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other
than properties under construction) less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated useful lives
of major categories of property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Building and plant 20-50 years
Machineries 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and
is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation but not for sale in the ordinary
course of business, use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful life
of investment property is 40 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the assets (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially
at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences when
the intangible assets are available for use. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent impairment accumulated losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

BAAE B B IR A R A A Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 111



.

e B IS Rk Y EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEZZ-ZTHF+-HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

4., FEETBHRBEE) 4.

BILEE (BERM) KT EKA ()

W R K
ERHERERTELNBLEEEN
BUTHEIARERER

s BIHRNINERKLENEER
AT Al i1t

. AEEBBEETHKKERNHEE
FEE:

s AEEBTARENEAILESE
WEE:

. WVAEREBMBEMARLE
T A B B AR 26

s FARARM MBEREMERX
RETLEENTK: &

s BENZEWEEMRZENT

FE -

ALt iR B B R Sk RN R IR B B
REBRNFEXNEEFEERER -

AERFRHERMNEENEAERAR
B an A 5 A IR B AROE I (A AT AT 2 B
FHIH - BN IBRRER - 7
EREHERNDEMRERAESF
ETRERR -

BRRENEE(BERMNEE
AR ERER BT EE KW AR f#
EAMETEERBLRAKMEER

A eSS BEEETRERND  mAw
ERARRBREAGERE -

112 Annual Report 2020 4 #}

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs (Continued)

Research and development costs

An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on
an individual project is recognised provided they meet the
following recognition requirements:

] demonstration of technical feasibility of completing the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

o the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated,;

o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

. sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

Development expenditure which does not meet the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of internal
projects are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life are
amortised on straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives, when the products are available for use. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss. Capitalised development
costs with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that
have a finite useful life to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset (or CGU), discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets or
CGU.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
If an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a
revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised in profit or
loss. However, the decrease shall be recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The
decrease recognised in other comprehensive income reduces
the amount accumulated in the equity under the heading of
revaluation reserve.
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Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets
(other than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of any
depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. All reversals are
recognised in the profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case any reversal
of impairment should be treated as a revaluation and therefore
credited to other comprehensive income. However, to the
extent that an impairment on the revalued asset was previously
recognised as an expense in the profit or loss, a reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised as income in the profit or
loss.

Financial instruments

(i)  Financial assets
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at
FVOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to
profit or loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. FEETHBEBE(E) 4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
€@ T E(E) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) TAEEREERE (i) Impairment loss on financial assets
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The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) on trade receivables and other debt
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12
months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the reporting
period and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables using IFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. For
other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrate otherwise.

Credit-impaired financial assets

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Definition of default

The Group classifies credit risk on financial assets as
disclosed in Note 38. The internal credit risk ratings
are estimated based on qualitative (such as customers’
operating conditions, financial positions, etc.) and
quantitative factors (mainly includes past due information
of the receivables).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default (Continued)

The Group considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources which indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full. Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Werite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off of the extent that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECLs reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECLs is estimated as the weighted average
of the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, with
the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECLs (Continued)
For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses is the
present value of the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

Where ECLs is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
other receivables and finance lease receivables are
each assessed as a separate group.);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

(iii) Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.
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4. FEETHBEBE(E) 4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
€@ T E(E) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) =M 8 & (&)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are met:
(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses
on them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part
of a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for the gains and losses arising
from the Group’s own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other
financial assets (including borrowings, lease liabilities,
trade and other payables) and are recognised when the
Group becomes party to the contractual obligations of
the instrument. They are initially recorded at fair value,
net of issue costs. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using effective interest method.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECLs provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out in above; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.

(v) Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

(vi) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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(vii) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at their
fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at costs, and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

J does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the assets
or liabilities is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded
at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. US$) at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating
to that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases

The Group as lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months.
The lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability; (i) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,;
(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures the right-
of-use assets applying a cost model. Under cost model, the
right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of
the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use of the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at
the commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
("MPF Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries or
the maximum mandatory contribution as required by the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs, subject to a certain ceiling, as stipulated by the relevant
regulations.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. The
contributions recognised in respect to defined contribution
benefit plans are expenses as they fall due. Liabilities and
assets may be recognised if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or current assets
as they are normally of a short term nature.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase of
assets are included in liabilities as deferred government grants
in the consolidated statement of financial position and are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable and are recognised as “Other
income”, rather than reducing the related expense.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(i)
(ii)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Company’s parent.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segments under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its
consolidated financial statements prepared under IFRS, except
that:

] share of post-tax results of associates accounted for using
equity method;

] other non-operating income and expenses;

. finance costs; and

o certain income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating

segment are not included in arriving at the operating
results of the operating segment.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Loss allowance of trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
grouping of various customers that have similar loss patterns
(i.e., by customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default are adjusted. At the end of each
of the reporting period, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customers’ default in the future. The information about the
ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in Note 38.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group writes down its inventories to net realisable
value when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be realised. The identification of
obsolescence requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the estimate is different from the original amount, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
net realisable value for the periods in which such estimate
is changed. Management assesses the net realisable value of
the inventories and considers that the provision for inventories
impairment is adequate and reasonable at the end of each of
the reporting period. As at 31 December 2020, the provision
for obsolete inventories of US$2,255000 was made against
the carrying value of inventories (Note 22).

Useful lives of intangible assets

Management estimates the development costs, which
represented the intellectual property rights generated
internally in pharmaceutical industry and technical know-
how with perpetual royalty-free license with no termination,
have indefinite useful lives as they believe that there is no
foreseeable limit on the period of time over which these
intangibles are expected to provide cash flows and these
intellectual property rights can be renewable in a period of
time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in the
market.

The estimated useful lives of the exclusive distribution rights
and technical know-how were made by the management
with reference to the legal limits on the use of the assets
and the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of intangible assets. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations,
changed customer behavior and competitor actions in response
to industry cycles.

Management will increase the amortisation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives, or
will recognise impairment loss when future cash flows are less
than expectation and fall below the carrying amount of the
intangible assets.
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5. EEgHATRHE (&) 5. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Current income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises taxes based on estimates of the likely outcome with
reference to current tax laws and practices. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, an impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2020, the carrying amount of goodwill was US$6,824,000.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
Note 20.

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment losses for intangible assets are recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use, are determined with
reference to the best information available at the end of the
reporting period. Changing the assumptions selected by the
Group’s management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the operating and growth rate assumptions
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and financial performance. As at
31 December 2020, the carrying amount of intangible assets
was US$21,630,000 (Note 19).
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xR Ei - ERBEBHRAERAER
ERE - REBFMNEXHAEERNEAL
RERFPRNEGEEAREEEEMN
i 2 BEE T LA KB LU 3 an S AR L R
EAMBEES RN ZHER - Fitf - 18
EE A RRBRT ANE E [ FE A HF
X BEABRENNXREHEAYFER
HETT BRI & 2 GRS R
AIAEL A XA - EABRBAK
BRARE  AREEBABERBARE
(T EH R) B E L EB KA R AE
HETERBEENME (WHERRD
BYEEFR) -

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment comprise a
significant portion of the Group’s total assets. Changes in
technology or industry conditions may cause the estimated
period of use or the value of these assets to change. Property,
plant and equipment, subjects to depreciation, is reviewed at
least annually to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. The recoverable amount is estimated whenever
events or changes in circumstances have indicated that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Fair value of contingent consideration

The Group determines the fair value of contingent
consideration of purchase of intangible assets as disclosed in
Note 38 based on the forecast of future performance results
of the related pharmaceutical product and terms of acquisition
agreement. The fair value of contingent consideration will
be revised upward or downward where future performance
results are different from previous forecast and as a result,
the change of fair value of contingent consideration will affect
the Group’s financial position and financial performance. As
at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of contingent
consideration/other financial liabilities was US$1,231,000 (Note
32).

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate for lease
liabilities

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate to
measure lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the
rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow
over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The incremental
borrowing rate therefore reflects what the Group “would have
to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the
incremental borrowing rate using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-
alone credit rating).
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AEBEREL T RFEERAEEFRER R R
miE A B & o WHRAO FH BY & T HY 5 AE A 1 A

o RBEZT_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE "
AEE WA EE SR 1T E BT R R
ESTHRMETEN (MR EET S ]) B RETH
B)£162,0007 7T ([ 7T | XA8 & 7821,000% 7T) AR
INAEBEETMH - BRERMENE  A&£E
BEERERETHBERNEZEHBBARFIE S
ﬂﬂ%ﬂ%@a/\%mlﬂ# EXRFULAT - #p&
DEEHREEEABBEENHEBEAANILCE - A&
llﬂﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁs TEERAMRBTERE -

5. EEgHATRHE (&) 5. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)
AHIRAZHEZRAERAR (H KX Classification of equity investment in Zhejiang Starry
YNHRERENSE Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Starry”)
RZEZTFMAZ+8 AEEBH On 26 April 2020, since the director of the Group's subsidiaries
BRAEMEETHELIAYMNES - was ceased to be a director of Starry, the Group did not
WK*IT@%T““I??&LTTEEKE’] have the right to exercise significant influence on Starry and
8 B KRIERE mﬂﬁ_u%$%@ accordingly derecognised its interests in Starry as an associate

E’J e nE o NEEIZBERMGRE of the Group. They are classified as financial assets at FVTPL
BIE95R A48 S| - HATHF 77(43’]1& according to the guidance in IFRS 9. This classification requires
DERBRATEFAERNERMEE o significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
HESBEFEELERAE - EELHL evaluated the intention of holding the shares of Starry at
HHER  AEBEFGFEAENR AL inception.
RO RHEEE -
EATFEFAEZNERNEENEBSY Change in value of financial assets at FVTPL is recognised
) RERPERAEEMIELEERA in profit or loss as part of other non-operating income and
kAX—85 expenses.

6. WARHEMEKA 6. Revenue and Other Income
REBRFEANERTPSAMGEHKRAR An analysis of the Group’s revenue which are generated from
H ARSI IAT : contracts with customers and other income for the years are

as follows:
—E-EH —E—hE
2020 2019
TER FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
HEERBWEKA Revenue from sales of goods 54,386 54,257
H 1 i A Other income

R 17 A8 Bank interest income 558 454
BFfHE & Government grants (Note) 370 878
Hits Others 1,135 2,370
2,063 3,702

Bt 7 Note:

The Group received grants from the local government in the PRC mainly
attributed to the Group’s development of high-technology pharmaceutical
products. The grants received were not subject to any conditions.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received
government grants of Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") 162,000 (equivalent to
US$21,000) from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-pandemic
Fund launched by the government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the PRC supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees. Under the ESS,
the Group had to commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses, and not
reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a specified period
of time. The grant is allocated to the consolidated profit or loss to match the
relevant costs incurred. The Group does not have other unfulfilled obligations
relating to this program.
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Segment Information

Information reported to the executive managing director, being
the chief operating decision maker ("CODM"), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
based on the types of goods delivered.

The Group'’s reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8

Operating segments ("IFRS 8") are as follows:

—  Pharmaceuticals: development, production and sale
of specialty pharmaceuticals mainly used in the
field of rheumatology and dermatology and other
pharmaceuticals

—  Cosmetic products: sale of cosmetic products

—  Healthcare products: development, production and sale
of healthcare products

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
from operations by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Bz XREm BEEM Bt
Cosmetic Healthcare
Pharmaceuticals products products Total
TER TER TER TER
Uss$'000 Uss$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BTE@DHBRA Reportable segment revenue 51,504 132 2,750 54,386
BY2H/DHEF,/(BE)  Reportable segment profit/(loss) 21,349 (1,827) (11) 19,511
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7. DETER(E) 7. Segment Information (Continued)
BE-Z-—NF+-HA=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE EREM REEM B
Cosmetic Healthcare
Pharmaceuticals products products Total
T TET T TET
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
BTERDDUWA Reportable segment revenue 50,537 185 3,535 54,257
BY2HEDHEF,/(BE)  Reportable segment profit/(loss) 16,676 (1,566) 177 15,287

EXFRERD BBRABREINET PR
BROBA - AEREFEEFELEDF
RlH & o

AEEKED BEENBBERREME
BREFOANEE T ZHHEROH IR

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in
the current year and prior year.

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconciled to the Group's key financial figures as presented in

N the consolidated financial statements is as follows:
—EEF —T—hF
2020 2019
FEx FET
Us$'000 uUs$'000
AT E2W D 5 F L5 Total results of reportable segment profit 19,511 15,287
JEEB S DA MBRIE R ¥ A Share of post-tax result of associates 88 1,310
HaE & WA REX Other non-operating income and expenses 80,513 19,559
RO A Unallocated income 2,063 3,835
K7 B X2 Unallocated expenses (8,722) (16,940)
B 7% AR AN Finance costs (2,051) (4,409)
& P15 %4 Al @ A Profit before income tax 91,402 18,642

RS EERF TREE D #B Y

G ETBUR B AR N E 1 & 5
R—H - ATEBRH N, (BEE)E
BERRHERN,(EB) RMHEE RS #HFH
XOTIREREERRAEREERSD
EEKRBFERENTET X -

FEMEBE AR BRI K G - IR
BHERARRAX - BBRAME THRA
EXHEARNEERTERSH  BAT
MARBRETZLERRABRFGES
MEENATERD BEENTED -
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The accounting policies of the operating segments under IFRS
8 are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in Note 4. Reportable segment profit/(loss) represents the
gross profit/(loss) less selling and distribution expenses by each
segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment.

Share of post-tax result of associates, other non-operating
income and expenses, finance costs and certain income and
expenses are not allocated to the reportable segments as they
are not included in the measure of the results of reportable
segment that is used by CODM for assessment of segment
performance.
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B

AEBECER LRABRME RS ER
FISREEFLAATF K et » WEFE
REBFAFRAR—FINTZEHZH
TEHEE-

ETERT BEEFANMBRARIE
b [ T 45 M MR A E BB B B0 4R

Segment Information (Continued)

Revenue of approximately US$8,491,000 (2019: US$5,708,000)
was derived from sales to an external customer under
pharmaceuticals segment, which contributed 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue during the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations under the contracts that
have an original expected duration of one year or less.

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers
is disaggregated by primary geographical market and timing
of revenue recognition:

—E-EF ZT-NF
2020 2019
Fxt FET
Us$'000 Us$'000

TEHETS Primary geographical markets
hE (F B The PRC (domicile) 52,116 51,350
8 S Overseas 2,270 2,907
54,386 54,257

WA TRz B Timing of revenue recognition
T2 15 T B A B At a point in time 54,386 54,257

EFHNMRUBENTEEMHIMNERE
£ o ARAIARFASAHSEMKILNKR
BERAR  MAKEEE W &I
X% - AKENTELERTEERMG
KPR Ei - PEBERS SRS E
AIFESEAIREMWEM S HAIEAE
EEHEERK -

RMEFE AKENFREFRDEE
BIHLRPE -

BHRYEEHAETZLERRAERD
MEEXDHAEEFR AL EE2IA
A K o

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location to which the goods were delivered. The Company is
an investment holding company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands where the Group does not have any activities, the
Group has the majority of its operations and workforce in
the PRC, and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group's
country of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as
required by IFRS 8.

Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were located
in the PRC in both years.

No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they
are not regularly reported to the CODM.
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8. HMEKEMRAREX

8. Other Non-Operating Income and Expenses
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—EZEF —E—NnF
2020 2019
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
HE—MEE QAR EoE=ED Gain on partial disposal of an associate
Y 25 (Bt 5% (a)) (Note (a)) — 25,450
% ’“$T§ FTAIBEM SR EER Realised gain from financial assets at
230 W 2= (Bt 5% (b)) FVTPL (Note (b)) 29,252 —
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ“?ﬁ AR Transaction costs and other tax in
PREED I ERAR connection with partial disposal of
R AR EAbF financial assets at FVTPL (3,917) —
R & — B E QR AU E Gain on deemed disposal of an
associate 45,618 —
BEAFEFAEBZNSMEER Unrealised gain from financial assets at
RNEH W FVTPL 10,396 —
BREZATEFAEZN Exchange difference arising on
eREERENEZE translation of financial assets at FVTPL 3,423 —
A R E R (T EE19) Provision for impairment of intangible
assets (Note 19) (2,946) (5,495)
7 — Bt 8 8 B B R A Provision for impairment of interest in
SRk 1B B A an associate (386) (396)
W ERENBEEE Loss allowance on financial guarantee
(B 5E37()) contract (Note 37(f)) (927) —
80,513 19,559
M & Notes:
(a) REBEE—T-—AF+-_A=+—HLEFE " (a) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had disposed of a
AEEREBBLHRGMEBTHRHH total of 9,729,028 shares in Starry via on-market sales on the Shanghai
B 539,729,028 R Al A Bk 1 - FHER Stock Exchange, at the average price of Renminbi (“RMB”) 30.83 per

BERARE(TARY]30.83T EAH

% [ 5> # 2% #) Ug 2525,450,0003% 7T > A H
DiETE T - AE ER B K AR R P

1& —T-hhF+=-A=1+—HHK4.0% °

(b) REE-_T_THF+_A=1+—HILEE "
ZKEIHALE HARGMBERATISER 5
—# HE A 346,149,867/ A K B fh  F
HERASERARBKT7598T  EXZRIK
é(%ﬂ&%i%ﬁkli&ﬁf@%ﬁ)zsaaaooo%

TeREERIERE  AEBERAANL
HY % 1 B 4 j:—?—gﬁz+ A=+—H&
1.3% °

share and resulting in a gain on partial disposal of US$25,450,000. After
the partial disposal, the Group’s equity interest in Starry was reduced
to 4.0% as at 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had further
disposed of a total of 6,149,867 shares in Starry via on-market sales
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, at the average price of RMB75.98
per share and resulting in a realised gain of US$25,335,000 (net of
transaction costs and other tax). After the partial disposal, the Group’s
equity interest in Starry was reduced to 1.3% as at 31 December 2020.
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Bt & B A< 9. Finance Costs
—E-EF —T-NF
2020 2019
SPES T FET
US$’000 Us$'000
;AT A A Interest on bank borrowings 1,853 4,199
HEBEMN S (M E36) Interest on lease liabilities (Note 36) 44 53
FERTR XM B A R A9 FE B Cross guarantee commission fee payable
RE<E R E37) to a fellow subsidiary (Note 37) 94 94
AR BT IR (M 5E38(b)) Unwinding of discount on contingent
consideration (Note 38(b)) 60 63
2,051 4,409
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10. BR AT 158 B Al & F 10. Profit before Income Tax
REER KRS AEF T &k (G The Group's profit before income tax has been arrived at after
AN THFIEFH charging/(crediting):
gt 32 —F—hF
2020 2019
FEx FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
% S0 AN B & Auditors’ remuneration
— ZHRH — Audit services 275 271
— FEERG — Non-audit services 92 m
HRBESTMFERAN(H ) Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
(Note) 19,207 20,928
| A E Amortisation of intangible assets — 561
CRAEEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 560 546
KEWMERE Depreciation of investment property 10 —
ME BERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,500 2,829
B EERBERE Provision for impairment of
intangible assets 2,946 5,495
Y% BWENLZRERERE  Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment 58 918
FREEERBER G Provision for impairment of right-of-use
assets 210 —
FRE T & R B #E Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 222 1,665
MBERSANEERG Loss allowance on financial guarantee
contract 927 —
EREENEERERER Loss allowance recognised/(reversed)

($& @) on financial assets 787 (230)
PE 5 Uk z )% 58 Net exchange gain (6,941) (364)
KEMENHES WA Rental income from investment property (20) —
o 2% X AR Research and development costs 2,225 828
HEME  MENRERNEIE Loss on disposals of property, plant and

equipment 131 118
IRATR I E /U &= Gain on early termination of lease (13) —
& & MsH Write off of inventories 24 1,610
R A E s Write off of financial assets 34 572
BT RA(BIEE S Employee costs (including directors’

(B 5E11)) remuneration (Note 11))

— IE&NH® — Wages and salaries 12,622 11,479

— BAREFEIHK — Retirement benefit plans contribution 1,336 2,002
13,958 13,481

Bt 7 Note:

HRARAINEFEERABEEEERA - ERE Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included amounts relating to

BEFE V¥ BERIBFWEUARMBEEE employee costs, depreciation of right-of-use assets, depreciation of property,

BENHRIE  ZEFENEELE LLASERIF - plant and equipment and write off of inventories, which are also included in

the respective expenses disclosed separately above.
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1. ESNEEESHEA TN HMH 11. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid

Individuals
B Directors’ emoluments
Bt sk T AR A E E M H B AR The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to the
wm directors of the Company are as follows:
Hit 5 B
Other emoluments
e 2E RREF
we ANEVEN WiERe SRR @t
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary benefit plans
Fees in kind bonus contributions Total
TEn TEx T£x TR TEn
Uss$'000 Uss$'000 Uss$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
HE-E-%% Year ended
TZAt-BLEE 31 December 2020
BRNTES: Executive managing director:
B Chen Li - 490 123 1 624
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
REE Wu Zhen Tao — — — - —
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 — - - 39
S Liu Xuezi - 16 154 - 170
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive directors:
BiE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 — - - 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 32 — - - 32
G Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 35 — - - 35
141 506 277 1" 935
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11. EENEBRSHFA LW 11.

Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid

(&) Individuals (Continued)
EEEHM(E) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
H At %5 B
Other emoluments
Ho R BB
we HNEDER HERS APEIfE R o
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary  benefit plans
Fees in kind bonus  contributions Total
TEn TEn TEx TEn TEn
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
HEZZ—NF Year ended
+-A=+—HIFE 31 December 2019
BRNTES: Executive managing director:
Bh Chen Li — 461 186 17 664
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
REE Wu Zhen Tao — — — — —
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 — — — 39
FEERW-Z-NE Lee Jin Yi (resigned on
+A=1+—HE&f) 31 October 2019) — — — — —
EERS Liu Xuezi = = 14 = 14
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive directors:
BiE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 — — - 35
BREM-Z-NEF Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond
mANBEEE) (resigned on 9 April 2019) 10 — — — 10
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 32 = = = 32
BER Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 35 - — — 35
151 461 200 17 829

MEBEEENRLARERREEZ_FT_F
FR-F-NE+-_A=+—HLFE
TR ST -

HERSBRREFTHORR -

BHE_T-_ZFR-_FT—-NEF+=A=
+T—BLEFE - AEEHRREME
EE W AR &S B A LTI A
& EANMAREE X IMAREEERD
REXIERABBRHE -
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There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Discretionary bonus are determined on director’s performance.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any of
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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11.

12.

Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid

EENHAERSHA LN H M 1.
(#&) Individuals (Continued)
AEEmEFAL Five highest paid individuals

hEERFALTEERARRMBESR (=
Z-NF:—REF) REMSFBER
EXFAARDTARR - T=R(=F
—NF OB ESHFATOEHEHMFED

The five highest paid individuals consisted of two directors
(2019: one director) of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
Details of emoluments of the remaining three (2019: four)

T highest paid individuals were as follows:
i —ZE-NF
2020 2019
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
e EANEDETF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 334 298
(R Discretionary bonus 160 128
R K8 5T B R Retirement benefit plans contributions 26 34
it Total 520 460

SN FLEMREIFEFTALOH BN FIA

The emoluments paid to each of the above non-director

Tk : individuals were within the following bands:
—B-®F T NHF
2020 2019
AE A
No of No of
individuals individuals
= %1,000,000/% 7T Nil = HK$1,000,000 — 3
1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 3 1
Fir 15 Bi B 2 12. Income Tax Expense
—E-%F —T-NF
2020 2019
FER FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
EHFTS I Current income tax
— KEE — Current year 1,674 1,004
— BEFERHBTR — Under provision in prior years 44 75
1,718 1,079
i 3 B 78 (P 3£ 29) Deferred tax (Note 29) 1,479 (786)
FrisfAx Income tax expense 3,197 293
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12.

Fit & BB < (&)
ERBUEN R BCDRARBREMER
BRIAEBRAERREAE -

RIEEBFS T B R RFN G REH -

A EE D E B E2,000,000 5T 14 5T
JE RR TR 5 ) 128.25% FO B R B 40 75 8

I 1% $216.5% B9 B 840 492,000,000 7T
A B FTERFER 2B - THEMW
BACHEBIINECEZNEEER
165%MEEMI - BEZZT-_ZTFR
—E-NF+_A=+—HLEFEAMW

12.

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Tax on assessable profits has been calculated at the applicable
rates of tax prevailing in the tax jurisdiction in which the Group
operates.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime for Hong Kong
profit tax, the first HK$2,000,000 of the estimated assessable
profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and
the estimated assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporations not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%. The two-tiered profits tax rates regime
was applicable to the Group for the years ended 31 December

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax

BFAESHEEBHERARAER - 2020 and 2019.
BREFBECEMSRE(REMNEGH

5£J)&ﬁf§iﬁﬁimﬁu B BT B A B A9 R

R AEI5% (ZF— N5 25%) °

AT -TFE+— A8 NEEREH
BRAAEE I SHEMEEIER=F
BEFRFE L EA T -_TFE_-F
ZFEN=FHATZHI5%NEBRR
= o

FAMGHRAXEGABREaERAEME

rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2019: 25%).

On 1 December 2020, one subsidiary of the Group renewed
the “High Technology Enterprise” status for 3 vyears that
entitled them a preferential tax rate of 15% for a period of
three years starting from 2020 to 2022 according to the PRC
tax law.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

H U = 3% BT 7R B BT 18 B4 A & ) 89 ¥ BR profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of
I profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
—E-2F —NF
2020 2019
FTEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
& BT 15 74 Bl A Profit before income tax 91,402 18,642
ZERBRBBRAEERN Tax on profit at the rates applicable
wm ARG E R BIE to the jurisdictions concerned 13,827 3,597
LIk fRﬁ'ﬂS‘ZE’JTRﬁ%%‘E Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 2,472 2,143
BEZRRIK AN G E Tax effect of non-taxable income (16,283) (5,871)
JEREEE AR B RED Tax effect of share of post-tax result of
BB associates 43) (331)
BAEFEBETR Under provision in prior years 44 75
NHE R EE 18 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 2,269 1,022
H A Others 911 (342)
g8 Income tax expense 3,197 293
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HE-T-ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

13.

14.

8N 13. Dividends
ZEZEHF —T-NF
2020 2019
TER FETT
Us$'000 us$'000
FARIADIKHEK S : Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
—E-N\FREKRE — 2018 final dividend — HK3.58 cents per
FH3.587 Wl (B A 490.465 1))  share (approximately US0.46 cents per
share) — 1,855

BE-_ZTZ—hNhF+-—A=+—8 &A
AIKNR-_E-—N\F+_A=+—HE&
FHHRER B FAR3.588 1L (FE R
0.463 {lli) - #85114,823,0007 JT (#8 &
M #91,855,0003 7T) °

BE_Z_ZFER-_F—NLF+_A=
+—H  ARREEITEZIRERAR
=

BREF
ERERNBNIZARARFEE A B
4 i 788,205,000k ;T (=T — L &F -
18,349,000( jo) K A B R FE RN A RQ H
BT 5 ok B 7E 88 A EE 17 AR 10 18 /9 hn 4
) & 8 % 397,172,000 (— T — h F
403,894,6000% ) 5t & -

LR B0 8 R A R AR

14.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company settled
a final dividend of HK3.58 cents (equivalent to approximately
US0.46 cents) per share, totally amounting to HK$14,823,000
(equivalent to approximately US$1,855,000) proposed during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
final dividend.

Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
of US$88,205,000 (2019: US$18,349,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 397,172,000 (2019:
403,894,600), after adjusting the treasury shares held or
cancelled by the Company, outstanding during the year.

The Group had no potential dilutive shares for both years.
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TZTHF+ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. W% BERRKE
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment

BFREE B "E KARRB @st
Furniture
Building Motor and
and plant Machineries vehicles  equipment Total
FTxrn FTxrn FTxrn FTxrn FTxrn
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
N_Z—-hF—A—H At 1 January 2019
B A Cost 27,473 15,161 531 3,096 46,261
2T ERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (7,474) (7,627) (332) (2,566) (17,999)
BREZE Net carrying amount 19,999 7,534 199 530 28,262
BE-ZT-NLF+=-A=1+—H Year ended 31 December 2019
EFE
FYPREFE Opening net carrying amount 19,999 7,534 199 530 28,262
fE R A% Exchange adjustment (312) (294) () (10) (620)
NE Additions 28 775 92 472 1,367
neE Depreciation (1,035) (1,328) (43) (423) (2,829)
A Impairment (5) (886) (10) (17) (918)
RE Disposals = (98) = (24) (122)
FEREEFE Closing net carrying amount 18,675 5,703 234 528 25,140
—NEFZA=+—HB At 31 December 2019
A Cost 27,050 14,775 612 3,227 45,664
2 MERRAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (8,375) (9,072) (378) (2,699) (20,524)
REFE Net carrying amount 18,675 5,703 234 528 25,140
HE-_Z-_ZTHF+_H=+—H Year ended 31 December 2020
M:Ef
FOREFE Opening net carrying amount 18,675 5,703 234 528 25,140
[ X 35 % Exchange adjustment 1,203 306 20 38 1,567
NE Additions 128 322 95 173 718
e Depreciation (1,364) (986) (31) (119) (2,500)
E Impairment - (53) (1 @) (58)
BRE Disposals (37) (113) — (40) (190)
& (fsE17) Transfer out (Note 17) (286) — — — (286)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 18,319 5,179 317 576 24,391
RZZ-_ZTE+-A=1—H At 31 December 2020
B A Cost 28,634 14,161 696 3,067 46,558
2 ERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (10,315) (8,982) (379) (2,491) (22,167)
REFE Net carrying amount 18,319 5,179 317 576 24,391
BHE_Z_TF+_A=+—HILFE - During the year ended 31 December 2020, provision for

MR BEREAERE - W% BEKLR
BB B 4 4558,000K 7T (ZF — /1.5
918000%7‘5) WEREBZREREIT
B — 85 (M 5E10)  AEDE - B
EREEBHREAEREZATWE S5 -

impairment of property, plant and equipment of US$58,000
(2019: US$918,000) was recognised in profit or loss as part
of administrative expenses (Note 10) to reduce the carrying
amounts of the property, plant and equipment to their
recoverable amounts as a result of physical damaged and
technically obsolescence.
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16. EFRAEEE 16. Right-of-use Assets

AEEEEGENREERER(BRESP
BEEE) HEZEMAGH - E
BNLHERRARE HEFEEN
HERBREEEHANBEENRK -

The Group leases a number of office premises, motor vehicle,
prepaid land lease and office equipment in the jurisdictions
from which it operates, including the PRC and Hong Kong.
The leases of these assets comprise only fixed payments over
the lease term.

—ECEHF ZE—NF

2020 2019

FExx FE

Us$'000 us$'000

FHREFE Opening net carrying amount 2,698 2,942

b 5, 3 B Exchange adjustment 151 (44)

NE Additions 980 346

e Depreciation (560) (546)

AR IEHE Early termination of lease (286) —

(B Impairment (210) —

(M 5E17) Transfer out (Note 17) (323) —

FREEAEFE Closing net carrying amount 2,450 2,698

(DN Cost 4,232 4,104
2 ERRE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (1,782) (1,406)

REFE Net carrying amount 2,450 2,698

REBEE B2 ERAEEEREF
BzoMT:

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

= e
2020 2019
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
AN LA E - BITER AT Prepaid land lease, carried at

depreciated cost 1,551 1,834

WMABR - AERBARE Office premises, motor vehicle and office
R & AP BR equipment carried at depreciated cost 899 864
REDFE Net carrying amount 2,450 2,698
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17. REYE 17. Investment Property
—EC-EF
2020
TEx
Uss$'000
B ¥ BRE 3B Opening net carrying amount —
b 5, 3 B Exchange adjustment 34
A (i FE155%16) Transfer in (Notes 15 and 16) 609
e Depreciation (10)
HRAREFE Closing net carrying amount 633
X A Cost 915
ES i Accumulated depreciation (282)
REFE Net carrying amount 633

15[] Annual Report 2020 4 #§

AEENRENE/UNTENEEY
X UYRAFEHETBEIFE =77 °

REYWER T _ZTF+_-_HA=+—H
A B4 A644,000k 7T ° AFETY
R IR BB A R A AH 78 5 5 B A8 0 7E 4 5T
HREMENUEMERN TEEELR
MBS AR AT ERAERARE
THHESBD -

RFEFEDREDSEL - Bt 2F
ETVABE R BORETHET - LRR
ERBURTHALENRZEMSE
BERALHEHERS  -TEGABERE
FHATIGER MEERIERBRE
ERA/THREEBRRENE L RATER
ZEm,/ T -  REVENRATEAE
BB 5 RS ERIE13R A FE
EIMRENRFESRFE=H-

The Group's investment property is a commercial property in
the PRC which is leased to an independent third party during
the year.

The fair value of the investment property as at 31 December
2020 was approximately US$644,000. The fair value has been
arrived at based on a valuation carried out by Ascent Partner
Valuation Service Limited, an independent valuer who holds
a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has
experience in the location and category of the investment
property being valued.

The fair value was determined based on the market approach,
where the fair value is estimated by the direct comparison
method on the assumption of the sale of the property interest
with the benefit of vacant possession and by referring to the
asking prices and comparable sales transactions as available
in the market. The key input was the market price per square
metre. A significant increase/decrease in the market price
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value
of the investment property. The fair value measurement of the
investment property falls into level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement".




&R A B 1% dhak B 5E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HeE—T—

THE+-H=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

*

18.

BAFEFABRGENERMEE

18. Financial Assets at FVTPL

—E-2F —ET-NEF

2020 2019

FEx F=ET

Us$’000 Us$'000

ETRAZS  RATE Listed equity securities, at fair value 32,815 —

BN LS BRIAVRZE
—EFNA -+ ANETNBRAEE A
ERAE  AEBEFENRIANLKG D
HARBRATEFABENEMEE -

R-BE-_ZTFE+_A=+—H8  A£E@8H
B 3,252,493 Al KL 1m - B E R F)
KNI BEBETRAL13% °

AR ERE (AR AFEFABRED
TREE)ERAMBMAR ER-_F =
EEFT_A=+—HANKREERREE
AetEl M BEEIEERSME
BRBERRANGERR-_F_ZF+
“A=t-HEXRAAVELBREFR
SRR ES R ARK6583TTATH -
BN R B E At - AR B R RE AR
B IR 2 AR K Re AN 6% 8 3 B K 57 HO Rk 5
XEBEFRGABRARS - AEEE
BRREEHEMSZEEXRAANILRG
R-ZE-_ZF+_A=+—HAWKEE
BEERNEKE - R AZAEHEAHAL
ERHEANBREERR ST+
A=t B8 KRBE AIRHFSHRL

BRPHEREZAFEAABSENEHE
AR B 1R o

ERDNORER

As mentioned in Note 5 above, the shares of Starry held by the
Group were classified as financial assets at FVTPL after Starry
ceased to be an associate of the Group on 26 April 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held a total of 3,252,493
shares in Starry, representing approximately 1.3% interest of the
issued share capital of Starry.

The carrying value of the interests in Starry (i.e. financial assets at
FVTPL) as at 31 December 2020 in the consolidated statement
of financial position was calculated based on the closing price of
RMB65.83 per share available on Shanghai Stock Exchange on
31 December 2020 in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards after the discussion with BDO Limited. As stated in
the interim report, with great fluctuation in the share price of
Starry and since the disposal of shares in Starry that was subject
to the rules of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the value of the
proceeds of the Group from the actual disposal may fluctuate
significantly as compared with the carrying value of in interests
in Starry as at 31 December 2020. If the stock price of Starry
on a subsequent date or on the actual disposal date is below
the closing price as at 31 December 2020, there would be an
unrealised/realised loss from financial assets at FVTPL recognised
in profit or loss subsequent to the reporting period.
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18.
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%;%SFE%)\E%:‘&E’\JQEEEE
&

REBBERI AL BRHTE - BHLEE
ERARRNEBR _E-_TFE+A+=H
MR ASRERTHLERE -
ARABR-_ZE-_ZTFENA-—+WACATRE
ETNEEEALESE: HEMNTA
AU BERHBRAR EMEFREE
BAXRSBEIZHBE  ARFRTZ
TEFRATHRBCAREETHNIEFTERKR
HEZRE: FEHEIAIRMIZAE
MARBIN-_E-_TF+—A=HEME
NE BB ABOE LRSS ED
NEREZ RGBT E (R DB R
S 1) F A S BR & M Al B i — AR IR IR
BRI EILER AL KD - AEEE
BFEMMBBZEBRTE - WH I #EE
BITHERE -

18. Financial Assets at FVTPL (Continued)

The Group may further dispose of the shares of Starry under
the share reduction plan (“Share Reduction Plan”) as disclosed
in the announcement headed “Voluntary Announcement in
relation to Seventh Share Reduction Plan of Starry” of the
Company dated 3 November 2020, the announcement headed
“Possible Very Substantial Disposal in relation to Disposal of
Starry Shares” of the Company dated 15 May 2020 and the
circular headed “Possible Very Substantial Disposal: Disposal of
Listed Securities of Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and
Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting” of the Company dated
24 June 2020, and subject to prevailing market price of the
shares of Starry and general conditions of the stock market, the
disposal mandate granted at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Group on 13 July 2020 as well as the restrictions set
out in the Share Reduction Plan. The Group will comply with
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules accordingly
and make further announcement(s) in this regard as and when
appropriate.
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19. BEFXEE 19. Intangible Assets
RERREA
FRBR
BXOHE HWEXAR BERA EXAR FAE #ct
Indefinite-
Exclusive lived
distribution Technical Development technical
right ~ know-how costs  know-how License Total
Txn TEn Txn Txn TEL TEn
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

(M 3E@) (Pt (b)) (ik=2(9) (@) (i)
(Note () (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d)) (Note ()

RZZ2-AF—-A—A At 1 January 2019
KA Cost 291 5,973 14,061 9,078 1,134 30,537
ZHEERAE Accumulated amortisation and

impairment (145) (4,012) (570) — — (4,727)
REFE Net carrying amount 146 1,961 13,491 9,078 1134 25,810
HEZT—NE Year ended 31 December 2019

TZA=+—HLFE

FUREFE Opening net carrying amount 146 1,961 13,491 9,078 1134 25,810
[EH A% Exchange adjustment (1) 9) (198) 3) 23) (234)
AE — AEHE Additions — internal development — — 1,874 — — 1,874
NE — W Additions — acquisition = = = 276 = 276
4] Amortisation (29) (532) — — — (561)
B E Impairment (116) (1,420) (3,662) (59) (238) (5,495)
EREEFE Closing net carrying amount — — 11,505 9,292 873 21,670

R-ZE—AFE+-HA=+—H At 31 December 2019

KA Cost 287 5,876 15,685 9,351 1,108 32,307
ZHEBHRAE Accumulated amortisation and

impairment (287) (5,876) (4,180) (59) (235) (10,637)
FEZE Net carrying amount = = 11,505 9,292 873 21,670
HE-Z-%Z% Year ended 31 December 2020

TZAZT-HLEEFE

FUREFE Opening net carrying amount - - 11,505 9,292 873 21,670
EHAR Exchange adjustment - - 795 15 " 821
RE — WEPF % Additions — internal development - - 2,085 - — 2,085
A Impairment — — (2,062) - (884) (2,946)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount - - 12,323 9,307 - 21,630

RZZEZZF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2020

KA Cost 307 6,282 18,203 9,370 1,185 35,347
ZHEHERAE Accumulated amortisation and

impairment (307) (6,282) (5,880) (63) (1,185) (13,717)
FEEE Net carrying amount - - 12,323 9,307 - 21,630
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19.

BREE(E)
BBENEMNS  BXTEMR BREE

mkEMEEAENETEE - W15
P& 2z - BERRERME16PT
FICERREECREBEEENREER
SEEEM-

AIREICRENEREBENAEELET - %
EEAFEREREETEEMERKASF
BRI 5EE R IR R 2 78 8 LA17.00%

EOR%M AR E(ZZE—NF:
15.43% £17.00%) - BB A F HH IR &
ﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁﬂmﬁw EREAERT

EEHAMESBEDBRRSRA S
R G B REEEHERER
% o BB ER BB ERRN
REREHTHEROEY - EEEA
& EAESERALHRN AR

BreEgAaREEBAE T KD A
8 o
HE-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HILFE "
m%mﬁémmm TR IR ﬂ%
B E R E B 52,946,000 L (=
JL4F 15,495,000 7T) * W E A8 =

HE R A FE A M IR A I B e (FfT =
8) — & - UAGELEEMNREERE
ER M E S -

P o

(@ R-ZF-—=F+_H AKEE-ZHEN
AYBRpH UG- RBERETER
HI0FM DK - WA HBIRERERER

10FFHEE-_Z-—NE-A—HRAKH
DEERR)EE c NBEFE  BRAM
BOZ2HEBIE -

(b) KRMEXMBAEIBREAREREES TH
an 1T 42 B8 B B i R BL 5 e

B-Z——F+tA—Bi BEOEERE
) 1 1l 55 2 A A R #540,993,0007T . B
BEERT—FEHEBE RBEFE -
RMBEXANFZEZERME °
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19.

Intangible Assets (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment assessment, intangible assets
related to cosmetic products, healthcare products and other
pharmaceuticals, property, plant and equipment set out in
Note 15 and right-of-use assets set out in Note 16 have been
allocated to CGUs according to the nature of projects.

The recoverable amounts have been determined based on value
in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period, and pre-tax discount rate of ranged from
17.00% to 19.72% (2019: 15.43% to 17.00%). The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-
year period is 0%. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, provision for
impairment of intangible assets of US$2,946,000 (2019:
US$5,495,000) was recognised in profit or loss as part of other
non-operating income and expenses (Note 8) to reduce the
carrying amounts of the intangible assets to their recoverable
amounts as a result of the unsatisfactory market demand for
the corresponding products.

Notes:

(a) In December 2013, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement
with a supplier to secure the distribution rights of 10 years for one
pharmaceutical product in the PRC. This exclusive right was amortised on
a straight-line basis over 10 years, being the period of the distribution
rights, starting from 1 January 2014. The exclusive distribution right was
fully impaired in prior years.

(b) Technical know-how mainly represented techniques and formulae
acquired for the development and production of certain pharmaceutical
products.

With effect from 1 July 2011, technical know-how in relation to the oral
disintegrating tablets amounting to RMB40,993,000 has been amortised
on a straight-line basis over 11 years. The technical know-how was fully
impaired in prior years.
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19.

ff 2

(c)

(d)

(e)

BREE(E)

(%)
RERATERUERMEFTABLELED
M ERE(HMHERE]D -

EERRRSARERAERERFS
RRERBHEENANIEERATRHER
S 8 6 B R E AT RR G o Uk E B E
BAN—BRERABEKAEE  mE®R
IRAT AR ET ©

A ERLRRE EERAERILZ
WORHMEERBER - RERERAFHN
MBEETGETHY  TRSEYERSE
EFEERETFERBEANS  MKEHRAE
TAEREAFHAOMBERTERE -
BEEEETRENR HE_T =T
F+-_HA=+—HB EEBEPERNE
452,062,000 7T (Z T — S : 3,662,000
EJTT) °

AERFERFHNRNTEENZEEEEA
Novartis AG#lNovartis Pharma AG (%78 [ #
E)BBOTERIENKAREFR BT
(ME3)ERRAEREELEEEREMN
B g R BT e

BE_ZT-NF+-A=+—H BEEE
REMNAERERFHNRMEXAH
£ £ 18 %5 P 7 8% (B 5 59,0003 7T ©

HAEEBEACT—\FE AR
B 2 B 2 B8 AR

ARREERAXB R AIZALERMEHA
FH REERBEEZIENTIEED
ARERSRENHELTEATRERE - B
—E_TFE+_A=1+—H8 ARFEER
B BRI BB E € BENER
EE - B UL 7E 18 %5 R 7 5208 B # 1%884,000
ET (=T — N4 :238,000%7T) °

19. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

AR

Development costs mainly represent intellectual property rights (“IPRs")
generated internally for the pharmaceutical technology.

The directors consider that these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as
there is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which the IPRs
in pharmaceutical industry is expected to provide cash flows. These IPRs
can be renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and the products
are continuing in the market.

If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the asset should
be written down or written off immediately to profit or loss. IPRs with
indefinite useful lives are not amortised and are tested for impairment
annually at each financial year end or more frequently if there are
indications that IPR with indefinite useful lives might be impaired.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, provision for impairment of
US$2,062,000 (2019: US$3,662,000) was recognised in profit or loss.

Indefinite-lived technical know-how represents a perpetual royalty-free
licence acquired from Novartis AG and Novartis Pharma AG (collectively
known as “Novartis”) with no termination (Note 32) and techniques and
formulae for the development and production of skin care products.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, provision for impairment of
US$59,000 was recognised in profit or loss in respect of the indefinite-
lived technical know-how for skin care products.

License mainly represented the medical license acquired through the
acquisition of a subsidiary in 2018.

The directors of the Company consider that the medical license has
indefinite useful lives as there is no foreseeable limit on the period
of time over which the license in cosmeceutical industry is expected
to provide cash flows. As at 31 December 2020, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the estimated recoverable amount
of the medical license was less than its carrying value and therefore
provision for impairment of US$884,000 (2019: US$238,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

EYE A& A MR A& Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 155



*
43 A B B R R B R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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20. HE 20. Goodwill
ZEZEHF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
FTEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
REE Carrying amount 6,824 6,825
AEERSEPRFEFRRUEELET The Group assesses goodwill annually for impairment at each
FEBENG  METRETREER L financial year end, or more frequently if there are indications
WAE - A E SRR M ETRE AR - that goodwill might be impaired.
RBENRAME  BEREHEERER For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and
MAEKAEPREMERSELE development costs related to specialty pharmaceuticals have
U BEFEXEBRAUEREERR been allocated to two CGUs, including subsidiaries with
EDREDERNNBAR - HH Rl principal activities of manufacturing and trading of specialty
MANBEERED BB | RIERE pharmaceuticals and cosmetic products which are included in
ml e the “Pharmaceuticals” and “Cosmetic Products” respectively
under operating segment.
FIReEA BTG S REREER The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGU and
HFXr ZHBREZMM T : its major underlying assumptions are summarised below:
ZEReEABMNAWE S EAER The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
BEAEEET  ZEAEEERER based on the value in use calculation. Their calculation use
BEEEHERKAFHNTEEES corresponding cash flow projections based on financial budgets
REREBANRBELBMEDE @ approved by management covering a five-year period, and pre-
E DR A17.00% (ZZE—H1,:17.00%) tax discount rate of 17.00% (2019: 17.00%) and 19.52% (2019:
519.52% (ZF —J1:17.00%) o &% 17.00%) for pharmaceuticals business and cosmetic products
BMEREMmFEBBBAFHANR SR business respectively. The growth rate used to extrapolate the
ERAEREI% (ZE—NF:0%) & cash flows beyond the five-year period is 0% (2019: 0%) for
Bl e EREBEFEEANEMEERSKD both pharmaceuticals business and cosmetic products business.
BREERAMEOGEE - BR8E Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to
TEHEEERENE - BAMGETIERZ the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
BUREXRANREEBH TS ERY sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's
TEAR - BIREMRE - FFRE 8L past performance and management’s expectations for the
LENEEZHE TSR BEEMER market development. Management believes that any reasonably
MET YO L o possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable

amount.
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20.

21.

mEE(E)
BE_E-_TE+-_A=1+—HIEE
ARREERABBEBERNERNEEN
Bt E R EAHEKRAEE  EiR
FRERFEA1,000E T (T —AF:
;) o

20. Goodwill (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the estimated recoverable
amount of the goodwill related to cosmetic products was less
than its carrying value and therefore determine that there is
an impairment on its goodwill of US$1,000 (2019: Nil).

REERNT 2R 21. Interests in Associates
—ECEHF —E-NF
2020 2019
FEx T
Us$’000 us$'000
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 1,088 7,289
EES Goodwill 5,774 8,854
6,862 16,143

5 0 2 1 3 2 B R A B T BN
mF

Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

& iR B 3L it B TE rEERBHEEEESRR
8 REXHE R REEHOLH TEXH
Place of Principal Proportion of ownership
incorporation and  place of interest and voting power
Name operation business held by the Group Principal activities
“B-BFf _—T-NF
2020 2019
N Gl F g TEH 4.0%* EEREERME
A E R
Starry The PRC The PRC Not Production and trading of
applicable bulk pharmaceuticals and
intermediates
FREREBRRR(E%RE]) RBRLES I 30.0% 30.0% EERBEEEYMRERK
(RBREXES]) REE M@
Natural Dailyhealth The British Virgin The PRC Production and trading of plant
Holdings Limited Islands (The “BVI") extract and
("Natural Dailyhealth”) healthcare products
RERWEENMHBERLE FH P E 20.0% 200% WEFHIXBHUH HF4E
a (&) METAR thmEmEE
B A0 A ) & B on B B 35 M0
EYd
Tianjin Robustnique The PRC The PRC Engaging in the research

Biotechnology Co., Limited
("Robustnique”)

and development and
industrialisation of new
industrial enzyme preparations,
molecular biology tool
enzymes, and bioactive factors
for cosmetics and biological
skincare products
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HEZZ-ZTHF+-HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
21. EM?“*‘ NE 2= (E) Interests in Associates (Continued)
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BEREERR AR EERDN20% -
ARBEERR ARBKRIHEF—F
EER/AKEMBRARNES  BWKRED
ERERANITEEANTE At #
RAIXRLNES DB RBE AR S -

LiiBtg REANRAREERAEE 2
RAEMBERRALR -

AR
AAYER-ZZE—X"EZANLBEKD
ELEZERSEBRAREES - R
BHE-_ZE—NE+=-A=+—8BILtEE
AN AEE & R KI6.6% IR # (I &
8@) - R—_E—hF+=-—A=+—8"
AEEMFORALIEZHNAFENS
40,915,000 7T °

R-ZE-NFE+-A=+—H8 &X&EH
#% ™ & 425,587,000 7T /94,200,000 §&
AR ERTIRITEBAEB ZRTT
& 3R & 3R 17 @b & 1E # 48 (FfT £ 28) ©

B0 S RESATA  BRIAMN R ZE
“EEPNA -+ ANATHERAEB B
ENRRE  AEEFBAENRALERG D
HAEREATEFABZNSME E (M
£T18) ©

* Although the Group’s ownership interest in Starry was less than 20%,
the directors of the Company considered that they still had the power
to exercise significant influence on Starry as one of the directors of
Starry was the director of the Group’s subsidiaries, and therefore had
classified the interest in Starry as an associate.

The above associates were accounted for using the equity
method in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Starry

Starry successfully launched an initial public offering on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 9 March 2016. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed of 6.6% equity
interest in Starry (Note 8(a)). The fair value of the interests in
Starry held by the Group was approximately US$40,915,000 as
at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, 4,200,000 shares in Starry held
by the Group with market value of US$25,587,000 had
been pledged to secure for the banking facilities and bank
borrowings of the Group (Note 28).

As mentioned in Note 5 above, the shares of Starry held by the
Group were classified as financial assets at FVTPL after Starry
ceased to be an associate of the Group on 26 April 2020 (Note
18).
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21.

REERNT 2= (E) 21. Interests in Associates (Continued)
=< Natural Dailyhealth
RZZE_ZFTF+_A=+—HIEFERN - As at 31 December 2020, the directors of the Company are of
AR EERABENFINERZERG opinion that the estimated recoverable amount of the interest
AT E S BENEREE  Z@ER in an associate, Natural Dailyhealth, was less than its carrying
WAFEANREEERBE TG value while a valuation was performed by an independent
X FATERZABERAREITAIE o & valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, to determine
f@ R m Al B & FE 2R E A T EER the fair value of Natural Dailyhealth by using income approach.
FRERTNFTEREZEEDN  ZHE The recoverable amount of interest in Natural Dailyhealth
FRERERE L EMNIOF HE %A is determined based on a fair value less costs of disposal
FEWBEESmER - ARIRERIERAR calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial
BARER16% (ZZ—NF : 16%) - budgets approved by management covering a ten-year period.
RIEEOFHURBE S RENERE A The post-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
2.62% (ZZE—NF :2.82%) ABBEE is 16% (2019: 16%). The growth rate used to extrapolate
HRERX - EEBERAE  ERERAIK the cash flows beyond the ten-year period is 2.62% (2019:
EEENERRENEENENEZELE 2.82%) which does not exceed the long-term growth rate.
e EYIRAEEBBEATREESE - Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
NTRESEIRFTEFFERMD B key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based
BRI BRGAHBENRE: would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount. Below is a summary of the key unobservable inputs
used and categorised within level 3 measurement:
ERTAEE@AIE EXTAEHERAHBEE FHBEEGAMBHERAFTENBER

Significant unobservable inputs

Range of significant
unobservable inputs

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

EH

Gross margin

REEEX
Long-term growth rate

Bif4 7 %

Post-tax discount rate

BE-T-TE+-A=S—tEE
L1EL 1% 386,000 % TE 14 1B 35 5P 38 (=

T — L4 : 396,000 7T)(MI7£8) o

F28% £ 32%

TE—NF  H29% E34%)
Ranged from 28% to 32%
(2019 : Ranged from 29% to
34%)

2.62% (ZF—J1F :2.82%)
2.62% (2019: 2.82%)

15% (ZZF—NF : 16%)
15% (2019: 16%)

During the year ended 31
impairment of US$386,000 (Note 8) has been recognised in

£ 4% D8 E A F 20

The increase in the gross margin
would result in an increase in fair
value.

REPE R R INE QA FEE M
The increase in the long-term growth
rate would result in an increase in fair
value.

BB EMERQTFERLD
The increase in the post-tax discount
rate would result in a decrease in fair
value

December 2020, provision for

profit or loss (2019: US$396,000).
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21. REtERNT 2= (&)
) AEESEHEADMMEER

Interests in Associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the Group’s material

BEHHWT associate is set out below:
AR Starry
—E—NnF
2019
FETT
uUs$'000

R+=—B=+-—8H As at 31 December
MENEE Current assets 176,386
EMBE E Non-current assets 323,147
mENAaE Current liabilities (228,368)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (123,705)
BEEFE Net assets 147,460
BE+-A=1t—HLEE Year ended 31 December
A Revenue 189,841
F Z i 7| Profit for the year 24,706
FEHEME2EK = Other comprehensive income

for the year (268)
FEAEWERE Total comprehensive income

for the year 24,438
FEEEE QRIS Dividends received from the associate

during the year 1,344
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21. REBE QR 2= (&)

i)

AEBEEBHERNFTNTHER
BMEHHWT : (8)

AR (&)

LA BBt /9 B 75 B KRR AR A BT 1S
WRFTERRBE AR NERR
[EREECEIE .

21. Interests in Associates (Continued)

i)

Summarised financial information of the Group’s material
associate is set out below: (Continued)

Starry (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
an associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

—h4F
2019
FEx
Us$'000
BEERE Net assets 147,460
W SRS M Less: Non-controlling interests 4,718
BRIV R ARG ER Equity attributable to owners of
Starry 142,742
REBR BRI B RSB Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Starry 4.0%
5,710
kS Goodwill 3,119
RKERAFTEAENTE Effect of fair value adjustments upon
acquisition 234
Hh ] B Other adjustments 114
AEBRAIAYWEZEAE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Starry 9,177
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21. RBERT 2= (&) 21. Interests in Associates (Continued)
i) FEABEAAMNPEERBE i) Summarised financial information of the immaterial
E | R lNE associates are set out below:
=i —T-hEF
2020 2019
FEx FETT
US$'000 us$'000
R+=—BA=+—8H As at 31 December
e BRI REE Carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements 6,862 6,966
S #HE
= = —E-NF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-A
ILEE H&FE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
SEELFEERKEEATLE  Amount of the Group’s share of
immaterial associates
— EhEE — Share of loss (173) (699)
— EEEMEERE — Share of other comprehensive income — —
— EhRrEmR e — Share of total comprehensive income (173) (699)
22. 78 22. Inventories
—F-FF T NHF
2020 2019
FTEx TETT
Us$'000 Us$'000
R+ Raw materials 1,122 1,206
R Work-in-progress 1,693 1,391
BN fh Finished goods 3,907 4,055
6,722 6,652

R-ZE-_TFE+_A=+—HILFERN -
B 517 & /Y BR M (& 1F 12,255,000 7T
(ZZ—h % :2,753,000 )R E 7
ERE -

As at 31 December 2020, provision for obsolete inventories of
US$2,255,000 (2019: US$2,753,000) were made against the
carrying value of inventories.
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23.

B Rk HAMEWRNRIE 23. Trade and Other Receivables

—R-®E —T-NF
2020 2019
FTEx TETT
Us$'000 Us$'000
25 EW A Trade receivables 19,702 20,656
Rk : B 18 B Less: loss allowance (758) (865)
18,944 19,791
JE U = 45 Bills receivables 12,881 16,501
B 5 e IE & E U 2= R Trade and bills receivables 31,825 36,292
Ta AT R IE K E fh FE U K IE Prepayments and other receivables 12,543 13,606
44,368 49,898

EEZERA BEHNEMEWRRENERR The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and

BERERNFERSE -

other receivables approximate their fair values.

REEMEEKERAR PR FHI90R The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period
MEEH - of 90 days to its customers.
REBWERZSERTEEMNER The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
&-D o
REZHZAH  RHEHR AEE/ Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade and
B 5 e I sk TE K FE U ZE 4R (30 B B 18 B bills receivables (net of loss allowance) of the Group as at the
BRI DT T end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-EHF —ZET-NEF
2020 2019
FER FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
90H K AT 90 days or below 16,109 19,154
91£180H 91-180 days 11,428 15,515
1812 365H 181-365 days 4,206 1,463
1B #8365 H Over 365 days 82 160
31,825 36,292
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23.

EZRHMEBWFIEGE)

R NFEF+-_A=+—HIFER -
AEERCHMEBIREATZBRE
HBOREKEE - MEWKEERR &
SEEERFRNSBREBINHERRKE -
FEBZRBFEHR S RMEWERMATE KB
5.3%M 8 © B2 B ZE I 5E 3 H
1E e At AEEEERERERERE
EEBRTEERMNZOER -

AN 55 [ (R B8 Bh 25 B U 32 15 19 48 KD
SRR KERR MR FEE
RIS HREEAFIRRIEERSME
ENBRE RZTE—hAhF+_A=1+—
B - EUZEIE3,441,000F TH B AE
BREUERAERR  BEEEAZE
EETORMEE - RN MBS HRIEA
BEEREEERBE (K F28) 5T ABR
A B ZE B YE R U i s AN B E A
CRRENMERE R —NF+
“A=1t—H HEMBEEERHEBENEE
EREE BEA3,441,000 7T °

RRBURERCAZEETERME
BAEEHERETRUARENRE -

R-_E-_ZTF+-_F=+—H K&EH
WERACHERMBEEAT2EBEREN

EWERE -

R—ZTE_FTEF+_A=+—RH"
11,141,000 7t (=ZZ — L5 : 6,752,000
EL)METEREEDER THRITHN
AB—RRRWB AR ZRITERE
37(f) B AR
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23.

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group discounted part of its bills
receivables with full recourse to financial institutions. In the
event of default by the bills receivables, the Group was obliged
to pay the financial institutions for the amount in default.
Interest was charged at 5.3% per annum on the proceeds
received from the financial instructions until the date the bills
receivables were collected. The Group was therefore exposed
to the risks of credit losses and late payment in respect of the
discounted bills receivables.

The discounting transactions did not meet the requirements
in IFRS 9 for de-recognition of financial assets as the Group
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the discounted bills receivables. As at 31 December 2019,
bills receivables of US$3,441,000 continued to be recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements even though
they had been legally transferred to the financial institutions.
The proceeds of the discounting transactions were included
in borrowings as asset-backed financing (Note 28) until the
bills receivables were collected or the Group settled any losses
suffered by the financial institutions. As at 31 December 2019,
the asset-backed financing liability related to the discounted
bills amounted to US$3,441,000.

Due to the bills receivables had been transferred to the financial
institutions legally, the Group did not have the authority to
determine the disposition of the bills receivables.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
discounted bills receivables with full recourse to financial
institutions.

As at 31 December 2020, certain bills receivables of
US$11,141,000 (2019: US$6,752,000) were pledged to secure
for bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary (Note 37(f)).
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HE-TZ-THF+-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
24, —REBEATNNER 24. Loan to an Associate
ZRBRERR 2EHAERERE The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
R o-EEFRABILARNKRAEREAQT demand. The directors consider that the carrying amount of
BERE this balance approximates its fair value.
RZEZZTFEF+-_A=+—H B3R As at 31 December 2020, loss allowance recognised on loan
— A Bt & A Y B R0 R T (B F to an associate of US$693,000 (2019 : US$129,000) were made
& ﬁ)@ﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁéu,u\2%693,000%71:(_ against the carrying amount of loan to an associate.
Z — L4 : 129,000% 7T) °
25. EEFETER BHEKREE 25. Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash
B Equivalents
—E-2F —NF
2020 2019
FTEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
& RIRITHE R Cash and bank balances 97,553 47,736
B BRI SR ITER Less: pledged bank deposits (14,144) (27,373)
BeERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 83,409 20,363
Be MRTESRBEETEFHEIRE N Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and in hand,

RIREIBAE =@ AL ATHEBRT
ko SRITHESRBEEBARTHE R X
BTN RGFR - EHERFREAR
TR 5 ) R ERERA B o

RZEZEFR-_F-—NF+=A=F
—HMBERBRTEREAEEADE
REBETRITHE RRITE KB
28) R — R R KB AR Z R 1T & 3 (F
FE37() MR RITE R »

RZZEZTF+=_A=+—H £~5%£HE
K IR & & IR 17 45 % ©$897,102,0003 JT
(ZZT— 1% :37,364,0003T) R TT4:
B REBRAARBFERGERFEN
BIT - ARBEWIEREHALBLHE -

LR

and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits
are placed with banks and earn interest at market interest
rates.

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure for certain banking facilities of the Group
(Note 28) and bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary (Note
37(f)) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, included in cash and bank balances
of the Group was bank balances of US$97,102,000 (2019:
US$37,364,000) denominated in RMB placed with banks in the
PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
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HEZZ-ZTHF+-HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
26. B 26. Share Capital
vl - g &85
Number of shares Amount
FET
Us$'000
NE Share capital:
JERE Authorised:
RZE—NF—H—H- At 1 January 2019,
—E-hAEFt+ZA=t+—H8K 31 December 2019 and
—E-_TEFE+-FA=+—H 31 December 2020 20,000,000,000 200,000
BEETRAR: Issued and fully paid:
R-ZE—hE—H—H At 1 January 2019 415,000,000 4,150
FTEHE BB AR (D Cancellation of shares repurchased (17,828,000) (178)
R-ZE-hhE+-A=+—HK At 31 December 2019 and
—E-EF+=-A=+-—H 31 December 2020 397,172,000 3,972
EFERM Treasury shares:
R-—ZE—AFE—HF—8 At 1 January 2019 25,000 3
A% 17 =0 B (B E27) Share repurchase (Note 27) 17,803,000 2,370
FEEH B B B AR G5 (B 5E27) Cancellation of shares repurchased (Note 27) (17,828,000) (2,373)

27.
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R-ZZB-hE+=-RA=+—-HEK
—E-_2F+-A=t+—H

At 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2020 — —

it 8
A kM
BOEBEEEBBERERNEEN

SME AR R BONEL P B A R R 5 R
M BE = -

AEFREERBRPEARAMNRE @
AR B B A B Y 0 Al o BE B R AT UK fRE
ek

EERPIEARRCEACKD - #HE
“E-NFF+_A=t+—HILFE &R
A) A B 22 AT UA 484X {8 18,600,0007%8 7T (48
& 1R #92,370,000% 7T ) [ 88 17,803,000 %
(Pt 5£26) o

2 #092,373,000% 7T H B BRI 9 E R =
TGt A=+ —BILFEEH -

27.

Reserves

Group

Share premium represents the excess over the nominal value
for shares allotted.

Foreign exchange reserve represents exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries.

Statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the
PRC subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as
required by the relevant PRC statute.

Treasury shares represent the repurchase of the Company’s
own shares. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company repurchased 17,803,000 shares of its own ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration
of HK$18,600,000 (equivalent to approximately US$2,370,000)
(Note 26).

All the repurchase shares amounting to approximately
US$2,373,000 were cancelled by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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27.

& (&) 27. Reserves (Continued)
¥ YN Company
RBEE EBEERG RERA 5t
Share Treasury Retained
premium shares profits Total
FTET FTET FTET FTET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
BE-Z-NF+=-A=t+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2019
R-Z—h%—A—A At 1 January 2019 18,945 @3) 8,737 27,679
AR 2 (Bt EE13) Dividends (Note 13) = = (1,855) (1,855)
18,945 (3) 6,882 25,824
FEEE Loss for the year — — (1,799) (1,799)
FEEMEZEYNE Other comprehensive income
for the year = = = =
FE2ENZEE Total comprehensive income
for the year = = (1,799) (1,799)
% 1 Bl fE Share repurchase — (2,370) — (2,370)
FHEEENRA Cancellation of shares repurchased (2,195) 2,373 — 178
R-—E—hE+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2019 16,750 — 5,083 21,833
BZ-Z-_ZH5+-A=+—-HLFE VYear ended 31 December 2020
R-_ZE-_TF—H—H At 1 January 2020 16,750 — 5,083 21,833
F & F Profit for the year — - 2,339 2,339
FEEME2ERR Other comprehensive income
for the year — — — —
FE2AN=EE Total comprehensive income
for the year — — 2,339 2,339
RZZ-_ZTF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2020 16,750 - 7,422 24,172

AEBEERERAR
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28. &

28. Borrowings

—E_ZHF —E-NF

2020 2019

FEx FET

US$'000 us$'000

E B IRITHER Fixed-rate bank borrowings 31,424 42,579

FEBRITEK Variable-rate bank borrowings — 14,500

EEERBE (M E23) Asset-backed financing (Note 23) — 3,441

31,424 60,520

A &1 Secured — 22,240

f 45 1H Unsecured 31,424 38,280

31,424 60,520

— i —ZE-NF

2020 2019

FEx FET

US$'000 Us$'000

SRITE R Bank borrowings 31,424 57,079
R—FRNBHNEERZRME  Asset-backed financing due within

one year — 3,441

31,424 60,520
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AEEOBRIREERATNE - W E—
FRAEE HFMCCT-—NF: )R

ERBERREREEGK

RZBEZEFR-_FT-—NF+ZA=+
—B ETHRTREAFHEAEEET
AR RN R A EETR S A
EE  EETHER SR BENERLTHE
FEFR - WAKEZERER Bl
M EAEEERERE -

AREBTHEREEERESNETS
o EBREHEFMEERERER
AEBREREAEBEREFTEZER
T RITPIARARE/TEHE B ERE
KR EBEZZEFR-_ZF-—NF+A
=t+—H UTEERCREDRBMENER
o

The Group's borrowings are carried at amortised cost and
due for repayment within one year. Two (2019: one) of the
borrowings contain a repayment on demand clause.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain banking facilities
are subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to certain
financial position ratios of the Group, as are commonly found
in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
breaches the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, up to date, makes repayments in accordance with
the repayment schedule of the term loans. The Group does not
consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its discretion
to demand repayment for as long as the Group continues to
meet these requirements. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had
been breached.
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28. BER(E\)
BITEZMEEEUTY S E:

Borrowings (Continued)
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

—E-EF —ZET-NEF
2020 2019
FEx FEx
Us$'000 us$'000
LR &IBEBETR: Represented by:

ARBER Borrowings in RMB 30,713 45,574
X TLER Borrowings in US$ — 14,500
7 TC 18 3K Borrowings in HK$ 711 446
31,424 60,520
—EB-EF —T-NEF
2020 2019

BERERE: Effective interest rate per annum:
MITIER Bank borrowings 4.60% 4.77%

RZE-—NF+_A=+—8 K£H
%A BT IR 1717 3013,328,000% 7T &
™A £25,587,000E€ TRl A E £
D EAARSEBRITRE KIBITERD
BIR o

R-_E-_ZF+_A=+—H8 ' A5£H
A 2RI IR1T1E 713,027,000 TIE A
AREBBRITRHENENEZEMER -

W FT EE37(F Fr it - REBEAQ R R R
MBRARR-ZE—AREXNANM_Z—H
FHAFBEEERGZE - LREZH
EETHBRITETRBER - RZT=
THE+-H=+—H " 11,495,000% T
R IR SR R R B AR IR IR R
—Z— L% :10,751,00037T) ° fR &
R 178 719,929,000 T (ZE—Hh
£ : 27,529,000 L) A AR A K A& E
ETHEBARER -

The Group had pledged certain bank deposits of
US$13,328,000 and Starry’s listed equity shares with market
value of US$25,587,000 to secure for the banking facilities and
bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019.

The Group had pledged certain bank deposits of US$3,027,000
to secure for the banking facilities and bills payables as at 31
December 2020.

As explained in Note 37(f), the Group and a fellow subsidiary
of the Company entered into cross guarantee agreements in
June 2016 and May 2019, and agreed to provide guarantees
to banks in relation to the banking facilities of each other.
As at 31 December 2020, the unsecured borrowing of
US$11,495,000 was guaranteed by the fellow subsidiary (2019:
US$10,751,000). The remaining balance of unsecured bank
borrowings of US$19,929,000 (2019: US$27,529,000) were
guaranteed by the Company or certain subsidiaries of the
Group.
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28. fEF (&)
R-T—NE+=-HA=+—-8 BEE
REBERTE SR ERE LS9
SRR THREZSFIESHR
BHE - HESHEEFABSREM
FE U R IE (M 3E23) - ZEEZIR—FR
BIH WA RKEEE o

MERBELEZABHENOT:

28.

Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the asset-backed financing
represented the amount of financing obtained in factoring
transactions which did not meet the de-recognition
requirements in IFRS 9. The corresponding financial assets
were included in trade and other receivables (Note 23). These
borrowings mature within one year and are repayable in RMB.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

—F-FF T NF

2020 2019

FEx FET

Us$'000 Us$'000

Rn—A—H At 1 January 60,520 87,224

REMELT Changes from cash flows:

BT 152 ;I8 Proceeds from borrowings 38,184 76,924
BEER NI Repayment of borrowings (69,472) (102,836)
(31,288) (25,912)

b 5, 38 B Exchange adjustment 2,192 (792)
R+=A=+-—8H At 31 December 31,424 60,520

170 Annual Report 2020 4 #}




¢
43 A B 75 ¥R 3R B 5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZT-ZTHF+-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

29. EEZEHBEEE 29. Deferred Tax Liabilities

AORBHE
TERENK EERERAE Hith st

PRC

withholding

tax on Deferred
undistributed  development
earnings costs Others Total
TEr TEr TEn TET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
BIE—Z2-h1E+=-A=1t—H Year ended 31 December 2019
LEE
RZZ-N$—-H—H At 1 January 2019 181 1,901 363 2,445
B A Exchange adjustment — (23) — (23)
nEET AR E12) Credited to profit or loss (Note 12) = (653) (133) (786)
R-ZZF-AF+=A=+—-H At 31 December 2019 181 1,225 230 1,636
BIE—Z2-Z2%+=-H=1+-H Year ended 31 December 2020
LEE

\ZZ-TF—-H—H At 1 January 2020 181 1,225 230 1,636
B K 50 Exchange adjustment - 100 12 12
RE = M (M E12) Charged to profit or loss (Note 12) - 259 1,220 1,479
R-ZZBE-Z&£+-A=+—H At 31 December 2020 181 1,584 1,462 3,227

BEFBCEMSEHRE BT
NEFE—A—Bi# BABEKERAFT
B BUR Al & R /Y A% B8 &4 T8 30
o iR M BmERAI KT R B
A A] 949,513,000 T (= & — )L F -
52,226,0003E 7T) R 515 F BT EE A /9 & B
ERELELERIBERE  REATZRAS
B EHEREENBOER  BZE
TREBEAETERAERGRER -

AAHEEBEET REEA—ELEIE
MWBAREIE - LAREAREFBER
AT TR A IB T - B UL & oK ¥ 4B BE R 1R
EERE B ®ER R AR TR WK
BE -ASBRTEMBARELENRK
EAMBEEE 4 A15,331,000% T (==
— L% : 10,241,000 JT) ° B EEE A
W EFRAESF o

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
US$49,513,000 (2019: US$52,226,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences,
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses has not been
recognised in these consolidated financial statements as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and the unpredictability of future profits streams. The
Group has unused tax losses of approximately US$15,331,000
(2019: US$10,241,000) incurred by the subsidiaries in the PRC,
which can be carried forward for 5 years from the year in
which the losses were incurred.
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30. EZREMENRE 30. Trade and Other Payables
—B-FF T NF
2020 2019
TER FETT
Us$'000 us$'000
B 5 e 38 Trade payables 2,905 3,337
ENE ¥ Bills payables 5,058 6,020
MBEREGLD Financial guarantee contract 979 —
H h & 1 518 [ FE 5t 5K IE Other payables and accruals 8,330 7,309
17,272 16,666
BEZEZAH  RBFEHR A5ED Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade payables
BHRNRIEREDITAT of the Group as at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
— —E-hEF
2020 2019
FER F=ET
Us$'000 Us$'000
90H = LA T 90 days or below 2,158 2,790
91£180H 91-180 days 399 4
1812 365H 181-365 days 4 27
it8 #®365H Over 365 days 344 516
2,905 3,337
EERA BEHLHEMENRIBENRE The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
BEEAEAFEES ° other payables approximate their fair values.
31. 6XHAE 31. Contract Liabilities
= = —E-NF
2020 2019
TER TR
US$’000 Us$000
KTHEEENENER: Contract liabilities arising from:
EEREEkS Sale of goods 296 291
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31.

32.

EHEE(E) Contract Liabilities (Continued)
EHNEEEH Movements in contract liabilities
—E-EF ZE—NF
2020 2019
SEE3 W TETT
UsS$'000 Us$'000
n—A—8 At 1 January 291 560
FRNERW mMERFJEE A Decrease in contract liabilities as a result
EREENEGHNEERD of recognising revenue during the
year that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year (109) (397)
AREERK=mMERNE L Increase in contract liabilities as a result
BEEM of billing in advance of revenue 95 134
bE o 3 Exchange adjustment 19 (6)
R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 296 291
HttemaE 32. Other Financial Liabilities
—R-®F T NHF
2020 2019
FEx FETT
US$'000 Us$'000
HARE —ZATE Contingent consideration, at fair value 1,231 1,171

\ZE—PE=A=FN\B  ARAK
ME:AHBATNLRE (EB) AR
DR (BAEBE]) VRFETTAER
B - BILE RS AP R
ZRAE OEARREDEBOLN

ERNREE  FEBR  BERE

BER ZBEEME #—iﬁfﬁ’]}ﬁ |’$:?:
WIER 9 © R UA S I8 HE 15 7 1% 4 B N (AT
FE(TEEEE BFIMBE)HEER
HEMN— mﬁﬁﬁ&éf?%“#@&%*ﬁl@*

[ 15 Y 21 BT BB A Y A B R R FL
B M()ET S FF A ek - J/M%?*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\
BRuEREERNNGY  BEERES
8,000,000 JT & HA 5 X ﬂuﬁ@ﬁﬁ =
A1, 5ooooo%mmﬁﬁ9l\ikﬁﬁﬁ (Eﬁi
E{g%i%ﬂx SHEEEE ) ([HAR

1]

/e

NEBRE AR EBELHERIEE A I
2 PRRMAREEERBEIRESEN T
03 7T £1,500,0003 7T °

SRLER IR B IETE RIRAFE
FABSE - R-ZF_F i&_f NEF
T_A=T B AREBZAFEF
B FHIERMEE38(b) -

On 28 March 2014, Lansen Medicine (Hong Kong) Limited
(“LMHK"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into (i) the asset purchase agreement with
Novartis pursuant to which Novartis agrees to transfer to
LMHK the transferred assets (including know-how, books and
records, specified trademarks, commercial information and
medical information relating to the pharmaceutical product
which contains specific active pharmaceutical ingredients,
and it is marketed and sold as a cream under trademark of
Sicorten Plus in the territory (i.e. the PRC, excludes Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan) for the treatment of certain
corticosteroid-responsive inflammatory skin diseases secondary
infection), and (ii) the licence agreement to grant the licences,
relating to the pharmaceutical product in the territory for a
total cash consideration comprising an upfront payment of
US$8,000,000, plus additional milestone payments of a total
maximum US$1,500,000, which are linked to sales achieved by
LMHK (the “contingent consideration”).

The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments
that the Group could be required to make under this
contingent consideration arrangement is between US$0 and
Us$1,500,000.

The contingent consideration was designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL. Refer to Note 38(b) for details of the
fair value measurements of contingent consideration as at 31

December 2020 and 2019.
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33. ERABHB MR R
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33. Holding Company Statement of Financial

Position
—ECEHF ZE—NF
2020 2019
B 5 FEx FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
NN ROk = Interest in a subsidiary 25,020 25,020
FREEE Right-of-use assets — 43
25,020 25,063
REBEE Current assets
SR ITERK Pledged bank deposits — 5,004
HeMkBeFEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 54,047 11,968
54,047 16,972
HWEE Total assets 79,067 42,035
ExkaE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EXRGFEE Capital and reserves
AT HEBAEEER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
[N Share capital 26 3,972 3,972
f& 15 % B Share premium 27 16,750 16,750
R & A Retained profits 27 7.422 5,083
mER Total equity 28,144 25,805
REBEE Current liabilities
&K Borrowings — 14,500
FE AT Bt /BB A R 3k 1B Amount due to a subsidiary 50,656 1,359
HEBE Lease liabilities — 45
FE 53R Accruals 267 326
wWaE Total liabilities 50,923 16,230
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 79,067 42,035
REBEEFE Net current assets 3,124 742
HWEERRBAS Total assets less current liabilities 28,144 25,805
RREEZ On behalf of the directors
EZE EZE
Director Director
BR A ZEE
CHEN Li LIU Xuezi
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34.

NN NG
M A F 0 — AR B
ARAMBARRBREHROFELT -

34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
General information of the subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are set out follows:

iR g BiEfl/ AEEFEREREERR
L Kt E TEEXBY BOREAFE REENLA TEEH
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/  place of registered/issued interest and voting power  Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
“Z-EF _ZN%
2020 2019
ERRBRER
Interests held directly
MAEBZERBRARN(HERV)) RERLESE &E 29,491,360 5 IR A & 100% 100% HAERK
[E:k=gils
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings The BVI Hong Kong 29,491,360 ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Lansen (BVI)") shares of US$1 each
BEFEER
Interests held indirectly
Brilliant Manufacture Limited RERAHE FA REEIETHEER 100% 100% REER
Brilliant Manufacture Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Flash Universal Limited RERAHE FA REEIETHEER 100% 100% REER
Flash Universal Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Horizon Network Limited RERAHE FA REEIETHEER 100% 100% REER
Horizon Network Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Magnificent Worldwide Limited RERAHE FA REEIETHEER 100% 100% REER
Magnificent Worldwide Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Beauty Sparkle Holdings Limited RERAHE FA REEIETHEER 100% 100% REER
Beauty Sparkle Holdings Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BAEZZRABY)ERADA KBRZEE A REEIETHERR 100% 100% HERK
Lansen Medicine Consulting (BVI) The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
SEEERV)ERARA KBRZEE A REEIETHERR 100% 100% HERK
Lansen Medicine (BVI) Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
2HERAF BB BB TREEIE T EER 100% 100% HEER
Full Keen Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
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ARFHE A E B (FE)

MEARN—RER ()

34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)

AMBL/ B/ AEEFEREEERR
L B & TEERBY BOREAFE REENLA TEXK
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/  place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
ZZ-EFE —Z-NF
2020 2019
BEFEER
Interests held indirectly
HERE(FBERRA B3 B3 100 181007 7T H) 100% 100% #REER
Eim ik
Lansen Investments (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited HK$100
ERE(FE)ERRA BE BE TREEETHEBKR 100% 100% REER
Lansen Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
VEBNRR(FE)ERRDA BE BE TREEETHEBKR 100% 100% REER
Liwah Plant Extract (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
REERERAR BE BE 1R (178 70 A0 & 58 100% 100% #REER
Point Kin International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
MEER BB BE 1R (178 70 A0 & 58 100% 100% BEEH
LMHK Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
business
ZEBEFRAF BE BE TREEETHEBKR 100% 100% REER
Perfection Link Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERE(RINERAR B (@) Rk(e) TE A K #29,498,0007T — 100% BEEHK
Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen) The PRC (Notes (a) The PRC RMB29,498,000 - 100%  Pharmaceutical
Company Limited* and (g)) business
ERUEHEFRARN(ERE]) PREKFZED)  PE AR #236,000,0007T 100% 100% BEEH
Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB236,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Company Limited business
(“Ningbo Liwah")*
ERVEBNRREMERAD  PEGZED) @ AR ¥28,000,0007T 100% 100% BEXH
Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB28,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Technology Limited? business
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34.

RATMEAAFRE (&)

34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
MEARN—RER(E) General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
HEMAL BEfl/ AEEFERAREERR
A PR 3L 3t B TEEENE BRORAFEE REEMHLH TEEH
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/  place of registered/issued interest and voting power  Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
ZBR-BE —“TNF
2020 2019
MEgEEs
Interests held indirectly
ERPAERERRAR w8 (B & () i A R #35,000,0007C 100% 100% BEXR
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (Note (c)) The PRC RMB35,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Company Limited* business
ERALBRERRBERAA w8 (B & (b)) HE AR 1,000,000 100% 100% BEXR
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Technology Company Limited* business
RINRFEEREERDA B (Fif 52 (b) R (e) AR B A K #500,0007T - 100% EHEXK
Shenzhen Donggi Technology The PRC (Notes (b) The PRC RMB500,000 — 100%  Pharmaceutical
Information Co. Ltd* and (e)) business
REEREZ(LB)ERAR w8 (B & (b)) HE AR H10,000,0007T 100% 100% BEXR
Lansen (Shanghai) International The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Trading Co., Ltd.* business
REBEEES (LR BERAF 8 (Fff 3 @) e A K#2,000,0007 100% 100% =A%£H
Lansen (Beijing) International Trading The PRC (Note (a)) The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Cosmetic business
Co., Ltd.*
FHBEBRERAR KBRTEHS AE TREEIETHEBR 100% 100% ®REEK
Allied Choice International Limited ~ The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
LRBENRE(BB)BERAR 9 i TREENE THEBR 100% 100% ®REER
Letai Health Technology (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
PERBZAMR(BB)ERAR &B i TREENE TH LB R 100% 100% ®REER
Lansen Medibeauty Tech (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
ERALBERNBRERRAA mE (M ED)  RE A K #1,000,0007T 100% 100% XA%H
((ERBEEE])
Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Cosmetic business

Tech Limited
("Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty”)*
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34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
MEARN—RER(E) General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
AMBL/ B/ AEEFEREEERR
L B & TEERBY BOREAFE REENLH TEXH
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/  place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
ZZ-EFE —Z-NF
2020 2019
MEsEES
Interests held indirectly
BEGL)BEZAFRAR Bz &L 50,0005 £ % 55 100% 100% LEg%
Lansen (Swiss) Medicine Consulting  Switzerland Switzerland Swiss Franc50,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited (Note (d))
EREBEBREXAY i (Fff & @) e AR #500,0007T 100% 100% =AEH
Beijing Eliza Medical and Beauty Clinic The PRC (Note (a)) The PRC RMB500,000 100% 100%  Cosmetic business
Company Limited*
EREEERENRBRAA w8 (B 3 (b)) M A R #5,000,0007 100% 100% ZA%7%
Ningbo San Parietti Medibeauty Tech  The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Cosmetic business
Limited*
RBEBEXARRARAF N GiEE() HE AR #500,0007T 100% — EBEB
Chengdu San Parietti Beauty Tech The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB500,000 100% —  Cosmetic business
Limited*
LREBEXAMBRERAT i (Fff & @) e AR H#500,0007T 100% — XREH
Beijing San Parietti Beauty Tech The PRC (Note (a)) The PRC RMB500,000 100% —  Cosmetic business
Limited*
LEERREARRERAA v 8 (B 3 (b)) M AR 500,000 100% — XRER
Shanghai San Parietti Beauty Tech The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB500,000 100% —  Cosmetic business

Limited*

’ B 5 2 A

(@) RABERIZRERRAR

b REEARIANEBEER b
© REARIATHNABELE ©

(d) REETRIZBBERAF
ERAEREFE

,\
@
Y

1% 5t 85 (e)

For identification purpose only

Established as a limited liability company in the PRC

Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC

Established as a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC

Established as a limited liability company in Switzerland

These companies were de-registered during the year
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34.

ARFHE A E B (FE)

MEARN—RER ()

34. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)

FRAMBELAMBLARNETEMNER None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
& 77 o end of the year.

AEBEHAEK Composition of the Group
FTEEK SR AR SL BRI it B 2EMBLAREE
Place of incorporation/ Number of wholly-owned
Principal activities establishment subsidiaries
—EC-EF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
BEXK & 5 7
Pharmaceutical business The PRC
BB B 1 1
Pharmaceutical business Hong Kong
XBEXEK FE 7 4
Cosmetic business The PRC
REER &HE 8 8
Investment holding Hong Kong
REER RBRIES 9 9
Investment holding The BVI
Emax In £ 1 1
Inactive Switzerland
31 30
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35. &g

35. Commitments

BRI Capital commitments
—E-2F —T-NF
2020 2019
FEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
L B DA TS & T A HE Commitments for the acquisition of:
mREEE Intangible assets 1,045 1,057
M- BEREE Property, plant and equipment 30 —
1,075 1,057
36. HE&AE 36. Lease Liabilities
WMABH - RERBOARE Office premise, motor vehicle and office equipment
—B-%F T NF
2020 2019
Fxt FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
NE Additions 980 346
AMERX Interest expense a4 53
HER K Lease payments 515 528
RREENFKOEEBABRAT Future lease payments are due as follows:
BREAEMSRK Fl & BE
Minimum
lease Present
R=—ZT-_ZFF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2020 payments Interest value
Fxx Fxx Fxx
Us$'000 Us$‘000 Us$‘000
—F KA Within one year 411 47 394
BB —FETBBME Later than one year and
not later than two years 416 29 387
BEMEENBEBRSE Later than two years and
not later than five years 407 12 395
1,264 88 1,176
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36.

HESEE)
CRERBARE (B

N5

36. Lease Liabilities (Continued)
Office premise, motor vehicle and office equipment
(Continued)

KSR A 1A
Minimum

lease Present
RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 payments Interest value
FET FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
—F A Within one year 446 33 413

HBR—FEIEBMF Later than one year and
not later than two years 220 18 202

HBAMFEETERASF Later than two years and
not later than five years 289 10 279
955 61 894

MELRBELZABHEKRNOT:

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

—F-F%F —F-NF
2020 2019
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
Rn—A—H At 1 January 894 1,036
REREE Change from cash flows:
g /EE{EE’]ZIK =) Repayment of principal portion of
lease liabilities 471) (475)
BEMEE 8 & 10 Repayment of interest portion of
lease liabilities (44) (53)
HmEs) : Other changes:
0 Additions 980 346
A Interest 44 53
AR IEHE Early termination of lease (299) —
PE W 8 % Exchange adjustment 72 (13)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,176 894
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37. BERRS

FR-AKEEBESFILTIRS

37. Related Party Transactions
During the year, the Group entered into
transactions with related parties:

the following

—E-EF —h&F
2020 2019
FER FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
BEEXSG: Trading transactions:
MERMBARIEEE M Purchase of goods from a fellow
subsidiary 69 50
[ EEE QA EE & m (5 @) Purchase of goods from associates
(Note (a)) 185 103
A Bk & A A B & (B 5E(a)) Sale of goods to an associate
(Note (a)) 50 —
FESHE & AR ZFEE (M5 (b) Entrusted fee payable to an associate
(Note (b)) 71 173
JE W Bt i A &) on T & (Bt 3 () Processing fee receivable from an
associate (Note (c)) 10 53
JE e B & A B B 7% B Service fee receivable from an associate 1 3
FEWRRZK B AR RS E Service fee receivable from a fellow
subsidiary 23 2
HM 5 - Other transactions:
BENREEKBARME SR Rental expenses paid to a fellow
subsidiary 20 =
ENEEARESAX Rental expenses paid to an associate 6 —
SNRAZEMBARHEERRE Settlement of lease liabilities to a fellow
subsidiary 47 62
ENARMEBARIEREHR Management fee paid to a fellow
(B & (d)) subsidiary (Note (d)) 164 —
EMEE A ARHEER Research and development fee paid to
(Bt 3£ (e)) an associate (Note (e)) 748 —
ENRREKBARMEEEIR  Cross guarantee commission fee payable
k== {0 = A0)) to a fellow subsidiary (Note (f)) 94 94
FE U R R B B A &) 89 A B HE R Cross guarantee commission income
1 & W A (BT 5 (F)) receivable from a fellow subsidiary
(Note (f)) 94 94
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37. BERFRS (&) 37. Related Party Transactions (Continued)
T 5l 45 & (FOBR B 18 B8 ) IR &5 HA R A The following balances (net of loss allowance) were
RiEHE: outstanding at the end of the reporting period:
—g-¥E -—T-nF
2020 2019
FEx FET
UsS$'000 us$'000
NS G A (o)) Amounts owed by associates
(Note (g)) 2,258 2,547
m—EHL AN E R (M sE24) Loan to an associate (Note 24) 8,425 7,197
Al 2 B & 2 7] R (M 5% (g)) Amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries
(Note (g)) 8,552 8,082

=

@ BEZF-TFF-A=t—H AKEM
HERERBMED R EENL00ET(ZT
— L4 :35,000% Jt) K% 184,000 L (= F
— L% : 68,000 L) E M °

BE—"Z-ZF+-A=+—H A&£EHA
SRIMAF H B 450,000k T (ZF— N5 : )

WEm -

(b)  BE-ZT-NELAZ+RBEEREMEALEBVI)
FATMO R S0 00 THE 2R 19 2% ([ &R =8 00 TAE 28
ek 1)« FERIAZKEAE BV R EIEA
A(BEBVN KB BEFPFEEMIAE
AR -MEFKBZEMEMTIERN 2
BBAK 7R AN10% B9 A0 AR 18 2 2 BB S AN BEAE AR
RETE -

(© BIBEZENIERGZE  FRERUZETHE
(BVDE&EE N THE IR EVE @b o A1 L& LARK
AMEARNAEEBER  SEHAERMNI
E 2 3K A IN10% &9 I Bk o

(d) EEEARAPEV)RAREERHEE
ERBAXNERZREEE(ER)ER
REAIMEBRER -

(e) MBEEMRRERAEB IR RLEERX
REERMXMNERMENMRER - =
WA B R B R INAT20% 2 IRk - Bt
BMBRARA —KBERA - HAEHER
HERRERMBERBNREER -

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group acquired goods
of approximately US$1,000 (2019: US$35,000) and approximately
US$184,000 (2019: US$68,000) from Natural Dailyhealth and
Robustnique respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group sold goods of
approximately US$50,000 (2019: Nil) to Robustnique.

(b) Pursuant to the entrusted processing framework agreement signed
between Natural Dailyhealth and Lansen (BVI) on 20 September 2016
(the “Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement”), Natural Dailyhealth
may request Lansen (BVI) and its subsidiaries (the “Lansen (BVI)
Group”) to enter into the processing order contracts with customers.
An entrusted fee was payable to Natural Dailyhealth for the difference
between the amounts received from customers and the costs incurred in
relation to the processing of the products plus a mark-up rate of 10%.

(c) Pursuant to the Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement, Natural
Dailyhealth may entrust Lansen (BVI) Group for the processing of the
plant extract products. The processing fee is charged on a cost-plus
basis, representing all costs incurred in relation to the processing of the
products plus a mark-up rate of 10%.

(d) Management fee was paid by Lansen (BVI) to Cathay International
Services (Hong Kong) Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, for
management service provided to the Group.

(e) Research and development fee was paid by Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty
to Robustnique, an associate of the Company that Ningbo Lansen
Medibeauty holds 20%
development of skin care products.

equity interest in Robustnique, for the
Research and development
fee represented all costs incurred in relation to the research and
development of the products.
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37. BEAXS (&)

o A

(®)

AN
E®

184 Ann

(%)

R-B—RNEXNA-+WE - FRLE-
EMEEEMIREMERRR (& WG
&) ARRIR XK B AR RBEAA(BV)ET AL
HEERBZ Bt R=T—X LA
—BE-Z-NFE~B=+HRHBEEHN
RITERRE BRI BREHNB R R R
EBR - AeBAERS —FAERNER
MEFKE - FTHHEEFERBER =T —
NWEREA=ZBEE AR HEBE=F—AN

FEA—HBME  YBR_F__FR A=
THIE -
RZBE_ZF+_A=+—H HHE

& FT 12 B BR M fE A19,924,000% 7T (18
R % A R ¥130,000,000T)(= T —
U4 18,635,000 T(HEE R AR
130,000,0007T)) & 4R 17 & 5% T3 R 7 & [ LA
11,141,000 7T (HHE R KA R#¥72,697,000)
(ZT—h 4 :6,572,000% T (FBERH A
R #47,102,0007T)) (M 7£23) 89 FE L R 4R &
11,117,000 7t (18 & R4 A R#72,536,000
T0) |RITFFER (ZF — L4 ¢ 14,235,000
ZET(HEE R A R¥99,306,0007T)) °
—FHE R-T_TF+=—A=1+— EI
BEMEEERZ A KRK130,000,0007T
ZRITREE - A% E B2 HU1,495, 000%

7t (8 & » 8 A R #75,000,00070)(=
—NEF: 10,751,000%71($E;§EC,%@AE%§
75,000,0007T)) °

AEBRERENERNEBEERBEEBBMAE
ReRRAREGE REMRZENEH
RITERBRMARTEEN R FOR
HMEASERPREMNETES E’JET‘J
H-BE_T-_TF+_A=+—HILLHF
JE - AR E TE RS 18 B /3927,000K 7T
(ZF—Nh4F 8-

RPEREBEE G RE N TR M
GTHEENRAREEESMELANE
SEWHIE - RAXAEEF - 2ERARE
BREE BE_T_TFR-_T-NF+
—A=+-BLEFER EREEIRS
REXKESEMER R_2T_TF+=
A=+—8 SB2L A7 RKEERNEB
RAEIR KB 2 B TR & 18 # #5214,000E 7T
(ZZ— N4 :182,0005 Jt) 134,000 7T
(ZZ— A% :101,000%7T) °
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37. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

On 24 June 2016, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology
Company Limited (“Jilin Haizi”), a fellow subsidiary of the Company
and Lansen (BVI) entered into a cross guarantee agreement, pursuant
to which the parties may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide
certain guarantees to banks in relation to the banking facilities of each
other from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019. Commission fee would be
charged to a party in respect of a loan which is guaranteed by another
party. A new cross guarantee agreement was signed on 3 May 2019,
and the effective period commenced on 1 July 2019 and will be expired
on 30 June 2022.

As at 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings with carrying amount
of US$19,924,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB130,000,000)
(2019: US$18,635,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB130,000,000))
drawn by Jilin Haizi was guaranteed by the Group together with
the collateral including bill receivables of US$11,141,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB72,697,000) (2019: US$6,752,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB47,102,000)) (Note 23) and bank deposit of
US$11,117,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB72,536,000) (2019:
US$14,235,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB99,306,000)) was
pledged. On the other hand, banking facilities of RMB130,000,000 was
guaranteed by Jilin Haizi and an amount of US$11,495,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB75,000,000), was drawn down by the Group as at
31 December 2020 (2019: US$10,751,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB75,000,000)).

Loss allowance of the guarantee provided by the Group is measured
by estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected
payments to reimburse the banks for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive from Jilin Haizi. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, loss allowance of US$927,000 was
recognised (2019: Nil).

The amounts due represented the advances to suppliers on the goods to
be purchased or processing services to be provided and trade receivables
arising from the sales of goods. The amounts due are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The Group did not give or
receive any guarantee during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 for the related party transactions. As at 31 December 2020, loss
allowances of US$214,000 (2019: US$182,000) and US$134,000 (2019:
US$101,000) was recognised against the amounts owed by an associate
and the amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries, respectively.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above related party transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of
business.

Remuneration for

key management personnel represents

amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
Note 11.
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HEZT-ZTHF+-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
38. EERE 38. Risk Management
AEEEHHREELERKRETINS The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
B BERE  RNEENREREENEA result from its operating and investing activities. The Group's
i WEHEEZERSE  BEESD risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
BRASENEHZEFHBASRE - cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively securing
the Group’s short to medium term cash flows.

FER R Credit risk
AEBNEERREERBEZ R EM The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and

JEW IR - SRAEMBERRARZIN SRR
BN EW RN B BB G - AR
SEEREREBEIEERBRELR M
AR RERE - WG -

SBREEERR AKEEEECVL

Effftﬁlﬁﬁ EFEEHREEBEEREER
CEEEMMEMETIBRE - AR

T%HXEE%E TEWEAHER -

R_E_ZFF+_A=+—8  —f{oh
BEEMESEWFKIERZEI0%H A £

—hFE:—fI)-
nBESEERRER ERHFHE
HMABIRIT o

AEBEEBEFEAR—BEETEER
R UIRRZEEERR—BEHAEE
E’]'fm/\ ﬁﬁ g%” \IIIEE%DEJ;FO

BEZENKNE
AEEZAEN2HRAREEBRZ
TR ELEHEUGABRRE A6
THEDNERBBREREFTESE - SR
%@@EMET%EI%MTH%ﬁ
MBEREATREBREN - ERE MR
ENEEREIEE - TIRAKETR
BEFEARZEE—FED °

other receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position are net of loss allowances of
receivables, estimated by the Group’s management based on
historical credit loss experience and their assessment of the
forward looking information i.e. economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

There was one external customer contributed 10% or more of
total trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 (2019: one).

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are reputable banks.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.
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38. ERERE(HE)
EERK(E)
B 5 E(E)
TEHIR-_E-_TSER-_T—HE+
—A=t+ - BALEEEEERBREE
R B 5 RE U R OE B R B

38. Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The following tables provide information about the Group’s

exposure to credit risk and loss allowance for trade receivables
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

R-E-—FEFf-—F=+—H At 31 December 2020

SREAE FEHERZE BRERE

FTEx % FTEx
Gross

carrying Expected Loss
amount loss rate  allowance
uss$’000 % Us$'000

BN ER Kz %1 BA1 2 90H Current and past due over
1-90 days 16,265 1.35 219
#HR91%E 2758 Past due over 91-275 days 2,874 2.02 58
B R R 276 Past due over 276 days 563 85.44 481
19,702 758

RZE—NF+-H=+—H At 31 December 2019

REAE FEHEBEX BREEE

FETT % FETT
Gross

carrying Expected Loss
amount loss rate allowance
Uus$'000 % US$'000

BN ER &% %8 Hi1E 90 H Current and past due over
1-90 days 18,705 0.31 58
#H191£275H Past due over 91-275 days 1,003 2.02 20
B R R 276 Past due over 276 days 948 83.03 787
20,656 865

BEHBREXDIRBEBEIFNERER
BB - ZFHLEEEHAEARR
EREELHBENREANLERR &
AR 0 B AN 5 [ 4 W sk IR TR A SR i e
REMRANBHRAIEEENNER -
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Expected loss rates are estimated based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables and forward-looking
information.
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38. B EE(HE) 38. Risk Management (Continued)
FEERK (&) Credit risk (Continued)
ESEKFEE) Trade receivables (Continued)
B AR 780 BRI AR OBUE B & 5 JE WK IE Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
A R R 4D uaﬁﬁﬁr/zgﬁﬁ?ﬁ related to a wide range of customers for whom there was no

recent history of default.

B8 838 RORE R B 5 FE W SRR B AR Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related
EEREROTABRTSHNETELRR to a number of independent customers that had a good
Bl - ERiBELSR  BEEMEHA track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
BZEERIFHRERE  REAAEE management believed that no impairment allowance was
ERUEBESERAEHEEBRDER necessary in respect of these balances as there had been no
Ao EEE - significant change in credit quality and the balances were still

considered fully recoverable.

FRNEBREZFERWFBESERBER & Movement in the loss allowance account of trade receivables
ERCINE during the year is as follows:
FET
us$'000

BE-ZZ—NEFE+=-B=1+—HIEEFEE Year ended 31 December 2019

RZZE—-—hF—H—H At 1 January 2019 1,139
b H PR Exchange adjustment (15)
&5 18 £ & % o) Reversal of loss allowance (259)

—hWE+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2019 865

BE-ZEZ-_ZF+_-_H=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2020

A_ZE_TF—-H—H At 1 January 2020 865
b H 3% Exchange adjustment 51
BB Loss allowance 166
5 /E 7 7 U 2 85 Written off as uncollectible (324)
RZEZEF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2020 758
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38. B EE(HE) 38. Risk Management (Continued)
FERK(E) Credit risk (Continued)
H b fE Wk 50 1E Other receivables

188 Annual Report 2020 4 #}

AEBERZREAEREEBEFEL M
FEW R IREEEE -

HBEWRBBDENREBERERZ
e RZEZEF+-A=1+—H @A
RIEHE TR RBEELMEKRRIE
TerglkE - MERZSREWRIARE
2 BI85 445,000 T (ZE — A F:
322,000%7T) - ANEB W ERZE L%
AT IEE R -

F 7 S B E A B SR OR O S R B PR
EEmT:

The Group measures loss allowance for other receivable based
on 12 months ECLs.

Other receivables are shown net of loss allowance. As at
31 December 2020, loss allowance of US$445,000 (2019:
US$322,000) was recognised for certain long outstanding other
receivables as these receivables are not expected to be fully
recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Movement in the loss allowance account of other receivables
during the year is as follows:

TETT
UsS$'000
BEZZ—NF+=-BA=+—HIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2019
RZZE—-—hhE—H—H At 1 January 2019 185
bE X Exchange adjustment (5)
B8 B Loss allowance 142
RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 322
BE-Z-_ZFTF+=-A=+—HIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2020
RZZE_ZF—H—H At 1 January 2020 322
& PR Exchange adjustment 28
518 B Loss allowance 95
RZEZTF+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 445

BROBE SRR - Ll & E W KRB
B LAEHRABENSREERIN
I & R RS B RIRA R -

Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in
the above balances related to receivables for which there was
no recent history of default.
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38. B EE(HE)

FE =R (&)

A — B & R A8 & 5%
AEEEZ2HEREESETER —
M ERBNEREEERS -

M) — R B 8 R ) A9 B 30 T A 40 Bk 7S 18 9
B2 R-ZBE_EBE+_A=+—
B BARBEHR—MELEARNERT
e2HWD  RERZSERERER
B 45693,000% 7T (ZZE — L4 129,000
EN) AEBUERZSEHRITEL
IR o

FAXREER—HBEQAFNERNE
BREERZEHMOT

38. Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loan to an associate

The Group measures loss allowance for loan to an associate
based on lifetime ECLs.

Loan to an associate is shown net of loss allowance. As at
31 December 2020, loss allowance of US$693,000 (2019:
US$129,000) was recognised for loan to an associate as the
loan is not expected to be fully recovered. The Group does
not hold any collateral over the balance.

Movement in the loss allowance account of loan to an associate
during the year is as follows:

TETT
Us$'000
BIE—Z—hE+=-HA=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2019
RZZE—-—hhF—H—H At 1 January 2019 244
PE & 58 & Exchange adjustment (2)
&5 18 Bt B O Reversal of loss allowance (113)
RZE—NF+=_A=+—H At 31 December 2019 129
BIE—Z2-ZF5+-H=+—HIEE Year ended 31 December 2020
RZZEZZEF—H—H At 1 January 2020 129
bE X 3 Exchange adjustment 38
B8 Loss allowance 526
RZZEZZTF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 693

FRORES RN - Lt EE W RS R

Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is

B LlFEHABRENSREELITH
WE|RACHENERBRH -

B 7 1B AR

RMEBR  BELREERANDRFTE
EHEERNEAREERRKRAAREK
130,000,0007T (A8 & 7 4919,924,0003%
TN =F —hF : AR¥130,000,0007T
(188 72 4918,635,0003 7T)) * It Jh EK
REEREAEERARR AL FH&
=% B8 (P FE37(F) °

either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in
the above balances related to the loan for which there was no
recent history of default.

Financial guarantees

At the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure
to credit risk in respect of financial guarantees issued by
the Group and Company was RMB130,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$19,924,000) (2019: RMB130,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$18,635,000)) which
represented the maximum amount the Group and Company
could be required to pay if the guarantees were called on (Note
37(f)).
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38. B EE(HE) 38. Risk Management (Continued)

FERK(E) Credit risk (Continued)
BB ER(4E) Financial guarantees (Continued)

RMEHR  ARBEZCFEAER
BB BER - §F 78 AR A
ERHFHEEMETENLENSR X
ARMBERENEERR B VAR
PAZR I S KM 00  H bt - AEE ST
MM BERAONERBEREN =
BEABHMEEEENSEAE -

EEEENSEESNRERERFTE
SHEE - BBtk - B 1B B #5927,000%E T A
BE_T_ZTF+_A=+—HItEE
ZEEPER -

MBERBONEERRSBRE
B-RAFE SRR ZEREER -

RBE SRR
ARREFERVEENRDEZAR
EEERUNERASENE -+ KH
BehnBEeEEFL -

AEEBBHETRTRMHE  RITRBEM
REEIRE FEEEREALRERR
ERENMEHSREENRABNZIME
MNEERDESER °

AEEEBEFEUNR—BEETREE
THER URRZERDESHEREE
ERpEcRRTE-—BEAR -

TRAMARBEIFTESHABENHRT
BHEHFRE - TRIOIBREBEASEAIH
ZXREFRZFAPNEMABRITRE
TRERHE - ARBME  TWRITES
AIREEBITEER - MH R EREERRK
FRORITEFDFAREREHLE - &
fIETEERMABBNINHBESTRE W
EEFAHARH -

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company have assessed the past due status of the debts under
guarantee, the financial position of the counterparty as well as
the economic outlook of the industry in which the counterparty
operates, and concluded that there has not been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition of the
financial guarantee contract. Accordingly, the loss allowance for
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group is measured
at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

The amount of loss allowance is higher than the premium
less cumulative amortisation, therefore, loss allowance of
US$927,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contract is
classified as stage 1. During the year, there was no transfer
between stages.

Liquidity risk

The directors of the Company have built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
managing liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings
with repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
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38.

B B B (M) 38. Risk Management (Continued)
REBESER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRESMNERACHSRE - £F 8 The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
MABERZEFERAEMNBERT » REFR extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
PHEERNBREHROANERAE - amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.
o 33
2020
155 ERRTE
RER 1226 285% SENLE REREAG
Within Total
one year Between Between contractual
or on one and two and Over five undiscounted
demand  two years five years years cash flows
T£R TR TER T£R TEn
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
&% Borrowings 32,147 - - - 32,147
BERR Lease liabilities 441 416 407 - 1,264
EHENFERENEE  Trade and bills payables 7,963 - - - 7,963
HiENFIBEREFIE  Other payables and accruals 5,629 - — — 5,629
HBEREH Financial quarantee contract 979 — — — 979
HtemasE Other financial liabilities 1,500 — - - 1,500
48,659 416 407 — 49,482
BRTHEER Financial guarantee issued
REERE Maximum amount guaranteed 19,924 - — — 19,924
—2-NF
2019
1EAR BHRTR
REX 1826 2E55 SELE ReRBAH
Within Total
one year Between Between contractual
or on one and two and Over  undiscounted
demand two years five years five years cash flows
TEn TET FEn TEn TEn
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
fE % Borrowings 61,810 = = = 61,810
RERR Lease liabilities 446 220 289 = 955
BHERNFBEREMNREE  Trade and bills payables 9,357 = = = 9,357
HibENFIEREEFIE  Other payables and accruals 5,674 — — — 5,674
e Ras Other finandial liabilities 1,500 - - - 1,500
78,7817 220 289 — 79,296
BRTHBER Financial guarantee issued
RRERE Maximum amount guaranteed 18,635 — — — 18,635
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38. B EE(HE) 38. Risk Management (Continued)
REBESER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)

B 75 12 B SR E & R R R 1T B RETA
LB DA E [ — FA KRB K] ERH
#E -

fid % BB B A Bl I ¥R S B K AT E 0 A
s A EXHETAESRBETR
TEMBEMHARERE -

S 5 L B
AEBERFEE AR INE R b &
e REERAKENBARRAENK
MoEeMEERBBHUAZENE QR
WERINEEREE-

AEEERY EINEE RBEK - A
EREEBERINERAR WHKNEFER
ERHHEBRINERR

A= E B

ST BRIRE B AR B EEE
B - 7 5 0 3R 17 50RO AR
BB FE284K% 5% o

R-ZE-_TFE+-A=+—H BARA
EEWEZHFRNREITER - AULE
BeREMNEREE - NEBEIW K F AT
e TAEERAENBERKE -

T 5 BB TR R = E— A+
—B=+—B¥TETANFIRERE
%o IBHEBENE BB
BRR-B-AF+=A=+—BmH
AERERSBERBEEER YR ESE
MRe - ENEEERABRNBEEH
% B B 2 FRISOME 2 8 b F+ 5 T 14 48
B UNAEREUATA BT LR
B0 -

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “within one year or on demand” time band in
the above maturity analysis.

The balance included above for the non-derivative financial
liabilities bear variable interest rate is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to
foreign currency risk as most of the financial assets and
liabilities held by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in
the respective functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The interest rate and terms of repayment
of bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in Note 28.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no cash flow interest
rate risk as there are no bank borrowings which bear floating
interest rates. The Group has not used any financial instruments
to hedge potential fluctuation in interest rates.

The sensitivity analyses below had been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments as
at 31 December 2019. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis
was prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding as
at 31 December 2019 was outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.
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38. B EE(HE) 38. Risk Management (Continued)

F =& B (4]) Interest rate risk (Continued)

fHF & T,/ EASOEED - MATAH If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower/higher and all

BRI  REE : other variables were held constant, the Group's:

. HE _%—Hi‘f—_ﬂ =+—H1 . Profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
FEMRMNERZZT—NF+=A retained profits as at 31 December 2019 would increase/
=+ —BHOREBE &M R decrease by US$61,000. This was mainly attributable to
461,000 7T * WIFEHNAE the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate
B)Z 28R 17 8 30 M H A F = & bank borrowings; and
Frsi: &

. REBRZZE—NFEF+ZA=1+— e The Group’s equity as at 31 December 2019 would
H )4 25 15 38 00 " 461,000 increase/decrease by US$61,000.
= -
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38. B EE(HE) 38. Risk Management (Continued)
REFNESHNEMEEREEBHE Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
REFBRARMZSWREESRE T The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statements
cHEELRERBEENEHA - of financial position relate to the following categories of

financial assets and financial liabilities.

—E_ZF —ZT-hnF
2020 2019
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
tRMEE Financial assets
REHEK AT ENESREE: Financial assets measured at
amortised cost:
B 5 K H th FE W 508 Trade and other receivables 40,218 44,942
M — A B & QR A E R Loan to an associate 8,425 7,197
BHEAEITER Pledged bank deposits 14,144 27,373
ReNBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 83,409 20,363
146,196 99,875
EAVFETAEGN SR Financial assets measured at FVTPL
BE 32,815 —
179,011 99,875
cREas Financial liabilities
EEHEAATENESRBE: Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost:
f& Borrowings 31,424 60,520
HEARE Lease liabilities 1,176 894
B 5 K H Al FE 1~ 5/ IE Trade and other payables 13,592 15,031
46,192 76,445
BBEREN Financial guarantee contract 979 —
AV EFAER Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL:
NERmaE:
EmbemasE Other financial liabilities 1,231 1,171
48,402 77,616
ERTHBEER Financial guarantee issued 19,924 18,635
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38. B EE(HE)

(a)

(b)

YHFBEAFEFENEMIAR
WIHERAFEFENEHIAS
EESMEMEWRIE - [ —F
ERNFNER  CERRTE
R BERREFEY - E5X A
ERE MBERANOUARES
N E A A 5RR -

ERNEFHRENLEE  BHEK
EEEQFERE -

BAVEFENERIA
BRAFEFENERIABRTER
AFEFABRENEHEE  H
heEMBERITEEZMIA - 2
FEEBROIMAOT -

RAE] Xz A RIERE

BN E XXM RS AEERE
WA KRG 2EREAFER
ABZNEREE -  DE/AF IR
B AR S B B2 FE B R AR 1R R
EHEMNMIZRERET - WaEHE
RN ERESKRZHM  RHE -
e ZREE TERHXIE
ERBORE YEZBERRX
BAFRANBERIRERNZELEND
BR5 AERRERMSE - K
SERANEREENTISRE
RERERE -

FASR 2EL EEE -

38. Risk Management (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value include
trade and other receivables, loan to an associate, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings,
lease liabilities, financial guarantee contract and trade
and other payables.

Due to their short term nature, their carrying values
approximate their fair values.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Financial instruments measured at fair value include
financial assets at FVTPL, other financial liabilities and
derivative financial instrument. Analysis on fair value
hierarchy is presented as follows.

Equity investment in Starry

As mentioned in Note 5 above, the shares of Starry held
by the Group were classified as financial assets at FVTPL.
The fair value of the shares of Starry classified in level 1
is based on quoted market price at the reporting date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets at FVTPL held by
the Group is the current bid price.

There were no transfers between levels during the year.
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38. ERERE(HE)
(b) BRAVHEHENSEIALH

HEme@BENLFEFE
TREVWRZZEZZEF+=_A=F
—HMEEUBMRRARA  BE
NP EBHRRIEBEEEEEL
AT EFTENEHMESHEE - A
FEBHREATHR:

F1R: HREENEAERMESH
BECREHE) :

F2: RBERFIRFAEEH
WEAINTEE (B1RE
BIKEEEIEERE
H)BEEN@ARE: &

F3: ZBEEYFERTEE
mI5 BB AR (T
ABREARE) -

38. Risk Management (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)
Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities
The following tables present other financial liabilities
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020 measured at fair value
on a recurring basis according to the fair value hierarchy.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets;

Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

FI1R 28 E3I/ st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FER FEn FER FER

ZE-ZEHF+ZH=+—H 31 December 2020 US$'000 USS$'000 US$'000 US$'000

& Liabilities
EAFEFAEZD Financial liabilities
TR EE measured at FVTPL
— HtwemamsE — Other financial
liabilities — — 1,231 1,231
FER B2 FE3 st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FEx FEx FE FEx
ZE—NF+ZHA=+—H 31 December 2019 US$'000  US$'000  US$000  US$'000
BE Liabilities
BEAFEFAEZD Financial liabilities
Gl =K measured at FVTPL
— HthemaE — Other financial
liabilities = — 1,171 1,171
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38. E k&

(b)

EHE (&)
BRATVENENSMTA(E)

Az B &L FlE;EE)

BHE B2 +-_HA=t—H
¢¢r ﬁ@iﬂﬁ113®$
E2H(—T-AF:2FEKSE

133,000 7T) °

RZBEZZEFRT-NEF+A
:+ EZI%&@W@¥EE
EREFRAMBBERESREME - A
FEDBERE T AUEBEENZ2HY
(BIERRRE (HEHERRE
FMIHERERNBMREERE - %%
ERTAERGARBRZEH
ASBENARERFENBR
W

EAFTAEE JFuBEEHAH
BABE BREATEN
RS
50%/BRIRE  BRIREME - A
NFEBIE
HERHEEN HEREZAM
R - B1100% X#e - BIA
FEBS -
HERHERYN HEREZNH
| MBE - Al
$ﬁﬁ_m °
BRIRRIEAN1% @ Bl EM S R BE

B A A R4 4947,0003 7T - AL
HERD1% B EMEeREEn
N B 0 #949,0003 T ©

F R il B B i I 4 &2

FAZMR2EIL mE R -

38. Risk Management (Continued)

(b)

LR

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

There was no change on fair value on other financial
liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: fair value gain of US$133,000).

The fair value of the contingent consideration as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 was estimated by the
management by applying the discounted cash flows. The
determination of fair value is based on certain parameters
including the discount rate, the probability of sales
achievement and the period of sales achievement, which
are unobservable. The significant unobservable inputs
and relationship of these inputs to fair value contingent
consideration are shown as below:

Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
input(s) inputs to fair value

Discount rate of 5.0% The higher the discount rate, the

lower the fair value.

Probability of sales
achievement, which is
100%

The higher the probability of
sales achievement, the higher
the fair value.

Period of sales achievement The earlier the period of sales
achievement, the higher the
fair value.

Increased discount rate by 1% would decrease the
fair value on other financial liabilities by approximately
US$47,000 whilst decreased discount rate by 1% would
increase the fair value on other financial liabilities by
approximately US$49,000.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during
the year.

There were no transfers between levels during the year.
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38. ERERE(HE)
(b) BRAVHEHENSEIALH

At oM BEN N FEE(E)

DEREIRNERBBMERDN
BERMOIREFERTERD
SHEENERBAE - HANE
BITARVGEREHREHOYH

38. Risk Management (Continued)
(b)
(Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities

(Continued)
The financial liabilities classified in level 3
techniques based on significant inputs that

use valuation
are not based

on observable market data. The financial instruments

within this level are reconciled from open

ing to closing

RN T ¢ balances as follows:
—B-®F T NHF
2020 2019
FTEx FExT
Us$’000 Us$'000
=R Liabilities
BATFEFAEZONESFARE: Financial liabilities measured at
FVTPL:
R—A—H At 1 January 1,171 1,234
Hih e BEN A FER TS Fair value gain on other financial
liabilities — (133)
REZENHREOHARETR Unwinding of discount on
(Fff 5£9) contingent consideration charged
to profit or loss (Note 9) 60 63
HE 5, 38 B Exchange adjustment — 7
R+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 1,231 1,171

B FEFAENTETHTA

RZE—RE=A=-+MHHE -
£BV) RE—HEEWZ - WE
HEEE191% B REAARE
33.08 &t (1HE 1 495,085,0003
L) HARARK2806 8T AR
& ARESEEAERZE2ILEH
TR o
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Fair Value Measurement of Derivative Financial

Instrument

On 24 March 2016, Lansen (BVI) signed a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire approximately 19.1%

equity interest in Natural Dailyhealth, at a
of RMB33.0 million
US$5,085,000) of which RMB28.0 million i
RMB5 million by way of consideration sh
issued share capital of Natural Dailyhealth.

consideration

(equivalent to approximately

s in cash and
ares in entire
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38. ERERE(HE)

(b)

BRAVEFAENSHIA(H)

HAFEAENTELH TA
(#&)
BRIERBWHE AT —~E=A
Z+H L HRI5E A REM R - B
£ RV 2 BB RE (M8 &
FE)HEITE RO RE - mEE
ERBHRITREESE _HRER
B MER=ZE—A"F=A=1+NH
HREWEE191% % %A
TBIBEME30%ERBAREEITR
N BIREHE - RZT—RFN
A=+=H  REEEHRT - &
RAEBMEERFERTE - XK
BZHBERARNEENBE QA o

Z—HEBZF-A"F=ZA=T
MENE —EBFRAMGN=EA
HE (78D ZREFATER
SHHIERORER - BRER AR 1
ZEEXBERERY) HENE
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7 AN AARE SRR EE
BAEBVZE B TTER A HIEM B Y
B 1EHE o MK BAEBV) MR E TS
RE - BB A ETERZATER
B R A 17 38 7808 HA 4 o

RZZE-NFANAZTMAE - &
BV)RZERABBIHEIIL—HDA
R Bt EHREL
RBHHEHABR I —EAE=Z—
NERAZTMA - EHEAHE
BEMAFBHFR G EMRAE
FEE T HETHR S IMEHE
BEEZHHE - eXTEFEZR
50%CIHE 3 1T & 78 2 Circle Finance
Limited }2 Mega Worldwide Services
Limited 2 2«75 2 = & X A B 1 5T 173
BLRBR BRERBEHAED
PR SN - R B 1% 5 P A L (6 R 4

38. Risk Management (Continued)

(b)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Derivative Financial Instrument
(Continued)

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, and at any time within
15 months from 29 March 2016, Lansen (BVI) shall have the
sole discretion but not the obligation to subscribe for, and
Natural Dailyhealth shall have the obligation to issue and allot,
the second tranche subscription shares, in aggregate with the
acquired equity interest of 19.1% on 24 March 2016, own
up to 30% of the enlarged issued share capital of Natural
Dailyhealth, which is the call option. On 22 August 2016,
the call option was executed. Accordingly, the Group holds
30% equity interest in Natural Dailyhealth. Having significant
influence over Natural Dailyhealth, Natural Dailyhealth becomes
an associate of the Group since that date.

On the other hand, at any time during the period of
three months commencing immediately after the second
anniversary of 24 March 2016 (the “Put Option Period”),
Natural Dailyhealth is entitled to exercise the put option to
require Natural Dailyhealth to purchase all (but not part)
of the subscription shares then held by Lansen (BVI) at the
put option strike price. Natural Dailyhealth shall pay the put
option strike price in cash to the Group within six months
from the date of the exercise of the put option. The exercise
of the put option is at the absolute discretion of Lansen
(BVI). The put option can be exercised at any time prior to
the commencement of the Put Option Period if mutually
agreed by Lansen (BVI) and Natural Dailyhealth.

On 24 June 2018, Lansen (BVI) and Natural Dailyhealth
entered into a supplemental conditional agreement to
the subscription agreement pursuant to which the parties
agreed that the expiry date of the Put Option Period
shall be extended for twelve months to 24 June 2019
on the condition that CIH having obtained the relevant
simple majority approvals in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the supplemental agreement in
accordance with the Listing Rules for the London Stock
Exchange. Circle Finance Limited and Mega Worldwide
Services Limited, the shareholders of CIH together holding
more than 50% of the issued share capital of CIH, have
given an undertaking to vote in favour of the resolution
in respect of the supplemental agreement. Save for the
extension of the Put Option Period, all other terms of the
subscription agreement remain unchanged.
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38. ERERE(HE)
(b) BRAVHEHENSEIALH

BRFEGFENTLESHTA
(%)
R-E—NFA-t+—H Z&
BIARNRIMRIE RS BTASE
BEBHRERER  BHEGBVIA
ErGTERABRETEERS
HEE30%WE - TESBH T AR
It 4% |F 1 3R K E5 181,910,000 7T
REBEE=_Z—-NF+=-A=+—8H
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38. Risk Management (Continued)

(b)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair Value Measurement of Derivative Financial Instrument
(Continued)

On 21 June 2019, Lansen (BVI) decided not to exercise
the put option and continues to hold 30% equity
interests in Natural Dailyhealth for the long-term
development of the Group’s business, after taking
into account the Company’s strategic plan. Derivative
financial instrument was therefore derecognised and a
loss of US$1,910,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2019.

There were no transfers between levels during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The financial assets classified in level 3 use valuation
techniques based on significant inputs that are not based
on observable market data. The financial instruments
within this level are reconciled from opening to closing

BRan T : balances as follows:
—E-NF
2019
FET
us$'000
&E Assets
EAVEFAEBEZNSREE: Financial assets measured at FVTPL:
R—H—H At 1 January 1,910
MESRTENQAFEKS Fair value gain on derivative financial instrument —
T4 4 b T B ey Write off of derivative financial instrument (1,910)
b H P Exchange adjustment —
R+=—A=+—8H At 31 December —

$THE £ B T B $51,910,0003 JT
REBEE-_Z—HAhF+-_A=+—8
HFEZETZPER -
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Write off of derivative financial instrument of
US$1,910,000 had been recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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38. Risk Management (Continued)
Capital Management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings as disclosed in Note 28, cash and bank
balances and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained profits.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its
overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares,
or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was
as follows:

—E-EF ZE—NF

2020 2019

FEx FE

Us$'000 us$'000

& 7 (M 5£28) Borrowings (Note 28) 31,424 60,520
B IRE RIS EEW (M 5E25) Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) (83,409) (20,363)
B BB TFE R (M 5E25)  Less: Pledged bank deposits (Note 25) (14,144) (27,373)
HEMIRITHEEFEE ET5F5E Net cash and bank balances/Net debt (66,129) 12,784
P % Equity 197,282 101,375
FEEREREX Net debt to equity ratio THEA N/A 12.6%
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